
KPTL/20-21 
July 18, 2020 

Sub.: Annual Report for the FY 2019-20 including Notice of 39th Annual General Meeting 

Respected Sir(s) / Madam, 

In continuation of our letter dated July 13, 2020, this is to inform you that the 39th Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) of the Company will be held on Wednesday, August 12, 2020 at 2:00 P.M. IST through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) in accordance with the relevant circulars issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities & Exchange Board of India from time to time. 

In compliance with the Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, we do hereby submit the following: 
(i) Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2019-20; and
(ii) the Notice calling 39th AGM

Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 alongwith the Notice of the AGM is being sent 
to the members only through electronic mode. 

We would like to further inform that the Company has fixed Wednesday, August 05, 2020 as the "Cut-off 
Date" for the purpose of determining the members eligible to vote on the resolutions set out in the Notice 
of the AGM. The Cut-off Date stated in our letter dated July 13, 2020 may please be read as Wednesday, 
August, 05, 2020. The remote e-voting period shall commence on Saturday, August 08, 2020 (09.00 a.m. 
IST) and shall end on Tuesday, August 11, 2020 (05.00 p.m. IST). 

Kindly take the same on records. 

Thanking you, 
Yours faithfully, 
For Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited 

Rajeev Kumar 
Company Secretary 

Encl. a/a 
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Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA)

Process driven approach:

•	 Effective & constant Daily Safety 
reporting from all sites.

•	 EHS Dashboard to reflect and 
monitor EHS performance of each 
project closely at Site level.

•	 EHS enforcement & work stoppage 
guideline for Work stoppage notice 
during any activities that may cause 
high potential incident.

•	 EHS reward and recognition policy 
to encourage the employee’s EHS 
performance either individually or 
through team.

•	 EHS induction movie - Shoot actual 
work activity with complete safety 
measures at project site to make 
an effective understanding of safety 
practices.

•	 Empowerment letter to BU / Site 
EHS head to delegate duties and 
responsibilities applicable to the 
project.

•	 EHS Disciplinary Policy to maintain 
discipline and increase the 
productivity 

•	 EHS Journal – to handle emergencies 
and also to establish collaborative 
effort towards establishing a positive 
EHS culture and spreading awareness 
across the organization

Robust Review Mechanism:

•	 Formation of EHS steering committee 
at BU / RO / Site level for Robust & 
effective EHS review mechanism: 
formed EHS steering committee 
meeting along with detailed 
guidelines at BU, RO & site level. 

•	 Monthly EHS Snapshot: BU wise 
monthly EHS updates circulated 
to the leadership team to adopt 
a focused approach across the 
Company’s projects/sites.  

•	 EHS Walk round of Project Site: Walk 
through rounds by BU Head / RO 
Head /project site line management 
team around the sites makes it more 
approachable for resolving EHS 
issues and encouraging the staff 
about EHS policies.  

•	 Fortnightly EHS review: Fortnightly 
Telecon / VC with BU / RO EHS head 
to review the status of initiatives / 
ongoing EHS performance

•	 Fire safety audits for major business 
buildings of the Company to avoid 
any untoward fire incident.

•	 EHS council meet for all BU / RO 
EHS head to review the site EHS 
status and prepare the Road Map for 
upcoming quarter.

•	 Skill assessment of existing EHS 
personnel: Competency mapping 
and skill assessment of EHS team by 
an external expert. 

Engineering Control Mechanism:

•	 Innovative fall protection mechanism 
through vertical and horizontal 
lifeline, fall arrest System.

•	 Provision and use of safety net 
during erection of transmission 
towers 

•	 Provision of CCTV Camera System at 
tower location to monitor safe work 
practices. 

•	 TPI of Lifting Tools inspection at site

•	 Trench box installation while working 
in trenches adjacent to highways 
(where sloping is not possible due to 
space constraints) in O&G BU

•	 Implementation of Snake Guard 
Stick (Snakes are kept away due its 
vibration) for project sites.

•	 Use of Helmet Mounted Induction 
Tester and voltage detector for 
various tasks near live wires.

•	 Implementation of safe erection 
process of BFB mask to avoid 
climbing of masts on mast and 
reduce damage caused due to 
accidental falls from the mast.

Administrative EHS Process for new 
workers:

•	 Gang evaluation

•	 Screening of workmen

•	 Height phobia test

•	 EHS induction

•	 Height Pass wfor workers who are fit 
to work in elevated areas.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As a responsible and responsive corporate 
citizen, KPTL believes that sharing success 
with the larger communities and societies 
is both a responsibility as well as an 
opportunity to make a difference to the lives 
of people. It helps them to become a part of 
the mainstream development and prosperity 
of the nation. Towards its CSR initiatives, 
KPTL focuses on Healthcare, Education 
and overall Community Development. 
The Company works primarily through 
its CSR Trust i.e. Kalpataru Welfare Trust, 
for providing healthcare services to poor 
and marginalized sections of the society. 
Kalpataru Welfare Trust runs “Kalpa Seva 
Arogya Kendra” at Gandhinagar as well 
as in Mumbai. The Company also has 
incorporated a Section 8 Company in the 
name of “Kalpataru Foundation” during 
the year under review for large scale CSR 
Projects.

The “Kalp - Seva Arogya Kendra - 
Gandhinagar” has been operational for 
more than 10 years since 2009 benefitting 
on an average approx. 100 patients per 
day. Further, on an average, about 700-
800 patients were benefitted every month 
through medical camps organized at “Kalp 
- Seva Arogya Kendra - Mumbai” during 
the year under review and till date about 
13,000 patients have availed services of 
such medical Camps. Besides this, the 
Company has carried out a range of CSR 
activities during the year under review, in 
the field of Healthcare including Preventive 
Healthcare, ensuring environmental 
sustainability, Promoting Education, Flood 
Relief activities, Promotion to Technology 
incubators, etc. The Company also ran a 
CSR Project for Combating and Containing 
Novel Coronavirus (CoVID-19) through 
various relief activities. 

Details regarding CSR initiatives taken 
by the Company during the year under 
review are available in Annexure A to the 
Directors’ Report.

Human Resources (HR)

The HR Vision is important in building 
a lean, proficient and future proof 
KPTL, working in partnership to create 
an environment where people can 
thrive deliver sustainable and desired 
performance.

In line with this vision, the Company 
has enabled digital transformation at 
KPTL. It will have a profound impact 
on the performance and services of the 
Company. 

The Company’s people agenda 
contributes significantly to the delivery 
of overall strategy. To achieve the 
Company’s strategic goal and enable 
changes across the organization, 
the Company needs the expertise, 
commitment and enablement of its 
employees. 

In 2019, the Company placed particular 
focus on HR Technology & leadership 
development to renew and align the 
workforce with change.

Digital HR Transformation: 

•	 HR Bot Kortana – Mobile Application 
on AI platform: A mobile based 
virtual assistant that enables an 
employee to access various Human 
Resource requirements on individual 
handset i.e. salary slip, leave balance, 
attendance records, tax projections, 
HR Policies, loans, HR Grievance, 
Employee first, travel requests etc. 
A Supervisor can approve leave 
and travel requests, Purchase 
Orders, CAPEX plans etc. by using 
the application. Around 3000 
employees have been registered for 
the application and are using the 
same.  The BOT is found to be more 
useful to the Company’s project site 
employees who can easily access it 
from their mobile. 

•	 HR –Dashboard: HR Dashboard 
covering MIS information for 
the Top Management covers HR 
information regarding Talent 
Acquisition, Manpower movement, 
Resource Management, Learning & 
Development and Engagement at all 
locations. 

•	 LMS – Learning Management 
System Module: An online learning 
depository of over 50 technical and 
behavioral courses. In FY19-20, 
6221 courses were completed by 
1683 employees in LMS. 

•	 Online Employment Application 
form: An online database platform 
for interested applicants/
prospective employees to apply for 
various current and future openings 
in the organization

•	 e-Appraisal: Online Performance 
Review and Development (PRD) 
system enables objective assessment 
of performances.

•	 Employee First: Proper employee 
on-boarding is critical as it enables 
smooth transition of a new employee 
within the organisation. Employee 
Bills of Right (EBR) – Employee 
first is created to gauge new 
joiners’ comfort, acclimatization 
with organisational culture, 
familiarization with processes and 
initial support of infrastructure. 
This is an IT enabled tool built 
on ESS (Employee self-service). 
Each new joinee submits feedback 
(on Likert scale of 1-5) on his or 
her on-boarding experience after 
completing 30 days of work. The 
responses received are analysed and 
improvements are worked upon. The 
responses received are shared with 
all BU Heads and HRBPs. 
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•	 Buddy – A Mitra – Practice- A SAP 
system for assignment of buddy to a 
new joinee. Buddy is assigned to new 
joinee within 2-3 days of joining. A 
system-generated mail is sent to 
both, the Buddy and the new joinee. 
This helps to build a bonding within 
the organization. On completion of 
three months, an online feedback is 
submitted by both the buddy as well 
as the new joinee.

•	 Profile Sheet: An up-to-date online 
profile of employee skills, education, 
other accomplishments and career 
preferences which reflect their goals 
and aspirations is marked in the 
profile sheet. Managers and other 
leaders can use this information and 
understand their talent pool, identify 
gaps, consider employees for certain 
initiatives, suggest training, set 
goals and give them career advice.

Key People Practices

•	 3 Tier Leadership Development 
Program: Developing a leadership 
pipeline for Early, Future and Senior 
leader roles by facilitating their 
leadership journey.

	 o	 Leading with growth mindset: 
A program on collaborative 
leadership and to lead an agile 
team, partnered with renowned 
Innovation consultant, 
coach, and author Mr. T D 
Chandrashekar.

	 o	 LEAP: Leadership Excellence 
and Pride for Future Leaders 
aims in transitioning from 
leading Manager to leading 
business passages of leadership 
pipeline 

	 o	 ELEVATE: Early Leadership 
Excellence, Visioning and 
Talent Engagement Program 
for early leader aims to 
transition self to manager 
passages of leadership pipeline.  

•	 Business Finance Acumen 
Development Program:  Competency 
building program partnered with 
TMDC. 

•	 Certification Program for 
Procurement & Supply Chain 
Management: Partnered with 
Symbiosis. 

•	 Certification on Negotiation Skills: 
Skill development on negotiation 
for procurement and SCM team, 
conducted by Industry experts.

•	 IGNITE Project Management 
Certification: A custom program in 
partnership with S. P. Jain institute 
of management studies.

•	 First Time Right Approach: To 
minimize rework cost and complete 
the project in time, the Company took 
a strategic decision of Implementing 
First Time Right (FTR) by engaging 
Quality staff.

•	 LEAN Manufacturing: An operational 
excellence initiative which includes 
Kaizen, Improvement projects and 
creating operational excellence 
structure based on TPM/Lean 
manufacturing. 

This year the Company has been 
acknowledged and applauded by various 
agencies for its efforts:

•	 World HRD Congress 2020, 
recognised KPTL’s workplace 
practices at ‘Global HR excellence 
award 2020’.

•	 President HR – KPTL Mr. M A Baraiya 
awarded as ‘Sustainable HR Leader 
– 2020’. 

•	 TLD vertical of KPTL won Gold Trophy 
at 21st Annual TQM Convention - 
2020

The Company has grown its manpower 
strength from 3,295 to 3,531 with 
addition of about 214 (net addition) 
management trainees, graduate trainees 
and CAs to ensure cadre building.

At KPTL, the HR team constantly aims to 
develop homegrown future Functional 
Leaders, Geographic Leaders, Business 
Unit Leaders and Enterprise Leaders. The 
Company ensures and strives to design 
and implement policies, programmes and 
processes aimed at identifying, retaining, 
developing future leaders and help such 
leaders to achieve their fullest potential 
within the Group.

Cautionary Statement

This report comprises the facts and 
figures along with assumptions, strategy, 
goal, and intentions of the Company 
which may be “forward-looking”. The 
Company’s actual results, performance 
may differ considerably from those 
presented herein. The Company’s 
performance is dependent upon global 
and national economic conditions, the 
price of commodities, business risk, 
change of Government’s rules and 
regulations, etc.

Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA)
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TO,

THE MEMBERS,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 39th ANNUAL REPORT of your Company together with the Audited Financial Statements 
(standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
(H in Crore)

Consolidated Standalone
2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Revenue from Operations 12675.84 10840.48 7904.03 7115.11
Profit before Depreciation, Tax and amortization 
expense

1086.12 990.3 752.21 710.38

Less:  Depreciation and amortization expenses 339.64 210.94 110.48 85.99
Profit before Tax and Exceptional Items  746.48 779.36 641.73 624.39
Exceptional items 4.06 - 23.94 -
Share of Profit / (Loss) from Joint Venture (23.38) (18.10)
Tax Expense 258.10 274.17 202.62 223.09
Profit for the period 389.59 487.09 463.05 401.30
Other Comprehensive Income(net of tax)
	 Items that will be reclassified subsequently to 

Profit or Loss
(37.72) 24.52 (24.44) 18.00

	 Items that will not be reclassified subsequently 
to Profit or Loss

(1.51) 1.34 0.51 1.54

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 350.36 512.95 439.12 420.84
Retained Earnings – Opening balance 1752.96 1378.86 1,868.29 1,540.71 
Add: Impact of Ind AS 115 (net of taxes) - 5.24 - 6.14
Add: Profit for the period 389.59* 466.75* 463.05 401.30
Add: Impact of Ind AS 116 (net of taxes) (2.36) - (1.18) -
Less: Acquisition of non-controlling interest 58.12 1.64
Less: Dividends 46.04 38.37 46.04 38.37
Less: Interim Dividend 54.15 - 54.15 -
Less: Corporate Tax on Dividend 20.59 8.57 18.97 6.49
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 5.47 36.86 - 25.00
Less: Transfer to General Reserve 12.25 12.25 10.00 10.00
Less: Transfer to other reserves 0.22 0.20 - -
Retained Earnings – Closing balance 1943.35 1752.96 2201.00 1868.29
* Profit for the year attributable to Owners of the Company

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

During FY 2019-20, the Standalone revenue of your Company 
increased by 11.09% to H 7,904.03 Crore as against H 7,115.11 
Crore in the previous financial year. Total Export revenue 
(including overseas projects) was H 2813.82 Crore or approx. 
35.60% of revenues. 

COVID-19 global pandemic induced lockdown was imposed pan-
India with effect from March 25, 2020 initially for 3 weeks and 
later extended further and is ongoing. Also, limited restrictions 

on movement in few states were already effective from mid March 
2020. Due to the project-based nature of business, there was no 
material adverse operational or financial impact on the company 
during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 although the 
revenue of fourth quarter of the Company was impacted due to 
lockdown announced in view of spread of COVID-19 pandemic. 
Planned completion of few transmission line and railway projects 
envisaged in March 2020 got postponed, but impact was 
negligible in FY 2019-20.
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The Standalone net profit for the year increased by 15.39% to  
H 463.05 Crore as against H 401.30 Crore in the previous 
financial year. The Company successfully delivered on the 
Profitability front with Core EBIDTA increasing by about 11% to 
about H 860 Crore with margins on standalone level at 10.9% 
primarily driven by operational excellence while the initiatives for  
cost rationalizations and productivity enhancement continue to 
gain momentum. 

Your Company has supplied 1,67,206 MTs of Transmission Line 
Towers during the year under review. 

Your company has a standalone order book in excess of H 12,100 
Crore excluding fairly placed bids. Your Company has received 
Orders in excess of H 6500 Crore at standalone level in the current 
financial year 2019-20. 

The consolidated revenue of your Company increased by 16.93 % 
to H 12,675.84 Crore as against H 10,840.48 Crore in the previous 
financial year.

The consolidated net profit for the year decreased by about 20% 
to H 389.59 Crore as against H 487.09 Crore in the previous 
financial year on account of exceptional items of impairment of 
fixed assets and expected credit loss provisions towards loans/
advances.

There has been no change in the nature of business of your 
company during the year under review.

AWARDS & RECOGNITION:

Your Company has been honoured with various Awards, 
accolades and recognitions during the year under review.  Some 
of which are elaborated hereunder:

A)	 Your Company was conferred with Special Appreciation 
Award at 8th Edition of Gujarat State Level Best Kaizen 
Competition 2019 organized by Vadodara chapter of 
Confederation of Indian Industry.

B)	 Your Company was declared a winner at 3rd National 
Competition on LEAN manufacturing organized by 
Confederation of Indian Industry at Bengaluru.

C)	 The Gandhinagar manufacturing unit of your Company was 
awarded with Gold category Award in Engineering Sector 
at Grow Care India Safety Award, 2019 for exemplary 
performances in Safety and Operations and Environment 
Protection.

D)	 Quality Circle Forum of India (QCFI) awarded Gandhinagar 
manufacturing unit of your Company with Gold category 
Award in Engineering Sector at National Level Convention 
on Safety for People, Plant and Planet.

E)	 At 21st Annual TQM Convention, 2020, your Company’s 
domestic Transmission business won the regional level Gold 
Trophy of Quality Circle Forum of India for remarkable efforts 
in transition towards attitudinal changes in thinking of the 
people at all levels through “First Time Right” initiatives 
leading to overall quality excellence and Client delight. 

F)	 Directorate of Industrial Safety & Health, Jaipur, Rajasthan 
conferred the Padampur Biomass power plant of the Company 
with Certificate of Appreciation and Award Trophy for Best 
Occupational Health and Safety practices at Power Plant. 

G)	 Your Company’s contribution towards Road safety initiatives 
for the Nokaneng community in Republic of Botswana 
while executing Legolthwane – Makoba – Samochima 132 
kV Transmission Line was honored through a Certificate 
of Appreciation issued by Deputy District Commissioner, 
Okavango Sub-district, Republic of Botswana.

H)	 On the occasion of National Safety Week’ 2019 Celebration, 
APTRANSCO, the Company’s client conferred the Company 
with Safety Appreciation Certificate in recognition and 
appreciation for continual improvement & excellent 
performance in safety at 400kV Rachagunneri, 132kV 
Yerpedu & 220kV Naidupet Substations.

I)	 Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (“PGCIL”) conferred 
a Certificate of Appreciation for EHS Performance of your 
Company in recognition and appreciation for continual 
improvement and excellence performance in Occupational 
Health, Safety & Environment for the period 2019-2020 at 
765kV D/C PS Hexa Varanasi – Vidhyanchal Transmission 
Line Project. 

J)	 PGCIL also conferred a “Certificate of Appreciation” to your 
Company for achievement of successfully executing 765kV 
S/C Sipat Bilaspur Transmission Line CKT 1 & CKT 2 without 
any lost time accident and maintaining improved EHS & Quality 
Standards. Further, your Company’s Client Transmission 
Corporation of Andhra Pradesh Limited issued Appreciation 
Letter for successfully completion of Upgradation of 220/132 
kV Rachangunneri SS to 400/220/132 kV Rachangunneri 
SS and connected Transmission network adhering to 100% 
safety and Quality norms. 
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K)	 Your Company’s Client M/s Technip FMC presented to the 
Company HSE Award for successfully achieving one million safe 
man hours and for outstanding performance in safety initiatives 
while executing IGHDS project of IOCL at Assam, India.

L)	 Your Company emerged winner of Dun and Bradstreet Infra 
Awards – 2019 under Infrastructure Projects category for 
Kishanganj-Darbhanga 400 kV Double Circuit Transmission 
Line - 209km with Quad Moose ACSR Conductor. The Award 
was conferred considering Project Criticality, Milestones 
and Challenges Faced, Project Quality Initiatives, Pile 
Foundation Initiatives, Project Economics and Health and 
Safety, Public and Environment Impact etc.  

M)	 Engineers India Limited, a Navratna Company appreciated 
your Company on achievement of two million man hours 
without any Lost Time Accident as EPC Contractor for 
“Balance of Plant & Utilities on LSTK basis for LPG Import 
facility at BPCL, Haldia. 

N)	 At World HRD Congress – 2020, HR professionals of 
the Company were recognized with various awards like 
Sustainable HR Leader – 2020, 101 Most Fabulous HR 
Leaders – 2020, 101 Most Fabulous Training Leaders – 
2020 and the Company was recognized with Global HR 
excellence Award – 2020 for Best Workplace practices.  

O)	 Your Company was declared runner’s up at the 2019 
IPLOCA Corporate Social Responsibility Award for its CSR 
Project of constructing two storey Dormitory building for 
poor Girl students in Orissa

Further, during the year under review

A)	 Your Company’s manufacturing plant situated at Gandhinagar 
has been audited & certified for ISO 3834-2. The certification 
stands for “Quality requirements for fusion welding of metallic 
materials”. This is an added feather in your Company’s 
quality system which will enhance quality standard in metal 
welding areas and with this, your Company will be able to 
match with international requirement of welded structures 
including transmission towers. This is one of the important & 
first certification in your Company’s business segment.

B)	 Your Company was certified with ISO 37001:2016.  
ISO 37001:2016 specifies requirements and provides 
guidance for establishing, implementing, maintaining, 
reviewing and improving an anti-bribery management system. 
It is a benchmark for corporate compliance program with 
focus on anti-bribery and anti-corruption practices and is the 
new international standard designed to help organizations 
implement an anti-bribery management system.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF YOUR COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the 
financial position of your Company which has occurred between 
end of financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2020 and the 
date of Directors’ Report i.e. May 20, 2020.

DIVIDEND 

Your Company has declared and paid an interim Dividend of  
H 3.50 (175%) per equity share of H 2 each on March 4, 2020 
in line with Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company. Your 
Directors do not recommend any Final Dividend for the year 
ended March 31, 2020. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

Your Company has transferred following amounts to various 
reserves during the financial year ended March 31, 2020:

Amount transferred to Amount in J Crore

General Reserve 10.00

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH 
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE 
COMPANIES

A statement containing the salient features of financial 
statements of each of the subsidiaries, associates and joint 
venture companies in terms of provisions of Section 129(3) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed Form AOC-1 is 
annexed to Consolidated Financial Statements and hence not 
repeated here for the sake of brevity.

The brief details of the activities carried out by key subsidiaries / 
new subsidiaries of your Company is provided below.

•	 JMC Projects (India) Ltd.:

	 JMC Projects (India) Limited (“JMC Projects” or “JMC”) is a 
leading construction company in India, with over USD 500 
million revenue, having presence in South Asia and Africa.  It 
is certified under ISO 9001:2015, Environmental Management 
System (EMS) conforming to ISO 14001:2015 and 
Occupational Health & Safety Management system (OHSMS) 
conforming to ISO 45001:2018 at all offices and projects.
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	 It addresses critical needs in key sectors – Infrastructure 
(Highways, Flyovers, Elevated corridors, Metros, Railways, 
Bridges, Water Supply & Irrigation projects), Construction 
of Buildings (High-rise, Integrated Township, Residential, 
Commercial, IT Parks, Institutional, Hospital, Sports 
Complex, Tourism projects), Factories, Industrial Plants & 
Power projects among others. JMC’s integrated capabilities 
span the spectrum of ‘EPC’ solutions with Safety, Quality 
and On-time delivery as the 3 pillars.

	 Over three decades of a strong, customer-focused 
approach and a sharp focus on world-class quality have 
enabled JMC to maintain a leadership position in its major 
lines of business. Characterized by professionalism, high 
standards of corporate governance and sustainability, JMC 
continues to evolve, seeking better ways of engineering to 
meet emerging challenges leveraging the power of People-
Processes-Technology (PPT).

	 For the FY 2019-20, JMC has received new contracts 
of more than H 3,350 Crore. As of March 31, 2020, the 
aggregate value of orders on hand of JMC stands at approx. 
H 9,546 Crore. Your Company increased its shareholding in 
JMC from 67.19% to 67.75% during the year under review.

•	 Shree Shubham Logistics Ltd (“SSLL”):

	 SSLL undertakes an array of activities in the post-harvest value 
chain primarily for agri-commodities and currently present 
in 10 states and managing inventories above 1.5 million MT. 
The activities include warehousing, collateral management, 
funding facilitation, funding, testing & certification and pest 
management. The activities are aimed at a wide spectrum of 
market participants dealing in agri-commodities, including 
farmers, traders & aggregators, government agencies, 
banks and electronic commodities exchanges. Through the 
integrated business model, SSLL believes that they are able 
to create value in the post-harvest value chain. Your Company 
holds 100% equity shares of SSLL.

	 During the year under review, SSLL has been recognized 
& awarded by The Economic Times  as “Champions of 
Rural Market 2019” in Delhi and has received “The Best 
Warehouse Service Provider” award at 7th International 
Convention of Commodity Participants Association of India 
(CPAI) in July, 2019.

•	 Linjemontage i Grastorp AB (“LMG”):

	 Linjemontage i Grastorp AB, a Swedish EPC Company 
headquartered in Grastrop, Sweden along with its two 
wholly owned subsidiaries were acquired by the Company’s 

wholly owned subsidiary in Sweden namely Kalpataru 
Power Transmission Sweden AB on April 29, 2019. During 
the year under review, LMG along with its two WOS has 
bagged Orders of ~H 1,134 Crore and has an Order Book 
of ~H 1,152 Crore as on March 31, 2020. It has further 
strengthened its position in the European markets with the 
revenues growing by about 21% with an improvement of 
about 35% in the net profit. Post acquisition, Order book 
has multiplied by about 2.4 times. LMG has made a big 
entry into 400 kV transmission lines business where it has 
successfully secured two big projects. The team size at LMG 
has also been scaled up and it has emerged as one of the 
top suppliers in terms of quality of service and safety. 

During the year under review, three new Companies have become 
Subsidiaries of your Company. Your Company’s wholly owned 
subsidiary in Sweden namely Kalpataru Power Transmission 
Sweden AB acquired Linjemontage i Grastorp AB along with 
its two wholly owned subsidiaries viz. Linjemontage AS and 
Linjemontage Service Nordic AB. 

During the year under review, Kalpataru Satpura Transco Private 
Limited has ceased to be Subsidiary Company. 

During the year under review, no new company have become or 
ceased to be Associate Company or Joint Venture Company of 
your Company.

Accordingly, as on the date of this Report your Company have 23 
direct and indirect subsidiaries and 2 joint venture Companies.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 129 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, your Company has placed Consolidated Financial 
Statements before the members for its approval. Further, 
pursuant to provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 
2013, your Company will make available the Annual Accounts 
of the Subsidiary Companies and the related information 
to any Members of the Company who may be interested in 
obtaining the same. The Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary 
Companies are also uploaded on the website of the Company i.e.  
www.kalpatarupower.com and will also be kept open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of your Company and that of 
the respective Subsidiary Company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The Consolidated Financial Statements presented by your 
Company include the financial results of its Subsidiary Companies, 
Associate and Joint Venture Companies. 



81

C O R P O R AT E 
O V E R V I E W

M A N A G E M E N T 
R E P O R T S

S TAT U T O R Y 
R E P O R T S

F I N A N C I A L 
S TAT E M E N T S

DIVESTMENT / MONETIZATION OF TRANSMISSION 
LINE SPV’s

On July 03, 2019, your Company entered into binding agreements 
with CLP India Private Limited to sell its stake in 3 (Three) power 
transmission assets namely, Kalpataru Satpura Transco Private 
Limited (KSTPL), Alipurduar Transmission Limited (ATL) and 
Kohima Mariani Transmission Limited (KMTL) (referred jointly as 
SPVs), for an estimated enterprise value of H 3,275 Crore. The 
transaction was subject to requisite approvals and compliances. 
The transaction for ATL and KMTL was to be effective post 
Commercial Operation Date (COD). The Company has completed 
the sale of its entire stake in KSTPL on November 20, 2019. In 
January, 2020, ATL achieved COD of the Transmission Line Project 
by successfully commissioning residual Element 1 - Alipurduar – 
Siliguri Line of the Project. However, due to non-fulfilment of the 
conditions precedent as stipulated in the binding agreements, 
Share Purchase and Shareholders Agreement for sale of stake in 
ATL was terminated w.e.f. May 01, 2020. Your Company is now 
actively pursuing and evaluating other opportunities to sell its 
stake in ATL to other suitable investor(s). Further, KMTL Project 
is progressing well and is expected to be commissioned on time. 
Furthermore, your Company is actively pursuing and evaluating 
opportunities to sell its stake to suitable investor(s) in Jhajjar KT 
Transco Pvt Ltd (JKTPL), which has been operating since March, 
2012 and wherein your Company holds 49.72% stake.

PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT 

Your Company purchased 1,46,45,499 equity shares of H 10 
each representing 19.94% of the equity share capital of Shree 
Shubham Logistics Limited from its existing shareholder i.e. Tano 
India Private Equity Fund II for an aggregate consideration of ~ H 
64.66 Crore paid for consideration other than cash i.e. by issuing 
12,54,900 equity shares of the Company at a price of H 515.25 
per share on preferential allotment basis after obtaining approval 
of shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting 
held on July 30, 2019. 

BUY BACK OF EQUITY SHARES

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on  
May 20, 2020 approved the buy-back by the Company of its 
equity shares of face value of H 2/- (Rupees Two) each (“Equity 
Shares”) from the open market through the stock exchange 
mechanism in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018, and the 
Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable rules / law, at a 
maximum price of H 275/- (Rupees Two Hundred and Seventy 

Five only) per Equity Share (“Maximum Buyback Price”) payable 
in cash, for an aggregate maximum amount not exceeding  
H 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crore Only).

DIRECTORS 

At the Annual General Meeting held on July 30, 2019, the 
shareholders approved appointment of Mr. Sanjay Dalmia  
(DIN: 03469908) as an Executive Director on rotational basis 
for a tenure of 3 years w.e.f. August 8, 2018. The shareholders 
also approved re-appointment of Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta  
(DIN: 00051497), Mr. Vimal Bhandari (DIN: 00001318), 
Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri (DIN: 00053563) and Mr. K. V. Mani  
(DIN: 00533148) as Independent Directors of the Company for 
a second term of 5 consecutive years w.e.f. April 1, 2019. Your 
Board is of opinion that the Directors re-appointed posseses 
integrity, expertise, experience and proficiency of that of an 
Independent Director.

In its meeting held on March 4, 2020, the Board of Directors, 
at the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, has approved the re-appointment of Mr. Manish 
Mohnot (DIN: 01229696) as Managing Director & CEO of the 
Company for a period of 5 years effective from April 1, 2020 
subject to approval of shareholders of the Company. 

Further, the Board of Directors at the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, re-appointed Ms. 
Anjali Seth (DIN: 05234352) as an Independent Director of the 
Company for a second term of 5 consecutive years w.e.f. 19th 
May, 2020 subject to approval of shareholders of the Company.

Your Company has received declarations from all the 
Independent Directors confirming that they meet with the criteria 
of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and under Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. Further, pursuant to Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 
2013, all the Directors have provided declarations in Form DIR- 8 
that they have not been disqualified to act as a Director.

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Imtiaz 
Kanga (DIN: 00136272) being the longest in the office shall 
retire at the ensuing AGM and being eligible for re-appointment, 
offers himself for reappointment.

A brief resume of directors being appointed / re-appointed along 
with the nature of their expertise, their shareholding in your 
Company and other details as stipulated under Regulation 36 (3) 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is appended as an annexure to the Notice of 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met Six (6) times during the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2020 on May 9, 2019, July 2, 2019, July 30, 2019, 
November 6, 2019, February 10, 2020 and March 4, 2020. 

The number of Meetings of the Board that each Director attended 
is provided in the Report on Corporate Governance.

COMMITTEES

Your Company has several Committees which have been 
established as a part of best corporate governance practices 
and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant 
provisions of applicable laws and statues.

The Board has constituted following Committees.

•	 Audit Committee

•	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

•	 Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

•	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

•	 Risk Management Committee

•	 Share Transfer Committee

•	 Executive Committee

The details with respect to the compositions, powers, roles, 
terms of reference etc. of relevant Committees are given in detail 
in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ of your Company which 
forms part of this Report. The dates on which Meeting of Board 
Committees were held during the financial year under review 
and the number of Meetings of the Board Committees that 
each Director attended is provided in the ‘Report on Corporate 
Governance’. The minutes of the Meetings of all Committees are 
circulated to the Board for discussion / noting / ratification.

During the year, all recommendation of the committees were 
approved by the Board.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

Mr. Ram Patodia was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) 
of the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2019. 

Mr. Basant Kumar Parasramka, Interim Compliance Officer and 
Interim Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company superannuated on October 3, 2019 and accordingly 
ceased to be Company Secretary and Compliance officer on 
October 3, 2019. Consequently, the Company designated Mr. 
Rajeev Kumar as Compliance Officer in terms of Regulation 6 

of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 effective from October 4, 
2019. Further, the Board of Directors at the recommendation 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, approved the 
appointment of Mr. Rajeev Kumar (Membership No. FCS 5297) as 
Company Secretary & Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
w.e.f. November 6, 2019 in terms of the provisions of Section 
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Mr. Manish Mohnot, Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Ram Patodia, 
Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Rajeev Kumar, Company Secretary 
are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) as per provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning 
of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the 
disclosures required as per Rule 8 (5) (v) & (vi) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to your Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company believes that robust Corporate Governance 
is critical for enhancing and retaining stakeholder’s trust and 
confidence. Your Company always ensures that its performance 
goals and targets are achieved in compliance with its sound 
corporate governance practices. The efforts of your Company 
are always focused on long term value creation. Inherent to 
such an objective is to continuously engage and deliver value 
to all its stakeholders including members, customers, partners, 
employees, lenders and the society at large. 

The Report on Corporate Governance, as stipulated under 
Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached. The Report 
on Corporate Governance also contains certain disclosures 
required under Companies Act, 2013.

A certificate from M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Statutory Auditors of the 
Company confirming compliance to the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is annexed to 
Report on Corporate Governance.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As per Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate section 
on Management Discussion and Analysis Report outlining the 
business of your Company forms part of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Your Company has formed a CSR Committee as per the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. On recommendation 
of CSR Committee, the Board of Directors’ of your Company has 
approved the CSR Policy which is available on the website of 
your Company at www.kalpatarupower.com. The brief outline 
of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of your 
Company and the initiatives undertaken by your Company on 
CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure A of this 
report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 

As stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Business Responsibility 
Report describing the initiatives taken by the Company from an 
environmental, social and governance perspective forms part of 
this Annual Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The details of establishment of Vigil mechanism (“Whistle Blower 
Policy”) is given in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ of the 
Company which is annexed to this Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND 
THEIR ADEQUACY 

Internal Financial Controls are an integrated part of the risk 
management process, addressing financial risks and financial 
reporting risks. The Board has adopted policies and procedures 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

Assurance on the effectiveness of internal financial controls is 
obtained through management reviews, continuous monitoring 
by functional experts and testing of the internal financial control 
systems by the internal auditors during the course of their audits. 
We believe that these systems provide reasonable assurance that 
our internal financial controls are designed effectively considering 
the nature of our industry and are operating as intended.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

M/s. B S R & Co. LLP (Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022), 
Chartered Accountants, have been appointed as Statutory 
Auditors’ of the Company at the 37th Annual General Meeting 
held on August 7, 2018 to hold office from the conclusion of 37th 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 42nd Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, subject to compliance of the 
various provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory Auditors’ comments on the Annual Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2020, both on 
Standalone and Consolidated basis, are self-explanatory and do 
not require any explanation as per provisions of Section 134(3)
(f) of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no qualifications, 
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by Statutory 
Auditors in their reports on the Standalone and the Consolidated 
Annual Financial Statements of the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT 
REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013, your Company had appointed Mr. Urmil Ved, Practising 
Company Secretary, Gandhinagar, as its Secretarial Auditor to 
conduct the Secretarial Audit of your Company for FY 2019-20. 
The Report of the Secretarial Auditor for the FY 2019-20 is 
annexed to this report as Annexure B. 

There were no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or 
disclaimer made by Secretarial Auditor in its report.

COST AUDITOR

The Company has maintained cost records as specified by 
Central Government under Section 148(1) of Companies Act, 
2013 and such records have been audited by the Cost Auditor 
pursuant to Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, the cost records in respect of Electricity and Steel 
business needs to be audited. In compliance to the above, the Board 
of Directors upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
appointed M/s. K. G. Goyal & Associates, Cost Accountants, as the 
Cost Auditor of your Company for the FY 2019-20. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 

Your Company has an elaborate Risk Management Framework, 
which is designed to enable risks to be identified, assessed and 
mitigated appropriately. Your Company monitors, manages and 
reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact 
its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. Your Company’s 
SOP’s, Organizational structure, management systems, code of 
conduct, policies and Values together govern how your Company 
conducts its business and manage associated risks.

The Risk Management framework enables the management to 
understand the risk environment and assess the specific risks 
and potential exposure to the Company, determine how to deal 
with these risks to manage overall potential exposure, monitor 
and seek assurance of the effectiveness of the management 
of these risks and intervene for improvement where necessary 
and report throughout the management chain upto the Risk 
Management Committee on a periodic basis about how risks 
are being monitored, managed, assured and improvements are 
made.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

A.	 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median 
employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of 
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time 
to time are forming part of this report as Annexure C1.

B.	 The statement containing particulars of employees as 
required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a 
separate annexure forming part of this report. However, 
this report and the accounts are being sent to the members 
excluding the said annexure. In terms of Section 136 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the said annexure is open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of your Company. Any 
member interested in obtaining a copy of the same may 
write to the Company Secretary.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

The criteria for performance evaluation and the statement 
indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation of the 
Board, its Committee and of individual Directors has been made 
are given in the “Report on Corporate Governance”, which 
forms part of this Report.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR 
DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE 
ATTRIBUTES AND INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR

Your Company‘s policy on remuneration for the Directors’, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees are forming part of 
this Report and is annexed as Annexure D1. The same is also 
placed on website of the Company www.kalpatarupower.com. 
There has been no change in the said Policy during the year 
under review. 

Your Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment including 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a director are forming part of this Report and is 
annexed as Annexure D2.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE INFLOW & 
OUTFLOW

Information required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (m) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto as Annexure E and 
forms part of this Report.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

In terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) 
Regulations, 2016, your Company has formulated Dividend 
Distribution Policy and the same is annexed to this report as 
Annexure F and is also available on the website of the Company 
i.e. www.kalpatarupower.com.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act 
2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 the extract of the Annual Return as 
at March 31, 2020 forms part of this report as Annexure G. The 
annual return referred to in Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 shall be placed on the website of the Company and 
can be accessed at www.kalpatarupower.com.

http://www.kalpatarupower.com
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given 
and securities provided along with the purpose for which the loan 
or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient 
are provided in the standalone financial statement (Please refer to 
Note No. 38 to the Standalone Financial Statements).

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 
WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the 
Company during the financial year with related parties were in 
its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 
During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract 
/ arrangement / transaction with related parties which could 
be considered material in accordance with the policy of the 
Company on materiality of related party transactions or which 
is required to be reported in Form No. AOC-2 in terms of Section 
134(3)(h) read with Section 188 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions is 
uploaded on the website of your Company and the link for the 
same is provided in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’. 
There were no materially significant related party transactions 
which could have potential conflict with interest of the Company  
at large.

Attention of Members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions 
with related parties set out in Note No. 42 of Standalone 
Financial Statements, forming part of the Annual Report.

STOCK OPTIONS

Your Company does not have any stock options schemes.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE SEXUAL 
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 
2013

Your Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the 
part of any executive which may fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual 
Harassment’ at workplace and is fully committed to uphold 
and maintain the dignity of every women executive working in 
your Company. The Anti Sexual Harassment Policy provides for 
protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace 
and for prevention and redressal of such complaints.

Your company has complied with provisions relating to the 
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. There were no complaints pending 
as on the beginning of the financial year and no new complaints 
were received during the financial year under review. 

POLICY ON CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS

As an organization, your Company places a great importance 
in the way business is conducted and the way each employee 
performs his/her duties. Your Company encourages transparency 
in all its operations, responsibility for delivery of results, 
accountability for the outcomes of our actions, participation in 
ethical business practices and being responsive to the needs of 
people and society. Towards this end, your Company has laid 
down a Kalpataru Code of Conduct (“KCoC”) applicable to all the 
employees of your Company and conducted various awareness 
sessions across the Company. The Code provides for the matters 
related to governance, compliance, ethics and other matters.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS AGAINST 
COMPANY

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators 
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and 
your Company’s operation in future.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to requirement under Section 134(3)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (Act), your Directors’ confirm that:

(a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 
on March 31, 2020, the applicable accounting standards 
read with requirement set out under Schedule III to the Act, 
have been followed and there are no material departures 
from the same;

(b)	 they have selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2020 and of the 
profit of the company for the year ended on that date;

(c)	 they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
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(d)	 they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern 
basis; 

(e)	 they, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed 
by the company and that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and are operating effectively and

(f)	 they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and 
compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, 
work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial 
auditors and external consultants, including audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory 
auditors, and the reviews performed by management and the 
relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the 
board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial 
controls were adequate and effective during FY 2019-20.

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and 
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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Annexure A to Board’s Report

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

	 Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited’s CSR Policy

	 Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited (“KPTL”) has always been at forefront of Voluntary CSR. The provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 have made it imperative to institutionalize the CSR activities. The objective of your Company’s CSR policy is to lay down 
the guiding principles for proper functioning of CSR activities to attain sustainable development of the society around the area of 
operations of the Company. Your Company’s social responsibility policy focuses on using the capabilities of business to improve 
lives and contribute to sustainable living, through contributions to local communities and society at large.

	 Your Company undertook various activities during the year under review in line with its CSR Policy and as prescribed in Schedule 
VII to the Companies Act, 2013. Apart from long term ongoing projects, the Company has undertaken various other programme 
and projects under its CSR Policy in the field of Healthcare including Preventive Healthcare, Ensuring environmental sustainability, 
Promoting Education, Flood Relief activities, Promotion to Technology incubators, etc. Further, the Company also ran CSR Project 
for Combating and Containing Novel Corona Virus (CoVID-19) through various relief activities. Your Company also incorporated 
a Section 8 Company limited by Guarantee named as Kalpataru Foundation to carry out CSR activities of Kalpataru Group at a 
consolidated level. 

	 CSR Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website (weblink https://www.kalpatarupower.com/)

2.	 The Composition of the CSR Committee:

	 The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of Directors. CSR Committee 
is formed as per the applicable laws of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Committee is responsible for the implementation/
monitoring and review of the policy and various projects/activities undertaken under the policy. 

	 The Members of the CSR committee are:

	 a)	 Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta	 -	 Chairman of Committee (Independent Director)

	 b)	 Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot	 -	 Executive Chairman

	 c)	 Mr. Parag Munot	 -	 Non-executive Director

	 d)	 Mr. Manish Mohnot	 -	 Managing Director & CEO

3.	 Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years: J 31,745.75 lakhs calculated as per CSR Rules

4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): J 634.92 lakhs

5.	 Details of CSR Spent during the financial year.

	 a.	 Total amount to be spent for the financial year: J 634.92 lakhs

	 b.	 Amount unspent, if any: 258.48 lakhs
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c.	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

Sr. 
No.

CSR Project or activity 
identified

Sector in which 
the project is 
covered

Projects or 
Programs
(1)	 Local Area or 

Other
(2)	 Specify the 

State and 
district where 
projects or 
programs was 
undertaken

Amount Outlay 
(Budget) 
project or 
Program wise**
(J in lakhs)

Amount spent on 
the Projects or 
programs (Sub 
heads):*
(1)	 Direct 

Expenditure 
on projects 
or programs

(2)	 Overheads
(J in lakhs)

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period
(J in lakhs)

Amount Spent: 
Direct or through 
implementing 
agency

1. Provide specialized healthcare 
services like non-surgical 
consultation/checkup camps, 
awareness camps by specialists 
etc. through the “Kalpa Seva 
Arogya Kendra – Lotus House, 
Mumbai”

Promoting Health 
Care

Mumbai, 
Maharashtra

341.55@ 10.00 341.55 Kalpataru Welfare 
Trust

2. Provide medical services to 
poor and needy through the 
“Kalpa Seva Arogya Kendra - 
Gandhinagar”

Promoting Health 
Care 

Gandhinagar, 
Gujarat

63.50 52.81 247.77 Kalpataru Welfare 
Trust

3. Repair and Renovation of 
different Rural Child care 
Anganwadi Centres (approx. 
21) to combat child hunger and 
malnutrition

Promoting Health 
Care, Eradicating 
hunger and 
malnutrition 

Alipurduar, West 
Bengal

25.00 24.35 24.35 Direct

4. Upliftment of Rural &
Tribal Poor and Urban
Slum Dwellers by curing
avoidable blindness
through “Project
Rashtriya Netra Yagna”

Promoting 
Healthcare 

North eastern 
states of India and 
Tamil Nadu

15.00 15.00 55.00 Vision Foundation 
of India

5. Conservation of water and 
Development of Green Belt 
through Canal cleaning/
deepening, Plantation etc.

Ensuring 
environmental 
sustainability

Raipur, Chattisgarh 23.57 11.41 11.41 Direct 

6. Sanitation Project through 
Construction / Rehabilitation 
of Urinals and Toilets and  
Education promotion initiative 
like Construction of Boundary 
Wall at Primary School

Promoting 
Education, 
Sanitation 

Jalpaiguri and 
Alipurduar, West 
Bengal

14.80 14.69 14.69 Direct 

7. Flood Relief Operations in the 
wake of incessant rains and 
widespread flooding

Eradicating 
Hunger, 
Promoting 
Healthcare

Kolhapur, 
Maharashtra

10.00 10.00 10.00 Maharashtra 
Chamber of 
Housing Industry 

8. Education Promotion 
by contributing VAN for 
commutation by needy girls 
children to School

Promoting 
Education

Tonk, Rajasthan 8.00 6.64 6.64 Direct

9. Setting up Mini Science
Laboratory consisting of 
interactive Mathematics &
Science working models at 
Government Schools

Promoting 
Education

Raipur, Chattisgarh 30.48 19.74 19.74 Direct
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Sr. 
No.

CSR Project or activity 
identified

Sector in which 
the project is 
covered

Projects or 
Programs
(1)	 Local Area or 

Other
(2)	 Specify the 

State and 
district where 
projects or 
programs was 
undertaken

Amount Outlay 
(Budget) 
project or 
Program wise**
(J in lakhs)

Amount spent on 
the Projects or 
programs (Sub 
heads):*
(1)	 Direct 

Expenditure 
on projects 
or programs

(2)	 Overheads
(J in lakhs)

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period
(J in lakhs)

Amount Spent: 
Direct or through 
implementing 
agency

10. Infrastructure rehabilitation 
at Teachers Training College 
through new furniture etc.

Promoting 
Education

Jodhpur, Rajasthan 5.37 5.37 5.37 Netraheen Vikas 
Sansthan

11. Promotion of accounting 
education at Jai Narayan Vyas 
University, Jodhpur

Promoting 
Education

Jodhpur, Rajasthan 5.00 5.00 5.00 The Indian 
Accounting 
Association

12. Preventive Health Care for Poor 
/ Tribal Children

Promoting Health 
Care

Gandhinagar and 
Aravalli, Gujarat

5.00 3.00 8.00 Shri Gajanan Seva 
Samiti

13. Promotion of Indian Culture 
through educational, literary 
artistic and other educational 
activities to be conducted 
at “Sanskar Kendra” or by 
organizing camps which are 
attended by public at large 
without any discrimination of 
caste, religion, race and sex.

Protection of 
Culture

Mumbai, 
Maharashtra 

26.00 26.00 26.00 Gajendra 
Foundation

14. Contribution for supporting 
various activities of Atal 
Incubation Centre which 
promotes startups working in 
areas of water conservation, 
Swachh Bharat Abhiyaan, 
affordable healthcare, Electric 
Mobility and Renewable energy

Contribution 
to technology 
incubators

Thane, Maharashtra 25.00 25.00 25.00 Rambhau Mhalgi 
Prabodhini

15. Supporting Educational 
Courses being run at University 
of Mumbai

Promoting 
Education

Mumbai, 
Maharashtra 

2.00 2.00 2.00 Jain Academy 
Education 
Research Centre 
Promotion Trust

16. Support for the residential 
homes by the name ‘Apna 
Ghar Ashram’, where all 
facilities like treatment, food, 
clothing, personal care, and 
medical/surgical treatments 
are provided free of cost to 
homeless, helpless, hopeless, 
destitute persons generally 
found in very harsh and painful 
conditions on roadsides, railway 
stations, bus stands, religious 
and other public places.

Eradicating 
Hunger, 
Promoting 
Healthcare

Bharatpur, 
Rajasthan 

5.00 5.00 5.00 Maa Madhuri 
Brij Varis Sewa 
Sadan Apna Ghar 
Sanstha (Apna 
Ghar)

17. School Bus for bringing needy 
deaf children to School

Promoting 
Education

Jodhpur, Rajasthan 14.83 14.83 14.83 Jodhpur Badhir 
Kalyan Samiti
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Sr. 
No.

CSR Project or activity 
identified

Sector in which 
the project is 
covered

Projects or 
Programs
(1)	 Local Area or 

Other
(2)	 Specify the 

State and 
district where 
projects or 
programs was 
undertaken

Amount Outlay 
(Budget) 
project or 
Program wise**
(J in lakhs)

Amount spent on 
the Projects or 
programs (Sub 
heads):*
(1)	 Direct 

Expenditure 
on projects 
or programs

(2)	 Overheads
(J in lakhs)

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period
(J in lakhs)

Amount Spent: 
Direct or through 
implementing 
agency

18. Combating and Containing 
Novel Corona Virus (CoVID-19) 
through various relief activities 

Promoting 
Healthcare, 
Eradicating 
hunger, Disaster 
management 

PAN India 250.00 90.00 90.00 Implementing 
Agencies (i.e. 
Kalpataru Welfare 
Trust, Akshay 
Patra Foundation, 
Munot Foundation, 
Paropkar, 
Sangarsh Ek 
Sevabhavi 
Sansthan)

19. Providing support and 
rehabilitation to people 
suffering from the debilitating 
condition of Parkinson’s 
disease through PDMDS 
support centres

Promoting 
Healthcare

Mumbai, 
Maharashtra 

10.00 10.00 10.00 Parkinson’s
Disease and
Movement
Disorder Society 
(PDMDS)

20. Research activities and 
Diagnosis of Cancer Patients

Promoting 
Healthcare

Ahmedabad, 
Gujarat

25.00 25.00 25.00 Gujarat Cancer 
Society

21. Expenditure on administrative 
overheads

Administrative 
expenses

- 0.60 0.60# 6.77 -

TOTAL 905.70 376.44 954.12
	 * The amount indicated in this column above is the direct expenditure on project or programs.

	 # The amount indicated in this column above is the overhead expenditure on project or programs.

	 ** Budget Outlay represents the amount the Company has budgeted in its CSR plan

	 @ Amount planned to be invested over a 3 year period of FY 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20.

6.	 In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount 
in its Board’s Report.

	 The Company has identified certain long term projects which are under its evaluation. The Company has earmarked the unspent 
amount and once the CSR project is crystalised, the Company shall ensure spending of the unspent amount in the coming 
financial year(s).

7.	 A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, 
is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

	 The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and 
Policy of the Company.

	 Mr. Manish Mohnot	 Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta
	 (DIN: 01229696)	 (DIN: 00051497)
	 Managing Director & CEO	 Chairman of CSR Committee

Annexure A to Board’s Report
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Annexure B to Board’s Report
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members, 
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited, 
CIN: L40100GJ1981PLC004281 
GIDC Estate, Sector – 28, 
Gandhinagar, 
Gujarat- 382028.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited 
(hereinafter called the company) for the year ended on March 31, 
2020. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 
me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit; I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2020 (Audit Period) complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 and made available 
to me, according to the provisions of: 

(i) 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(ii) 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) 
and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) 	The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-
laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) 	Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;

(v) 	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):-

	 a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; 

	 b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

	 c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018);

	 d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (during 
the year under review not applicable to the Company);

	 e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

	 f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; 

	 g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting 
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (during the year 
under review not applicable to the Company);

	 h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back 
of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (during the year 
under review not applicable to the Company) and 

	 i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of 
the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

The management has identified and confirmed the following 
laws as being specifically applicable to the Company: 

(a) 	 The Electricity Act, 2003, the Central Electricity Authority 
Regulations and the Rajasthan Electricity Regulatory 
Commission Regulations. 

(b) 	 The Indian Boilers Act, 1923 and rules framed there under. 

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system 
prevailing in the Company and on the examination of relevant 
documents and records on test check basis the Company has 
complied with above mentioned specific laws and regulations. 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is 
duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors including a 
Woman Independent Director. The changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in 
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by 
the Chairman the decisions of the board were unanimous and no 
dissenting views have been recorded.

I further report that, based on review of compliance mechanism 
established by the Company and on the basis of Compliance 
Certificates issued by the Managing Director & CEO and 
Company Secretary of the Company and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors at their meetings, I am of the opinion that 
the management has adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that, during the audit period the company had 
the following specific events/actions having major bearing on 
the company’s affairs in pursuance to above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

i. 	 Pursuant to provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Act, 
Members at Annual General Meeting dt. July 30, 2019 gave 
authority to the Board for creation of mortgage, charge, 
security etc. for an amount not exceeding in aggregate  
H 12,000 Crore (Rupees Twelve Thousand Crore only).

ii.	 Company had on August 12, 2019 allotted 12,54,900 
Equity Shares of face value of H 2/- each at a premium of 
H 513.25/- per share aggregating to H 64,65,87,225/- to 
Tano India Private Equity Fund II (Tano) for consideration 
other than cash i.e. in consideration of 1,46,45,499 Equity 
Shares held by Tano in Shree Shubham Logistics Limited.

Urmil Ved
Practicing Company Secretary
(ICSI Unique Code L1996GJ080100) 
FCS No. 8094, CP No. 2521
Peer Review Cert. No.: 597/2019	 Date: May 20, 2020
ICSI UDIN: F008094B000259862	 Place: Gandhinagar

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is 
annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this report.

Annexure B to Board’s Report
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Annexure-A

To, 
The Members, 
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited, 
CIN: L40100GJ1981PLC004281
Plot 101, Part – III, 
GIDC Estate, Sector – 28, 
Gandhinagar, 
Gujarat - 382028. 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record, device proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws, rules and regulations and to ensure that the systems 
are adequate and operate effectively is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on 
my audit. 

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as were 
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
verification was done on the random test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I 
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide 
a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of 
financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. My examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on random test basis. 

5.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.

Urmil Ved
Practicing Company Secretary
(ICSI Unique Code L1996GJ080100) 
FCS No. 8094, CP No. 2521
Peer Review Cert. No.: 597/2019	 Date: May 20, 2020
ICSI UDIN: F008094B000259862	 Place: Gandhinagar
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Annexure C1 to Board’s Report
INFORMATION PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 
197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014
(i)	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the 

Financial year 2019-20 and ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the Financial year 2019-20 are as under:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director/KMP and 
Designation

Remuneration of Director 
/ KMP for Financial year 

2019-20 (J  in Crore)

% change in 
Remuneration in the 

Financial Year 2019-20

Ratio of remuneration of 
each Director  to median 

remuneration of employees

1 Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot
Executive Chairman 

11.90 -15.00% 166.67

2 Mr. Parag M. Munot
Promoter Director

1.33 -23.12% 18.63

3 Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta
Non Executive Independent Director

0.49 -16.95% 6.86

4 Mr. Vimal Bhandari
Non Executive Independent Director

0.34 -19.05% 4.76

5 Mr. Narayan K Seshadri
Non Executive Independent Director

0.33 -17.50% 4.62

6 Mr. K. V. Mani
Non Executive Independent Director

0.15 -11.76% 2.10

7 Ms. Anjali Seth
Non Executive Independent Director 

0.18 -14.29% 2.52

8 Mr. Imtiaz Kanga
Promoter Director

0.11 -26.67% 1.54

9 Mr. Manish Mohnot
Managing Director & CEO

10.03 -15.50% 140.48

10 Mr. Sanjay Dalmia #

Executive Director
4.63 -12.64% 64.85

11 Mr. Ram Patodia
Chief Financial Officer 

1.43 ## NA

12 Mr. Rajeev Kumar
Company Secretary 

0.46* ** NA

13 Mr. Basant Kumar Parasramka
Company Secretary

0.81* *** NA

	 #	 While calculating % increase in remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Dalmia, remuneration for whole year FY 2018-19 is taken which also includes his remuneration 
as Director (International Business) of the Company from April 1, 2018 to August 7, 2018.

	 ##	 Details not stated as Mr. Ram Patodia was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2019.
	 *	 Remuneration is for part of FY 2019-20
	 ** 	 Details not stated as appointment made as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. November 6, 2019.
	 ***	Details not stated as he superannuated on October 3, 2019 and accordingly ceased to be Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f  October 3, 2019.

ii) 	 The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year under review was H 7.14 lakhs. 

iii) 	 In the Financial year under review, there was an increase of 8.90% in the median remuneration of employees.

iv) 	 There were 3,531 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2020.

	 Note: The above Remuneration of Mr. Rajeev Kumar, Company Secretary is for the period from August 01, 2020. His remuneration for the period from his 
appointment as Company Secretary is H 27.50 lakhs.
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v) 	 Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year 
i.e. 2019-20 was 8.90% whereas there was decrease in managerial remuneration and percentage decrease in the managerial 
remuneration for FY 2019-20 was 14.79%. The decrease in the managerial remuneration is attributable to the impact of 
COVID-19 on financial performance of the Company. 

(vi) 	It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Mofatraj P. Munot
Place: Mumbai	 Executive Chairman
Date: May 20, 2020	 DIN: 00046905
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Annexure D1 to Board’s Report
COMPANY’S POLICY ON REMUNERATION FOR THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
1.	 PURPOSE

	 At Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as “KPTL”), Management is committed to 
conducting its business in accordance with the applicable 
laws, rules and regulations and with the highest standards 
of business ethics and employee relations.

	 A transparent, fair and reasonable process for determining 
the appropriate remuneration  at  all  levels  of  the  Company  
is  required  to  ensure  that Shareholders  remain  informed  
and  confident  in  the  management  of  the Company. The 
Company also understands the importance of attracting 
and maintaining high quality individuals from directors right 
through to support staff.

	 This remuneration policy is being positioned on the basis 
of overall assessment of the size of the company, future 
prospect, organization structure and complexity of its 
activities. The purpose is to have a remuneration policy 
that is consistent with and promotes sound and effective 
risk management, and which is aligned with the Company’s 
strategy, values and goals and the interests of stake holders 
and investors.

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
developed this policy keeping in view the following aspects.

	 (a)	 The level and composition of remuneration should be 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
directors and employees of the quality required to run 
the company successfully.

	 (b)	 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear 
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

	 (c)	 Maintain appropriate balance between fixed and incentive 
pay in remuneration to directors, key managerial 
personnel and senior management reflecting short and 
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the company and its goals.

	 (d)	 Align the growth of the Company and development of 
employees and accelerate the performance.

	 (e)	 To motivate and retain the quality employees and 
attract other highly qualified executives to enter into 
KPTL’s service, when require.

	 (f)	 To give a rational and fair treatment to employees, and 
to recognize importance of every one with team spirit 
and enhancing the value of human wealth.

	 (g)	 To create  a transparent system  of determining the 
appropriate  level of remuneration throughout all levels 
of the Company.

	 (h)	 Encourage people to perform to their highest level.

	 (i)	 Allow the Company to compete in each relevant 
employment market.

	 (j)	 Provide consistency in remuneration throughout the 
Company.

	 (k)	 Align  the  performance  of  the  business  with  the  
performance  of  key individuals and teams within the 
Company.

2.	 DEFINITIONS

	 (a)	 “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company for 
the time in force.

	 (b)	 “Company” or “KPTL” means “Kalpataru 
Power Transmission Limited”, having  
CIN L40100GJ1981PLC004281, and registered 
office at 101, Part III, G.I.D.C. Estate, Sector – 28, 
Gandhinagar – 382 028, Gujarat, India

	 (c)	 “Committee” or “NRC” means “Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee” of the Board of the 
Company, as may be reconstituted by the Board and as 
may be subsist from time to time.

	 (d)	 “Director” means person appointed as Director on 
the Board of the Company pursuant to the applicable 
provision of the Companies Act 2013 and includes 
independent Directors of the Company.

	 (e)	 “Division” or “Business Unit” or “Department” means 
every division of the Company viz Transmission Line 
(Domestic), Transmission Line – International, Railway, 
Biomass, Infra, ‘Accounts, Finance, Taxation, Secretarial 
and Legal’, P&M, Information Technology (IT), HR & Admin, 
Quality Management & MR, Procurement, Development, 
Health and Safety (EHS), Contracts, Business Development, 
BOT Projects, and also includes Division as renamed and 
new Divisions setup from time to time.

	 (f)	 “Department Head” or “Functional Head” or 
“Business Unit Head” or “BU Head” means Employee 
of the Company who are designated as such or in 
charge of one or more Department or Business Units 
and person who are designated as Head for the time 
being, by the Executive Director or CEO.
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	 (g)	 “Executive Director” means person appointed as 
Whole-time director, Executive Director, Managing 
Director, Deputy Managing Director and Joint Managing 
Director and holding office as such pursuant to the 
applicable provision of the Companies Act 2013.

	 (h)	 “Employees” Employees means and includes person 
who is confirmed for full time employment of the 
Company time to time.

	 (i)	 “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” means 
person as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and 
as appointed and in employment of the Company as 
a Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or 
Manager, Whole Time Director, Chief Financial Officer 
and Company Secretary.

	 (j)	 “Remuneration Policy” or “this Policy” means this 
Policy for remuneration of Directors, KMP and employees 
of the Company as set out hereby, recommended by 
the Committee and approved by Board of KPTL, as 
amended from time to time.

	 (k)	 ‘‘Senior Management’’ means personnel in 
employment of the Company who are members  of 
core  management team excluding  Board of Directors 
and normally this shall comprise all members of 
management one level below chief executive officer/
managing director/whole time director/manager 
(including chief executive officer/manager, in case they 
are not part of the board) and shall specifically include 
company secretary and chief financial officer.

	 (l)	 “Steering Committee” means Committee comprising 
of  Managing Director & CEO, Executive Director, Chief 
Financial Officer, President (HR & Admin) & respective 
BU Head 

		  Unless the context require otherwise, words importing 
the singular include the plural and vice versa and 
pronouns importing a gender include each of the 
masculine, feminine and neuter genders and shall be 
interpreted in the wide sense in spirit of this Policy.

3.	 EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE POLICY

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has approved 
this Policy in its meeting held on March 28, 2015 and the Board 
has approved this Policy in its meeting held on March 28, 2015.

	 This Policy shall come in to effect from March 28, 2015.

	 The first amendment to this Policy was carried out by the 
Board of Directors at its meeting held on March 22, 2019 
to be effective from April 1, 2019 at the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 This policy is framed and amended as per requirement of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 ((as amended by SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 
to be effective from April 1, 2019)) (erstwhile as required 
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered by the 
Company with the Stock Exchanges).

4.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 The Board has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Board presently comprising of 3 directors 
including 2 independent Director. Existing remuneration 
committee has been renamed and reconstituted pursuant to the 
provision of the Companies Act 2013 and Listing Agreement. 
The NRC are playing statutory and consultative role in building 
appropriate remuneration structure in the Company keeping 
in view recognition and appreciation of experience, expertise, 
advise, efforts and contribution provided by the Directors, 
KMP, Senior Management and dedication of Employees. While 
strategize the remuneration structure, the Committee would 
also consider that composition of remuneration needs to 
be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
Directors and senior management of the quality required to 
run the Company successfully.

	 In it’s consultative role and guiding force, the Committee 
will provide its recommendations to the Board in respect 
to matter and tasks as may be assigned by the Board time 
to time. The Committee may recommend to the Board as 
how to effectively structure and facilitate a remuneration 
strategy, which will meet the needs of the Company and 
advice changes if any required to this Policy.

5.	 MONITORING AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS 
POLICY

	 The Committee implements and monitors this Policy. The 
Committee may take assistance of HR Head, HR team and 
Senior Management as may be necessary in respect to 
implement and review of this Policy. The Committee may seek 
attendance of Department Heads and obtain relevant data, 
details and analysis as the Committee may think necessary. 
The Committee may also consult the experts’ advice wherever 
they deem necessary in discharge of their duty.
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6.	 REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

	 The Company follow the following structure in respect 
to remuneration of Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) and 
are paid remuneration by way of Commission and Sitting 
Fees within the overall statutory limits prescribed in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules prescribed in that regards.

	 The distribution of Commission amongst the NEDs is placed 
before the Board. The  Commission  is  distributed  on  the  
basis  of  their  attendance and contribution at the Board 
and certain Committee Meetings, as well as time spent on 
operational matters other than at the meetings.

	 6.1	 Sitting fees

		  The Non-Executive Directors are paid Sitting Fees. The 
Company pays sitting fees of H 75,000/- per meeting to 
the NEDs for attending the meetings of the Board and  
H 25,000/- for attending meeting of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, CSR Committee 
and Risk Management Committee.

	 6.2	 Reimbursement of expenses

		  The Company also bear / reimburse travelling and 
other expenses to outstation Directors for attending 
meetings and expenses in relation to attending matters 
or business of the Company.

	 6.3	 Remuneration

		  The Company may upon passing of resolution by the 
Board of Directors of the Company consider payment 
of remuneration to Non-Executive Directors by way of 
commission as a percentage of profits on an annual 
basis, pursuant to the applicable provision(s) of the 
Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereto, SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (erstwhile Listing Agreement) 
and approval of shareholders of the Company. The 
Commission would be at a rate not exceeding 1% or 
3% per annum of the profits of the Company, as may be 
applicable to the Company, as per the provision of the 
Companies Act 2013 and as approved by shareholders 
from time to time.

		  On recommendation of the Committee, the Board may 
consider appropriate additional remuneration to such 
Non-executive Director who has devoted considerable 

time and efforts in relation to business and matters 
of the Company. Said remuneration would be within 
overall limit of commission or remuneration to Non-
executive directors and to the extent permitted under 
the law.  If  there  will  be  any  proposal  from  the  
Board,  the  Committee  may recommend different 
remuneration / fees for different class of Directors, 
keeping in view the requirement of the Company and 
statutory provisions.

		  Effective from April 1, 2019, the approval of 
shareholders by special resolution shall be obtained 
every year, in which the annual remuneration payable 
to a single non-executive director exceeds fifty per cent 
of the total annual remuneration payable to all non-
executive directors, giving details of the remuneration 
thereof as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 6.4	 In case of no profit or inadequate profit

		  As per the provision of the Companies Act and rules 
related thereto

	 6.5	 Review of remuneration of Non-Executive 
Directors

		  The Committee shall evaluate the remunerations of 
Non-executive Directors at such interval as it thinks 
appropriate or as may be requested by the Board 
time to time. While recommending to the Board for 
restructure or increase in remuneration of Non-
Executive Directors, the Committee shall keep in view 
the following factors in seriatim weightage.

		  a)	 Financial performance and net-worth of the 
Company as per audited financial statement for 
last 3 financial years.

		  b)	 Value of order book position and operational 
performance track in last two years.

		  c)	 Performance of the Board as whole considering 
the evaluation of the Board done by Independent 
Directors.

		  d)	 Diversity and composition of Board considering 
experience, expertise, technical knowledge and 
skills relating to business and future plan of the 
Company, position held in other organizations and 
directorship in other companies.
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7.	 REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

	 The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, 
perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and profit 
linked commission and/or performance incentives (variable 
component) to Executive Directors of the Company. The 
remuneration to executive directors is as approved by 
shareholders of the Company. The Board proposes to 
shareholders the remuneration including appropriate 
mix of fixed and variable components and other terms 
for appointment of the Executive Directors, considering 
qualifications, experience, technical skills, requirement 
of the Company and prevailing market conditions. While 
determining the remuneration proposal, the Board also 
considers the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.

	 As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the fees or compensation 
payable to executive directors who are promoters or 
members of the promoter group, shall be subject to the 
approval of the shareholders by special resolution in general 
meeting, if- 

	 -	 the annual remuneration payable to such executive 
director exceeds H 5 Crore or 2.5 per cent of the net 
profits of the listed entity, whichever is higher; or 

	 -	 where there is more than one such director, the 
aggregate annual remuneration to such directors 
exceeds 5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity:

	 Provided that the approval of the shareholders under this 
provision shall be valid only till the expiry of the term of 
such director.

	 Explanation: For the purposes of this clause, net profits 
shall be calculated as per section 198 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

	 7.1	Fixed Component

		  The Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of 
monthly salary / fixed component, as per preapproved 
terms.

	 7.2	 Variable Component

		  The Executive Directors are also paid remuneration by 
way of incentive / commission as percentage of profit of 
the Company as per audited financial statement, within 

range as approved by the shareholders. Commission is 
calculated with reference to net profits of the Company in 
a particular financial year and is determined by the Board 
of Directors at the end of the financial year based on the 
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, subject to overall ceilings and applicable 
statutory provision stipulated in Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions 
as may be applicable time to time.

		  Amount payable to Executive Director is determined 
based on appointment terms, performance criteria as 
the Board may considers appropriate keeping in view 
the performance of the Company for relevant financial 
year in terms of the turnover and net profits, cash profit, 
performance and contribution by particular Executive 
Director, achievements, critical projects performance, 
remuneration paid in previous year, industry standard, 
and other factors as the Board may think appropriate. 
The Board also considers the recommendation from 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

	 7.3	 Facilities

		  The Company shall provide such facilities as may be 
necessary in relation to perform his office duties and to 
attend operation and business of the Company.

		  Remuneration paid to the Directors is mentioned in the 
Annual Report of the Company.

	 7.4	Remuneration in case of no profit or inadequate 
profit

		  In case, there will be no profit or inadequate profit in 
any financial year, remuneration to Executive Directors 
will be as per the appointment terms and determined 
by the Board, subject to applicable provision of the 
Companies Act, 2013 / applicable law.

8.	 STOCK OPTIONS TO EMPLOYEES / DIRECTORS

	 As and when desirable or requested by the Board, the 
Committee will perform function in respect to devising 
/ monitoring Employees Stock Schemes and give its 
recommendation about allotment of sweat equity shares, 
grant, vest and exercise of stock options and/or similar 
rewards to the eligible Directors and Employees, as may be 
permitted under the applicable Law or approved Schemes.
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9.	 PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIPS OR TRANSACTIONS

	 The Independent Directors of the Company do not have any 
pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company 
or its Holding Company, subsidiary Companies, Associate 
Companies or their promoters or directors except receiving 
Directors’ Remuneration in a manner prescribed in Section 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 or having transaction not 
exceeding ten per cent. of his / her total income or such 
amount as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013 from time to time.

10.	REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

	 The remuneration of senior management would be guided 
by the external competitiveness and internal parity through 
annual benchmarking surveys. The remuneration structure 
is broadly divided into fixed and variable components. The 
fixed component comprises salary, allowances, perquisites, 
PF etc. The variable component comprises annual 
performance of the Individual performance of employee, 
Business  and Company’s performance as a whole.

	 10.1	Review of Remuneration of Senior Management

		  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will 
review the remuneration of the Senior Management 
and recommend the same for approval of the Board. 

		  Internally, performance of Individual shall be assessed 
based on his KRA achieved. Variable Pay increase 
will be calculated using a combination of individual 
performance, Business Performance and organizational 
performance. Compensation shall also be determined 
based on identified skill sets critical to success of KPTL. As 
per prevailing process and practice of the Company, the 
Committee may recommend about increase, restructure 
and/or other suggestion in respect to remuneration of 
senior management as it thinks appropriate considering 
the Performance of Senior Management. 

	 10.2	Recommendation of the Committee

		  While reviewing and recommending the remuneration 
of Senior Management of the Company, the Committee 
shall ensure the following factors.

		  a)	 The level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate Senior Management members of the 
quality required to run the company successfully.

		  b)	 Relationship of remuneration to performance 
meets  appropriate performance benchmarks.

		  c)	 There should be appropriate balance between 
fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the company and its goals.

11.	REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

	 The Company believes that composition of remuneration of 
the Employees should be reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate Employees. The Company follows salary 
structure comprising fixed and variable components. The 
Steering Committee shall review and approve remuneration 
payable to other Employees (excluding Senior Management) 
annually. The following remuneration structure is being 
followed in the Company.

	 a)	 Fixed Components comprises salary, allowances, 
perquisites, PF etc.

	 b)	 Variable Components linked to performance of 
Individual Employee vis-à- vis performance of 
the Business and Company. Variable pay shall be 
determined after end of the financial year in terms 
of performance management system manual of the 
Company and KRA achievement of individual Employee.

12.	PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (PMS)

	 The Appraisal of Senior management and Staffs shall be as 
per the extant annual Performance Management System 
Manual of the Company and is being followed to ensure the 
following:

	 •	 Aligning organization objectives to individual goals

	 •	 Fair and Transparent assessment of performance

	 •	 Recognizing and Rewarding Performance

	 •	 Differentiating High Performance

	 •	 Understanding and developing on current and future 
competencies

	 The goals are derived from the Company’s vision which 
is translated and aligned to Annual Business Plan. These 
goals are cascaded to the functional heads /Unit Heads/ 
Business Heads and from them to the departmental heads, 
and then to the respective employees in each department. 
In this manner, the Company’s annual business goals are 
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cascaded to all levels in the organization. The employees 
are rated on the basis of achievements of these goals and 
also a defined competency framework. The weightages of 
these depend on the level within the organization.

13.	CLARIFICATION AND REVIEW OF THE POLICY

	 The Committee may, in consultation with the Board, 
if necessary, review or give necessary clarification 
and procedural alteration for effective and smooth 
implementation of the Policy.

	 The Committee may or Person nominated by him, shall 
review the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

	 This Policy may be read with the Employee Handbook of 
the Company, to the extent relevant  or  necessary  for  

implementation  purpose.  However, the Handbook shall not 
be part of this Policy and always remain with the Company 
as confidential document.

14.	AMENDMENTS IN THE POLICY

	 This Policy may be amended or substituted by the Committee 
as circumstances warrant. Modification / amendment / 
clarification shall be issued only by the KMP in consultation 
with the Committee.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai	 Mofatraj P. Munot                                                                    
Date: May 20, 2020	 Executive Chairman

DIN: 00046905
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Annexure D2 to Board’s Report
POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING 

QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR

1.	 CRITERIA / QUALIFICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 
AS DIRECTOR

	 A formal and transparent selection and nomination process 
is critical to gain the confidence and trust of all stakeholders, 
improve the understanding and efficiency of the processes 
in practice, and essential to improving Board effectiveness. 
The suggestive list of criteria for appointment of a person as 
Director on Board of the company are as follows:

	 -	 Should possess formal qualification, relevant 
experience and track record, integrity etc.

	 -	 Should have knowledge on skills, processes, etc.

	 -	 Should not be disqualified as per Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

	 -	 Should have professional and / or specialist skills in 
areas of business of the company, having reputation as 
opinion maker.

	 -	 Should posses positive attributes such as Leadership, 
Industrialist or Business Advisory or such other 
attributes which are in the best interest of the Company;

	 -	 Existing Directorships held in other Companies

	 -	 Existing Committee membership / chairmanship  in 
other Companies

	 -	 In case of appointment is to be made for Managing 
Director or Whole time Director or Manager, the 
appointee must satisfy all conditions stipulated in Part 
I of Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013.

2.	 CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, 
POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES AND INDEPENDENCE OF 
A DIRECTOR:

	 The suggestive lists of criteria for appointment of a person 
as an Independent Director on the Board of the company 
are as follows:

	 -	 Should have knowledge on skills, processes etc.

	 -	 Should possess relevant experience and Qualification 
to discharge functions of Independent directors.

	 -	 Should satisfy the criteria of Independence as provided 
in Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

	 -	 Should possess relevant skills / expertise so that he 
can be appointed as Chairman / member of various 
Board Committees.

	 -	 Should devote sufficient time and attention to his 
professional obligations for informed and balanced 
decision making

	 -	 Should discharge roles and functions and duties as 
stipulated in Code for Independent Directors as per 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 -	 The person to be appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company shall not only possess the 
relevant formal qualifications and experience but 
shall also possess attributes like integrity and proven 
track record and shall demonstrate commitment to 
the organization. For assessing integrity, suitability 
features like criminal records, civil actions initiated 
to pursue personal debts, refusal of admission to or 
expulsion from professional bodies, sanctions applied 
by regulators or similar bodies, previous questionable 
business practices etc. shall be considered.

3.	 CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT IN SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY: 

	 The term Senior Management shall have the same meaning 
as provided under the explanation to Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

	 The suggestive lists of criteria to be considered for 
appointment in senior management of the company are as 
follows:

	 -	 The candidate should have appropriate experience in 
any of the areas viz. banking, infrastructure, financial 
management, legal, sales, marketing, administration, 
research, corporate governance, technical operations, 
or such other areas or disciplines which in the opinion 
of the management are relevant for the Company’s 
business
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	 -	 The candidate should posses the positive attributes 
such as leadership skills, decision making skills, 
integrity, effective communication, hard work, 
commitment and such other attributes which in the 
opinion of the management the candidate must possess 
and are in the interest of the Company.

	 -	 The candidate must have good insight into the culture 
of the organization. 

	 -	 The candidate must possess strategic thinking, 
creativity and Innovation, Technical credibility, ability 
to lead people, must be able to Inspire and foster team 
work.

4.	 ROLE OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Company (‘the Committee’) shall review and assess Board 
composition on behalf of the Board and shall recommend to 
the Board, the appointment of new directors based on their 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence.

	 In reviewing the Board composition, the Committee will 
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity including, 
but not limited to, those described above, in order to enable 
it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively. The 
Committee shall also oversee the conduct of the annual 
review of Board effectiveness.

	 The Committee will discuss and agree annually all 
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board 
and recommend them to the Board for adoption. At any 
given time the Board may seek to improve one or more 
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

5.	 AMENDMENTS IN THE POLICY

	 This Policy may be reviewed, amended or substituted by the 
Board as it think fit.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai	 Mofatraj P. Munot                                                                    
Date: May 20, 2020	 Executive Chairman

DIN: 00046905
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Annexure E to Board’s Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

INFLOW & OUTFLOW

(A)	Conservation of energy-

(i)	 the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

	 1.	 Your Company keeps on implementing different Scientific 
mixture of chemicals along with Flux re-generation plant 
which is helping it to continuously bring down consumption 
of chemicals, water and zinc in Galvanizing process

	 2.	 In Oil & Gas Pipeline business, your Company has 
installed Vehicle Tracking System (VTS) in the vehicles, 
which helps in monitoring the vehicle movement. This 
has positively impacted fuel consumption in vehicles. 
Fuel sensors have been introduced in the machineries 
being used in said Business to monitor fuel usage. This 
helps the Company in many ways including allowing it 
to have optimum utilization of fuel through data metrics 
collected from these sensors by monitoring real time 
fuel level, fill/drop, fuel consumption rate & trend etc.

	 3.	 At Biomass power plants

		  a.	 your Company has carried out in house modification 
in fuel feeding system by recirculating the excess 
fuel in to the boiler. This has led to energy saving 
which was previously consumed in collecting, 
transporting and refeeding in to the boiler.

		  b.	 your Company replaced 63 No(s) of conventional 
Lights having electrical load of 4194 Watt with 
energy efficient LED (Light Emitting Diode) Lights 
having electrical load of 2350 Watt which resulted 
into reduction in energy consumption by about 
8000 Units per annum.

	 4.	 At Uniara power plant

		  a.	 your Company has constructed one reservoir for 
storage of rain water. The capacity of reservoir is 
0.50 Mcft which is equivalent to about 15 days of 
plant’s requirement.

		  b.	 your Company replaced 26 No(s) of conventional 
Lights having electrical load of 2506 Watt with 
energy efficient LED (Light Emitting Diode) Lights 
having electrical load of 720 Watt which resulted 
into reduction in energy consumption by about 
7800 Units per annum.

	 5.	 At both the Biomass power plants, your Company has 
constructed Zero Liquid Discharge, holding & settling 

chambers and sludge drying beds for use of waste 
water. The processed water from these chambers is 
passed through Media Grate Filters for final polishing. 
This results in re-use of waste water and reduces 
consumption of fresh water.  

	 6.	 It is company’s continuous endeavor to use energy 
efficient lights and therefore, the Company keeps on 
replacing the conventional CFL fittings lights with LED 
Lights from time to time as per requirement and usage 
cycle.

(ii)	 the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate 
sources of energy: 

	 •	 Your Company has used apart from the main biomass 
fuel-Mustard Crop Residue-other alternative biomass 
fuels for its Biomass Power Plants in order to ensure the 
availability of biomass in various seasons throughout 
the year.

(iii)	the capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment: The Company made capital investment of  
H 0.32 Crore on energy conservation equipment during  
FY 2019-20.

(B) Technology absorption-

(i)	 the efforts made towards technology absorption and 
the benefits derived;

	 •	 Your Company has set an objective SPARK to 
implement Digital Transformation initiatives to enhance 
quality and ease of operation through Technology 
intervention. KPTL joined hands with Accenture, one 
of the leading multi-functional professional service 
company to form a strategy and Digitalize key business 
operations like Centralized Project management, P&M 
& Site Vehicle monitoring, Site Surveys & Progress 
monitoring through Drones, Material Tracking, Virtual 
Reality driven Safety & Construction work methods 
training, On site workmen tracking etc. 

	 •	 At Raipur Plant, your Company has automated the 
processes related to material handling of Raw material 
as well as Finished Goods, Angle/Plate Bending and 
Plate deburring with primary focus on Inventory 
reduction, Lead time reduction, Bottleneck operations 
and cut to size practice. 
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	 •	 Taking further the digitization initiatives at 
manufacturing plants through online analytics and 
IOT, during the year under review, your Company has 
integrated the galvanizing process with ERP system 
which will now enable the Company to minutely capture 
data metrics and use the same for process improvement 
to save cost, energy consumption etc. 

	 •	 Your Company has reduced plate raw material wastage 
by bringing in new technology software for planning. It 
helps the Company in quick and efficient plate nesting 
thereby reducing the steel waste. Also, the Company 
has further engineered steel wire requirement in 
loading components for Galvanizing which leads in 
reduction of steel wire requirement. 

	 •	 Your Company has started use of Precast Tower 
Foundations which has immensely reduced the resource 
requirements & improved environment protection. 
Precast foundations are cast at a centralized workshop 
& transported to the location for final installation. Your 
company has also successfully tested the Modular 
Precast foundations in its test bed for structural behavior.

	 •	 Your Company has enhanced the tower testing facility in 
an innovative cost effective approach, to be one of the 
biggest tower testing facility in the world. KPTL testbed 
is now capable of testing as high as 37m base width 
towers.

	 •	 Your Company implemented using Ortho Imaging 
Concept at bidding stage in Railway Projects for Civil 
work Design thereby facilitating the Company to make 
necessary changes in Building Construction Designs 
through which KPTL was able to Quote Best Competitive 
Bids. Also it developed an Auto LLSP program and 
Blocks in Autocad Software for Preparation of OHE 
Layout Plans, Cross section drawings and Structural 
erection drawings, by which the Company was able to 
reduce Cost significantly.

	 •	 Your Company’s Domestic Transmission Business 
started using high resolution camera and binoculars 
to trace faults in fittings to avoid any faults during 
charging of Transmission line resulting into saving 
of future cost. It provides upright view and improved 
human visual acuity during inspection of towers. It is 
also helpful for finding out deviations in final checking 
of towers in south, east, west and north zone.

	 •	 Your Company’s Domestic Transmission Business 
installed Cup anemometer in critical wind prone zones 
in order to establish a monitoring and recording 
system of maintaining wind speed data. It is helpful in 
monitoring wind velocity in highly wind prone areas. 

	 •	 Your Company started using Laser Distance Meter 
which sends a pulse of laser light to the target and 
measures the time it takes for the reflection to return. 
It has multipurpose use in survey, foundation, erection 
and stringing works.

	 •	 Your Company started using digital PH meter for PH 
Test of water in place of using PH paper. This will 
help the Company to identify the degree of acidity or 
alkalinity in the water used for construction purpose 
along with whether the solution is basic or acidic, which 
will improve the construction quality. It provides highly 
accurate measuring range of 0-14 PH. 

	 •	 An in house mobile virtual assistant “HR BOT” is developed. 
The application enables an employee to view pay slips, 
attendance records, leave balance, loan requests, HR 
policies and tax projections on his/her handset. An 
employee can also raise IT and travel requests through 
the application. A manager can also approve employee 
leave, loan and travel requests through the application. 
The application has an additional feature wherein a 
manager can approve Purchase Order (PO) and CAPEX 
requests. Using the application, the employee can lodge 
a grievance, see the status of the grievance and view the 
reply received to the grievance.

	 •	 Every agro waste/ forestry waste has a different 
chemical composition and reacts differentially in the 
controlled atmosphere of the Boiler. Different new agro 
wastes, forestry wastes were mixed and matched with 
the Mustard Crop Residue (Main fuel) to have optimum 
Electricity Generation and the Plant Efficiency at 
Biomass Plants.

		  Other than the main fuel i.e. Mustard Crop Residue 
(MCR), at Padampur Biomass Power Plant, your 
Company have used about 10% alternate fuels during 
the year under review.

	 •	 Research and Development:

		  The Company has been continuously putting effort 
to develop new transmission towers with different 
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challenges. The Company is doing many research 
activities in the areas of material weight reduction, 
alternate material, process design, process 
improvement etc.

(ii)	 the benefits derived: 

	 •	 Benefits derived as a result of R & D: 

		  (a)	 Market expansion and improved competitive 
position through significantly improved products 
for new markets.

		  (b)	 Improved competency for designing process & 
products for customers.

		  (c)	 Up-gradation of technical skill of employees for 
higher productivity & more consistent quality.

	 •	 Future Plan of Action: 

		  R&D is a continuous activity instead of one-time 
activity. Therefore, your Company is looking to adapt 
new and upgraded technologies in order to stay ahead 
of its competitors. Future R&D efforts will continue 
along similar lines, as at present, but with more focus, 
thrust and endeavors. 

(iii)	in case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)- 

a)	 the details of technology imported;

Not Applicable

b)	 the year of import;
c)	 whether the technology been fully 

absorbed;
d)	 if not fully absorbed, areas where 

absorption has not taken place, 
and the reasons thereof; and

(iv)	the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development: 

(H in Crore)
2019-20

Capital Expenditure 0.16
Revenue Expenditure 13.98
Total 14.14
Total R&D expenditure as a 
percentage of total turnover

0.18%

(C) 	The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of 
actual inflows during the year and the Foreign 
Exchange outgo during the year in terms of 
actual outflows.

(H in Crore)

Foreign Exchange Earnings 1811.63
Foreign Exchange Outgo 815.80

On behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Mofatraj P. Munot                                                                    
Place: Mumbai	 Executive Chairman
Date: May 20, 2020	 DIN: 00046905
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Annexure F to Board’s Report
Dividend Distribution Policy

1.	 INTRODUCTION

1.1. Applicability

	 1.1.1. 	The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Kalpataru 
Power Transmission Limited (“the Company” or 
“KPTL”), has adopted the following policy with regard 
to Dividend Distribution (“Policy”) as defined below in 
the Board meeting held on February 14, 2017 and the 
policy shall be effective from February 14, 2017.

1.2.	Philosophy 

	 The philosophy of the Company is always to maximize the 
shareholders’ wealth through various means. The Company 
believes that returning cash to shareholders is an important 
component of overall value creation. The Company has 
a consistent Dividend Track Record and the policy of the 
Company is in line with historic guidelines and trends. 

	 The Company follows a transparent mechanism for declaring 
dividends and retaining earnings accrued in a given financial 
year for future capital expenditures, working capital 
requirements, earmarking reserves for inorganic growth 
opportunities or for retiring debt and thereafter distributing 
the surplus profits in the form of dividend to the shareholders. 

1.3.	Objective

	 The main objective of this Policy is to regulate the process of 
dividend declaration and its pay-out by the Company which 
would ensure a regular dividend income for the shareholders 
and long term capital appreciation for all stakeholders of the 
Company while ensuring to strike the right balance between 
the quantum of dividend paid and amount of profits retained 
in the business for various purposes. 

1.4.	Regulatory Framework 

	 1.4.1. 	Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015, which was notified vide Notification 
dated July 08, 2016 provides that top five hundred 
listed entities based on their market capitalization 
calculated as on 31st day of March of every Financial 
Year shall formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy 
which shall be disclosed in the annual reports and on 
the websites of such Company.

	 1.4.2.	The Company has framed this policy as the Company 
is one of the top five hundred listed companies as 
per the market capitalization as on the last day of the 
immediately preceding Financial Year.

1.5.	Definitions

	 1.5.1.	“Act” means Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder, including any modifications, amendments 
or re-enactment thereof.

	 1.5.2.	“Applicable Laws” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules made thereunder, the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; as amended from 
time to time and such other act, rules or regulations 
which provides for the distribution of Dividend.

	 1.5.3.	“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

	 1.5.4.	“Company” shall mean Kalpataru Power Transmission 
Limited.

	 1.5.5.	“Dividend” shall mean Dividend as defined under 
Companies Act, 2013 and includes any Interim 
Dividend.

	 1.5.6.	“Financial Year” shall mean the period beginning from 
April 1, of every year to March 31, of succeeding year.

	 1.5.7.	“Policy or this Policy” shall mean Dividend Distribution 
Policy and as may be amended from time to time.

	 1.5.8.	“SEBI Regulations or SEBI LODR” shall mean Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 together 
with the circulars issued thereunder, including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof 
for the time being in force.

1.6.	Interpretation

	 1.6.1.	The Clause headings are for ease of reference only and 
shall not be relevant to interpretation. 

	 1.6.2.	A reference to a clause number includes a reference to 
its sub-clauses. 

	 1.6.3.	The words in singular number include the plural and 
vice versa.

	 1.6.4.	Any term not defined in the Policy shall have the same 
meaning assigned to it under the Companies Act, 2013 
or the SEBI Regulations or Depositories Act, 1996 or 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.
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2.	 POLICY

2.1.	Policy

	 2.1.1.	The Company would endeavor to keep consistence 
Dividend payment track record except for the reasons 
to be recorded.

	 2.1.2.	Dividend payout in a particular year shall be determined 
after considering the operating and financial 
performance of the Company and the cash requirement 
for financing the Company’s future growth.

2.2.	Procedure

	 2.2.1.	The agenda of the Board of Directors where Dividend 
declaration or recommendation is proposed shall 
contain the rationale of the proposal which shall be in 
line with the Parameters mentioned in this Policy. 

	 2.2.2.	If the Company proposes to declare dividend on 
the basis of parameters in addition to this policy or 
proposes to change such parameters or the dividend 
distribution policy contained in any of the parameters, 
it shall disclose such changes along with the rationale 
for the same in the annual report and on the website.

	 2.2.3.	Pursuant to the provisions of Applicable Laws and 
this Policy, Interim Dividend approved by the Board of 
Directors will be confirmed by the shareholders and 
final Dividend, if any, recommended by the Board of 
Directors, will be subject to shareholder’s approval, at 
the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company. 
The Company shall ensure compliance of provisions of 
Applicable Laws and this Policy in relation to Dividend 
declared by the Company.

2.3.	Parameters for Declaration of Dividend

	 The Dividend payment decision of the Company depends 
upon certain Internal (including Financial parameters) and 
External Factors like:

	 2.3.1.	Internal Factors

		  a.	 Profits Earned: The extent of stability and 
magnitude of company’s earnings will directly 
influence the dividend declaration. Thus, the 
dividend is directly linked with the availability of 
the earnings (including accumulated earnings) 
with the company.

		  b.	 Capital Expenditure Requirements and future 
working capital requirements

		  c.	 Current and Projected Liquidity Position: A 
company’s liquidity position also determines 
the level of dividend. If a company does not 
have sufficient cash resources to make dividend 
payment, then it may reduce the amount of 
dividend pay-out.

		  d.	 Committed or Projected Cash Flow Requirement: 
If a company foresees some profitable investment 
opportunities including but not limited to Brand/ 
Business Acquisitions, Expansion / Modernization 
of existing businesses, Additional investments in 
subsidiaries/associates of the Company, Fresh 
investments into external businesses, then it may 
decide for lower dividend payout and vice-versa.

		  e.	 Leverage profile and liabilities of the Company.

		  f.	 Any other factor as deemed fit by the Board.

	 2.3.2. External Factors

		  a.	 Industry Practice: The nature of industry in which 
a company is operating, influences the dividend 
decision. Like the industries with stable demand 
throughout the year are in a position to have 
stable earnings and thus declare stable dividends.

		  b.	 Statutory Provisions and Regulatory concern: 
The Board should keep in mind the restrictions 
imposed by Companies Act or any other applicable 
laws with regard to declaration of dividend and 
quantum of dividend. Further, any restrictions on 
payment of dividends by virtue of any regulation 
as may be applicable to the Company may also 
impact the declaration of dividend.

		  c.	 Macro-Economic Factors and General Business 
Environment: The Board will endeavor to retain 
larger part of profits to build up reserves to absorb 
future shocks in case of uncertain or recessionary 
economic conditions and in situation where the 
policy decisions of the Government have a bearing 
on or affect the business of the Company.

		  d.	 Fiscal Policy: The tax policy of the country also 
influences the dividend policy of a company. The 
rate of tax directly influences the amount of profits 
available to the company for declaring dividends.
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		  e.	 Capital Markets: In case of unfavorable market 
conditions, Board may resort to a conservative 
dividend pay-out in order to conserve cash 
outflows and reduce the cost of raising funds 
through alternate resources.

2.4.	Circumstances under which the Shareholders may 
not expect Dividend

	 2.4.1.	The shareholders of the Company may not expect 
Dividend under the following circumstances:

		  a.	 Due to operation of any other law in force

		  b.	 Due to inadequate profit or losses incurred by the 
Company and the Board considers it appropriate 
not to declare dividend for any particular year

		  c.	 Due to any restrictions and covenants contained 
in any agreement as may be entered into with the 
Lenders

		  d.	 Whenever Company undertakes or proposes to 
undertake a significant expansion project requiring 
higher allocation of capital or undertakes any 
acquisitions or restructuring

		  e.	 Significant higher working capital requirements 
adversely impacting free cash flow.

		  f.	 Whenever it proposes to utilise surplus cash for 
buy-back of securities

2.5.	Utilisation of Retained Earnings

	 The portion of profits not distributed among the 
shareholders but retained and used in business are termed 
as retained earnings. It is also referred to as ploughing 
back of profit. These earnings may be utilized for internal 
financing of various projects of the Company and for fixed 
as well as working capital. The Company may choose to 

retain a part of its profits and distribute the balance among 
its shareholders as Dividend after having due regard to the 
parameters laid down in this Policy.

2.6.	Parameters for Dividend with regard to various classes 
of Shares

	 The Company does not have different classes of shares and 
follows the ‘one share, one vote’ principle.

3.	 DISCLOSURE

3.1 	The Company shall make appropriate disclosures as 
required under the SEBI Regulations.

4.	 GENERAL

4.1 	The Policy shall be reviewed as and when required to ensure 
that it meets the objectives of the relevant legislation and 
remains effective. The Executive Committee has the right to 
change/amend the policy as may be expedient taking into 
account the law for the time being in force. Such amended 
Policy shall be placed before the Board for noting and 
necessary ratification at its subsequent meeting.

4.2 	In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) 
etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent 
with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such 
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail 
upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand 
amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down 
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai	 Mofatraj P. Munot                                                                    
Date: May 20, 2020	 Executive Chairman

DIN: 00046905
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Annexure G to Board’s Report
FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the  
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

III.	PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

i. CIN:- L40100GJ1981PLC004281
ii. Registration Date April 23, 1981
iii. Name of the Company Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited
iv. Category/ Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited by Shares 

Indian Non-Government Company
v. Address of the Registered office and contact details Plot No. 101, Part-III, GIDC Estate,

Sector -28, Gandhinagar-382028,
Gujarat, India.

Phone	 :	079 2321 4000
Fax	 :	079 2321 1966 
Email ID	 :	cs@kalpatarupower.com

vi. Whether listed company        Yes / No Yes
vii. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar  

and Transfer Agent, if any
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd
506-508, Amarnath Business Centre -1
Beside Gala Business Centre,
Near St. Xavier’s College Corner,
Off C. G. Road,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad – 380009, Gujarat, India.

Phone	 :	079 2646 5179 
Fax	 :	079 2646 5179
Email ID	 :	ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

	 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: -

Sr. 
No.

Name and Description  of main products / services NIC Code of the Product/ 
service

%  to total turnover of the 
Company

1. Construction of Utility Projects 422 76.91%
2. Construction Roads and Railways 421 22.07%

Sr. 
No.

Name of Company & Address. CIN / GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary 
/ Associate

% 
Shares 
held*

Applicable 
Section

1. JMC Projects (India) Ltd.
A-104, Shapath – 4, Opp. Karnavati Club, S. G. Road, 
Ahmedabad – 380051

L45200GJ1986PLC008717 Subsidiary 67.75 2(87)(ii)

2. Shree Shubham Logistics Ltd
Plot No. A-1 & A-2, Sector-25, 
Gandhinagar-382004

U60232GJ2007PLC049796 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
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III.	PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sr. 
No.

Name of Company & Address. CIN / GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary 
/ Associate

% 
Shares 
held*

Applicable 
Section

3. Energylink (India) Ltd.
Plot No. 494/1, Near Lord Ayyappa Temple, 
Gandhinagar-382007.

U45204GJ2001PLC039169 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

4. Amber Real Estate Ltd.
101, Kalpataru Synergy, Santacruz (East), 
Mumbai -400055

U45200MH2007PLC173306 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

5. Adeshwar Infrabuild Ltd.
Plot No. 101, Part-III, GIDC Estate, Sector-28, 
Gandhinagar-382028

U26941GJ2009PLC057757 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

6. Kalpataru Metfab Private Limited 
Plot No. 101, Part-III, GIDC Estate, Sector-28, 
Gandhinagar-382028

U28113GJ2011PTC064272 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

7. Alipurduar Transmission Limited
Plot No. 101, Part-III, GIDC Estate, Sector-28, 
Gandhinagar-382028

U40109GJ2015PLC095114 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

8. Kohima-Mariani Transmission Limited**
Plot No. 101, Part-III, GIDC Estate, Sector-28, 
Gandhinagar-382028

U40102GJ2016GOI107260 Subsidiary 74 2(87)(ii)

9. Kalpataru Power Transmission (Mauritius) Ltd.
C/o. International Financial Services Limited, IFS 
Court, Twenty Eight, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

10. Kalpataru Power Transmission USA INC
7500 Rialto Blvd, Suite 250 Austin, Texas 78735

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

11. LLC Kalpataru Power Transmission Ukraine
“601, 6th Floor, 8A Feodory Pushinoy Street, 
Kyiv 03115, Ukraine”

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

12. Kalpataru Power Transmission Sweden AB 
Metallverksgatan 6, 721 30 , Vasteras, Sweden

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

13. Linjemontage I Grastorp AB
Box 134, 46722, Grastorp, Sweden

N.A. Subsidiary 85 2(87)(ii)

14. Linjemontage Service Nordic AB
Box 134, 46722, Grastorp, Sweden 

N.A. Subsidiary 85 2(87)(ii)

15. Linjemontage AS
Forretningsadresse: Bjørnstadmyra 7
1712 GRÅLUM, Norway

N.A. Subsidiary 85 2(87)(ii)

16. Kalpataru IBN Omairah Company Ltd.***
6757 Ali Al Maruzi - Al Shohda Dist.,
Unit No. 33, Riyadh 13241 – 4018, 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

N.A. Subsidiary 65 2(87)(ii)

17. JMC Mining and Quarries Ltd.
A-104, Shapath – 4, Opp. Karnavati Club, S. G. Road, 
Ahmedabad – 380051

U45201GJ1996PLC028732 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

18. Brij Bhoomi Expressway Pvt. Ltd.
6th Floor, Kalpataru Synergy, Opp. Grand Hyatt, 
Santacruz (East) Mumbai -400055

U74900MH2010PTC261958 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
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Sr. 
No.

Name of Company & Address. CIN / GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary 
/ Associate

% 
Shares 
held*

Applicable 
Section

19. Wainganga Expressway Pvt. Ltd.
6th Floor, Kalpataru Synergy, Opp. Grand Hyatt Hotel, 
Santacruz East, Mumbai-400055

U45203MH2011PTC264642 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

20. Vindhyachal Expressway Pvt. Ltd.
6th Floor, Kalpataru Synergy, Opp. Grand Hyatt Hotel, 
Santacruz East, Mumbai-400055

U45203MH2012PTC271978 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

21. Saicharan Properties Ltd.
101, Kalpataru Synergy, Opp. Grand Hyatt, Santacruz 
(East), Mumbai -400055

U45201MH2006PLC166598 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

22. Punarvasu Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.
Unit No. 72, 7th floor, Kalpataru Square, Kondivita 
Lane, Off Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (E) 
Mumbai-400059

U67120MH1993PTC073611 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

23. Kalpataru Power DMCC, UAE
Unit No. 2301, HDS Tower, Plot No. PH1-F2, Jumeirah 
Lakes Tower, Dubai , UAE

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

24. Jhajjar KT Transco Pvt. Ltd.
Plot No 101, Part-III, GIDC Estate, Sector-28, 
Gandhinagar-382028

U45204GJ2010PTC060815 Associate 49.72 2(6)

25. Kurukshetra Expressway Pvt. Ltd.
Toll Plaza Gangaicha Jaat,NH-71 village Gangaicha 
Jaat,Mastapur post office Rewari Rewari-123401, 
Haryana

U45400HR2010PTC040303 Associate 49.57 2(6)

	 * Representing aggregate % of equity shares held by the Company and/or through its subsidiaries

	 ** Kohima-Mariani Transmission Limited is a Joint Venture Company of your Company with Techno Electric & Engineering Company Limited

	 *** Kalpataru IBN Omairah Company Limited is a Joint Venture Company of your Company with IBN Omairah Contracting Company Limited 

	 Note: The Company has no holding company.

IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

i)	 Category-wise Share Holding
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Category of Shareholder

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year  
(as on April 1, 2019 i.e. on the basis of SHP of 

March 31, 2019)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year  
(as on March 31, 2020 i.e. on the basis of SHP of 

March 31, 2020)

% 
Change 
during 

the yearDemat Physical Total
% of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total 
Shares

A.	 Promoters/Promoters Group
	 (1)	Indian 
		  a)	 Individual/HUF 28,911,867 - 28,911,867 18.84  21,991,867               -    21,991,867     14.21 -4.63
		  b)	 Central Govt. - - - -                   -                 -                     -              -                -   
		  c)	 State Govt.(s) - - - -                   -                 -                     -              -                -   
		  d)	 Bodies Corporate 59,791,796 - 59,791,796 38.96   59,791,796               -     59,791,796      38.65 -0.31
		  e)	 Banks / FI	 - - - -                   -                 -                     -               -                -   
		  f)	 Any Other
			   f-1)	Promoter Trust 2,331,000 - 2,331,000 1.52     2,331,000               -       2,331,000        1.51 -0.01
	 Sub-total(A)(1): 91,034,663 - 91,034,663 59.32  84,114,663 -    84,114,663      54.37 -4.95
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Category of Shareholder

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year  
(as on April 1, 2019 i.e. on the basis of SHP of 

March 31, 2019)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year  
(as on March 31, 2020 i.e. on the basis of SHP of 

March 31, 2020)

% 
Change 
during 

the yearDemat Physical Total
% of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total 
Shares

	 (2)	Foreign      
		  a)	 NRIs – Individuals - - - -                   -                 -                     -               -               -   
		  b)	 Other –Individuals - - - -                   -                 -                     -               -                -   
		  c)	 Bodies Corp. - - - -                   -                 -                     -               -                -   
		  d)	 Banks / FI - - - -                   -                 -                     -               -                -   
		  e)	 Any Other.... - - - -                   -                 -                     -               -                -   
	 Sub-total:(A) (2): - - - -                   -                  -                     -               -                -   
	 Total shareholding of Promoter 

(A) =(A)(1)+(A)(2)
91,034,663 - 91,034,663 59.32  84,114,663 -    84,114,663      54.37 -4.95

B.	 Public Shareholding
	 1.	 Institutions 
		  a)	 Mutual Funds 33,339,556 - 33,339,556 21.73 36,216,988 - 36,216,988 23.41 1.68
		  b)	 Banks / FI 28,044 - 28,044 0.02 22,771 - 22,771 0.01 -0.01
		  c)	 Central Govt. (IEPF 

Authority)
- - - - - - - - -

		  d)	 State Govt. - - - - - - - - -
		  e)	 Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
		  f)	 Insurance Companies 5,383,227 - 5,383,227 3.51 8,914,856 - 8,914,856 5.76 2.25
		  g)	 FIIs / FPIs 6,689,391 1,000 6,690,391 4.36 11,404,305 - 11,404,305 7.37 3.01
		  h)	 Foreign Venture Capital 

Funds
- - - - - - - - -

		  i)	 Alternate Investment 
Funds

44,090 - 44,090 0.03 564,618 - 564,618 0.36 0.34

		  j)	 Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
	 Sub-total (B)(1):- 45,484,308 1,000 45,485,308 29.64 57,123,538 - 57,123,538 36.92 7.27
	 2.	 Non Institutions
		  a)	 Bodies Corporate
			   i)	 Indian 5,106,858 6,000 5,112,858 3.33 1,672,346 6,000 1,678,346 1.08 -2.25
			   ii)	 Overseas - - - - - - - - -
		  b)	 Individuals - - - - - - - - -
			   i)   Individual 

shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto H 1 lakh

8,683,954 392,785 9,076,739 5.91 7,609,783 350,610 7,960,393 5.15 -0.77

			   ii)	 Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of H 1 lakh

702,078 96,000 798,078 0.52 514,284 96,000 610,284 0.39 -0.13

		  c)	 Others (specify)
		  c-1) Trusts - - - - 1,000 - 1,000 0.00 0.00
		  c-2) Hindu Undivided Family 348,499 - 348,499 0.23 286,253 - 286,253 0.19 -0.04
		  c-3) Non Resident Indians 

(Repat)
661,489 6,000 667,489 0.43 642,797 6,000 648797 0.42 -0.02

		  c-4) Non Resident Indians 
(Non Repat)

726,974 - 726,974 0.47 786,547 - 786,547 0.51 0.03

		  c-5) IEPF Authority 102,449 - 102,449 0.07 109,606 - 109,606 0.07 0.00
		  c-6) Clearing Members 64,489 - 64,489 0.04 141,143 - 141,143 0.09 0.05
		  c-7) NBFCs registered with RBI 43,024 - 43,024 0.03 - - - - -0.03
		  c-8) Foreign Companies - - - - 12,54,900 - 12,54,900 0.81 0.81
	 Sub-total (B)(2):- 16,439,814 500,785 16,940,599 11.03 13,018,659 458,610 13,477,269 8,71 -2.33
	 Total Public Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
61,924,122 501,785 62,425,907 40.68 70,142,197 458,610 70,600,807 45.63 4.95

C.	 Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs (C)

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 152,958,785 501,785 153,460,570 100.00 154,256,860 458,610 154,715,470 100.00 -



ii)	 Shareholding of Promoters and Promoter Group

iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding 

Annexure G to Board’s Report

114

KALPATARU POWER TRANSMISSION LIMITED A N N U A L 
R E P O R T

2019-20

Sr. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
(as on April 1, 2019 i.e. on the basis of 

SHP of March 31, 2019)

Shareholding at the end of the year
(as on March 31, 2020 i.e. on the basis 

of SHP of March 31, 2020) % change in 
shareholding 

during the 
yearNo. of 

Shares

% of total 
Shares 

of the 
company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares*

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 

of the 
company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 

shares*

1 Kalpataru Constructions Private Ltd. 23,350,000 15.22% 11.05% 23,350,000 15.09% 14.06% -0.13%
2 K C Holdings Private Ltd. 21,142,600 13.78% 7.71% 21,142,600 13.67% 13.67% -0.11%
3 Mr. Mofatraj Pukharaj Munot 11,405,822 7.43% - 10,005,822 6.47% - -0.96%
4 Kalpataru Properties Pvt. Ltd. 13,646,196 8.89% 2.27% 13,646,196 8.82% 2.35% -0.07%
5 Mr. Parag Mofatraj Munot ## 13,463,615 8.77% 4.91% 7,963,615 5.15% 1.19% -3.62%
6 Ms. Tara Kanga 1,854,130 1.21%            -   1,834,130 1.19%            -   -0.02%
7 Kalpataru Viniyog LLP 1,320,000 0.86% - 1,320,000 0.85% - -0.01%
8 Ms. Sudha Rajesh Golecha 8,71,650 0.57% - 8,71,650 0.56% - -0.01%
9 Ms. Sunita Vijay Choraria 8,71,650 0.57% - 8,71,650 0.56% - -0.01%
10 Kalpataru Holdings Private Ltd 3,33,000 0.22% - 3,33,000 0.22% - -0.00%
11 Mrs. Yasmin Imtiaz Kanga 3,00,000 0.20% - 3,00,000 0.19% - -0.01%
12 Mr. Imtiaz Kanga 1,00,000 0.06% - 1,00,000 0.06% - -0.00%
13 Ms. Chandra Amar Munot 10,000 0.01% - 10,000 0.01% - -0.00%
14 Mr. Jash Choraria 7,000 0.00% - 7,000 0.00% - -0.00%
15 Ms. Khushali Rajesh Golechha 7,000 0.00% - 7,000 0.00% - -0.00%
16 Mr. Rajesh Bhagchand Golechha 7,000 0.00% - 7,000 0.00% - -0.00%
17 Mr. Umang Golechha 7,000 0.00% - 7,000 0.00% - -0.00%
18 Mr. Vijay K Choraria 7,000 0.00% - 7,000 0.00% - -0.00%
19 Aaryaveer Benefit Trust** 7,77,000 0.51% - 7,77,000 0.50% - -0.01%
20 Saachi Benefit Trust** 7,77,000 0.51% - 7,77,000 0.50% - -0.01%
21 Shubhika Benefit Trust** 7,77,000 0.51% - 7,77,000 0.50% - -0.01%

Total 91,034,663 59.32% 25.94% 84,114,663 54.37% 31.27% -4.95%

Sr. 
No.

Name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

(01-04-2019)
Transaction during the year

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

year (01-04-2019 to 
31-03-2020)

No. of 
shares held

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

Date
Increase / 

(decrease) in 
shareholding

Reason
No. of 

shares held

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

1 Mr. Mofatraj Pukharaj Munot 11,405,822 7.43% 01 Apr 2019 11,405,822 7.43%
11 Sep 2019 (14,00,000) On Market Sale 1,00,05,822 6.47%
31 Mar 2020 - - 1,00,05,822 6.47%

2 Mr. Parag Mofatraj Munot 13,463,615 8.77% 01 Apr 2019 13,463,615 8.77%
11 Sep 2019 (55,00,000) On Market Sale 79,63,615 5.15%
31 Mar 2020 - - 79,63,615 5.15%

3 Ms. Tara Kanga 1,854,130 1.21% 01 Apr 2019 1,854,130 1.21%
26 Sep 2019 (20,000) On Market Sale 1,834,130 1.19%
31 Mar 2020 - - 1,834,130 1.19%

* The term “encumbrance” has the same meaning as assigned to it in SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.
## Disclosed consolidated position covering holding of Mr. Parag M Munot with Mrs. Monica Parag Munot holding 581,100 shares.

** The Equity shares of Aaryaveer Benefit Trust, Saachi Benefit Trust and Shubhika Benefit Trust is held by Mr. Mofatraj Pukharaj Munot in the capacity of Trustee 
of the said Trusts.
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Sr. 
No.

Name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year        

(01-04-2019)
Transaction during the year

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

year (01-04-2019 to 
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No. of 
shares held
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of the 
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Date
Increase / 
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1 HDFC TRUSTEE COMPANY 
LIMITED-HDFC EQUITY FUND

1,33,48,217 8.6276  01 Apr 2019 1,33,48,217 8.6276
05 Apr 2019 3,61,150 Transfer 1,37,09,367 8.8610
12 Apr 2019 1,57,855 Transfer 1,38,67,222 8.9630
19 Apr 2019 18,110 Transfer 1,38,85,332 8.9748
26 Apr 2019 2,11,200 Transfer 1,40,96,532 9.1113

10 May 2019 95,000 Transfer 1,41,91,532 9.1727
17 May 2019 3,570 Transfer 1,41,95,102 9.1750
13 Sep 2019 7,15,100 Transfer 1,49,10,202 9.6372

 At the end of the year      1,49,10,202 9.6372
2 ICICI PRUDENTIAL LIFE 

INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
51,10,255 3.3030  01 Apr 2019   51,10,255 3.3030

12 Apr 2019 6,355 Transfer 51,16,610 3.3071
10 May 2019 (27,914) Transfer 50,88,696 3.2891
24 May 2019 5,428 Transfer 50,94,124 3.2926
21 Jun 2019 (65,311) Transfer 50,28,813 3.2504
29 Jun 2019 35,261 Transfer 50,64,074 3.2732
05 Jul 2019 3 Transfer 50,64,077 3.2732
12 Jul 2019 (13,727) Transfer 50,50,350 3.2643
26 Jul 2019 (36,707) Transfer 50,13,643 3.2406

02 Aug 2019 (30,527) Transfer 49,83,116 3.2208
09 Aug 2019 (49,919) Transfer 49,33,197 3.1886
16 Aug 2019 (1,39,240) Transfer 47,93,957 3.0986
30 Aug 2019 2,76,198 Transfer 50,70,155 3.2771
06 Sep 2019 2,63,567 Transfer 53,33,722 3.4474
13 Sep 2019 37,104 Transfer 53,70,826 3.4714
20 Sep 2019 (1,87,093) Transfer 51,83,733 3.3505
27 Sep 2019 (60,608) Transfer 51,23,125 3.3113
30 Sep 2019 (28,749) Transfer 50,94,376 3.2927
04 Oct 2019 28,273 Transfer 51,22,649 3.3110
11 Oct 2019 3,761 Transfer 51,26,410 3.3134
25 Oct 2019 (1,596) Transfer 51,24,814 3.3124
08 Nov 2019 (55) Transfer 51,24,759 3.3124
22 Nov 2019 (9,130) Transfer 51,15,629 3.3065
29 Nov 2019 (21,714) Transfer 50,93,915 3.2924
13 Dec 2019 18,022 Transfer 51,11,937 3.3041
20 Dec 2019 (34,519) Transfer 50,77,418 3.2818
27 Dec 2019 75,573 Transfer 51,52,991 3.3306
31 Dec 2019 686 Transfer 51,53,677 3.3311
03 Jan 2020 (702) Transfer 51,52,975 3.3306
17 Jan 2020 1,43,797 Transfer 52,96,772 3.4236
24 Jan 2020 2,49,266 Transfer 55,46,038 3.5847
31 Jan 2020 1,90,438 Transfer 57,36,476 3.7078
07 Feb 2020 63,111 Transfer 57,99,587 3.7486
14 Feb 2020 46,681 Transfer 58,46,268 3.7787
21 Feb 2020 46,538 Transfer 58,92,806 3.8088
06 Mar 2020 12,056 Transfer 59,04,862 3.8166
13 Mar 2020 (45,606) Transfer 58,59,256 3.7871
20 Mar 2020 (29,441) Transfer 58,29,815 3.7681
27 Mar 2020 1,00,129 Transfer 59,29,944 3.8328
31 Mar 2020 (29,447) Transfer 59,00,497 3.8138

 At the end of the year      59,00,497 3.8138
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Sr. 
No.

Name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year        

(01-04-2019)
Transaction during the year

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

year (01-04-2019 to 
31-03-2020)

No. of 
shares held

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

Date
Increase / 

(decrease) in 
shareholding

Reason
No. of 

shares held

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

3 KOTAK EMERGING EQUITY SCHEME                                                                                                                                          1,17,503 0.0759  01 Apr 2019   1,17,503 0.0759
05 Apr 2019 (7,503) Transfer 1,10,000 0.0711
12 Apr 2019 86,347 Transfer 1,96,347 0.1269
19 Apr 2019 1,13,653 Transfer 3,10,000 0.2004
17 May 2019 58,000 Transfer 3,68,000 0.2379

12 Jul 2019 5,00,000 Transfer 8,68,000 0.5610
26 Jul 2019 25,000 Transfer 8,93,000 0.5772

02 Aug 2019 2,511 Transfer 8,95,511 0.5788
16 Aug 2019 2,31,225 Transfer 11,26,736 0.7283
23 Aug 2019 1,10,111 Transfer 12,36,847 0.7994
30 Aug 2019 18,566 Transfer 12,55,413 0.8114
20 Sep 2019 2,27,000 Transfer 14,82,413 0.9582
11 Oct 2019 565 Transfer 14,82,978 0.9585
18 Oct 2019 76,665 Transfer 15,59,643 1.0081
25 Oct 2019 62,100 Transfer 16,21,743 1.0482

01 Nov 2019 98,000 Transfer 17,19,743 1.1116
08 Nov 2019 3,64,664 Transfer 20,84,407 1.3473
15 Nov 2019 3,03,335 Transfer 23,87,742 1.5433
06 Dec 2019 1,900 Transfer 23,89,642 1.5445
13 Dec 2019 10,000 Transfer 23,99,642 1.5510
20 Dec 2019 (26,288) Transfer 23,73,354 1.5340
27 Dec 2019 5,00,000 Transfer 28,73,354 1.8572
21 Feb 2020 6,63,600 Transfer 35,36,954 2.2861
28 Feb 2020 2,78,862 Transfer 38,15,816 2.4663
06 Mar 2020 12,2978 Transfer 39,38,794 2.5458
13 Mar 2020 1,18,430 Transfer 40,57,224 2.6224
20 Mar 2020 1,65,256 Transfer 42,22,480 2.7292
27 Mar 2020 1,31,931 Transfer 43,54,411 2.8145
31 Mar 2020 36,072 Transfer 43,90,483 2.8378

 At the end of the year   43,90,483 2.8378
4
 

RELIANCE CAPITAL TRUSTEE CO 
LTD-A/C NIPPON INDIA SMALL CAP 
FUND  

37,95,208 2.4530 01 Apr 2019 37,95,208 2.4530
05 Apr 2019 (50,000) Transfer 37,45,208 2.4207
24 May 2019 (3,552) Transfer 37,41,656 2.4184
31 May 2019 (2,26,910) Transfer 35,14,746 2.2717
14 Jun 2019 (4,400) Transfer 35,10,346 2.2689
21 Jun 2019 (54,174) Transfer 34,56,172 2.2339
29 Jun 2019 (20,000) Transfer 34,36,172 2.2210
05 Jul 2019 (2,70,000) Transfer 31,66,172 2.0464
19 Jul 2019 (1,00,000) Transfer 30,66,172 1.9818

06 Sep 2019 (37,000) Transfer 30,29,172 1.9579
27 Sep 2019 (51,000) Transfer 29,78,172 1.9249
11 Oct 2019 1,500 Transfer 29,79,672 1.9259
18 Oct 2019 70,000 Transfer 30,49,672 1.9711
25 Oct 2019 46,500 Transfer 30,96,172 2.0012

01 Nov 2019 25,000 Transfer 31,21,172 2.0174
15 Nov 2019 97,810 Transfer 32,18,982 2.0806
22 Nov 2019 20,000 Transfer 32,38,982 2.0935
29 Nov 2019 25,000 Transfer 32,63,982 2.1097
06 Dec 2019 25,000 Transfer 32,88,982 2.1258
13 Dec 2019 20,000 Transfer 33,08,982 2.1388
20 Dec 2019 15,600 Transfer 33,24,582 2.1488
27 Dec 2019 31,590 Transfer 33,56,172 2.1693
14 Feb 2020 (6,918) Transfer 33,49,254 2.1648
06 Mar 2020 12,000 Transfer 33,61,254 2.1725

At the end of the year      33,61,254 2.1725
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5 ICICI PRUDENTIAL BALANCED 
ADVANTAGE FUND         

10,59,306 0.6847  01 Apr 2019   10,59,306 0.6847
17 May 2019 (6,791) Transfer 10,52,515 0.6803
24 May 2019 32 Transfer 10,52,547 0.6803

05 Jul 2019 32 Transfer 10,52,579 0.6803
26 Jul 2019 32 Transfer 10,52,611 0.6804

02 Aug 2019 (9,700) Transfer 10,42,911 0.6741
16 Aug 2019 (23,413) Transfer 10,19,498 0.6590
23 Aug 2019 (19,652) Transfer 9,99,846 0.6462
30 Aug 2019 (157) Transfer 9,99,689 0.6461
13 Sep 2019 23,00,000 Transfer 32,99,689 2.1327
27 Sep 2019 (2,40,290) Transfer 30,59,399 1.9774
30 Sep 2019 31 Transfer 30,59,430 1.9775
04 Oct 2019 (39,015) Transfer 30,20,415 1.9522
11 Oct 2019 31 Transfer 30,20,446 1.9523
18 Oct 2019 4 Transfer 30,20,450 1.9523
25 Oct 2019 31 Transfer 30,20,481 1.9523

01 Nov 2019 (11) Transfer 30,20,470 1.9523
15 Nov 2019 3,319 Transfer 30,23,789 1.9544
22 Nov 2019 66,931 Transfer 30,90,720 1.9977
29 Nov 2019 (1,29,989) Transfer 29,60,731 1.9137
13 Dec 2019 32,155 Transfer 29,92,886 1.9344
20 Dec 2019 7,174 Transfer 30,00,060 1.9391
27 Dec 2019 24 Transfer 30,00,084 1.9391
10 Jan 2020 31 Transfer 3000115 1.9391
24 Jan 2020 (1,12,332) Transfer 28,87,783 1.8665
31 Jan 2020 31 Transfer 28,87,814 1.8665
07 Feb 2020 (11,486) Transfer 28,76,328 1.8591
14 Feb 2020 16 Transfer 28,76,344 1.8591
06 Mar 2020 80 Transfer 28,76,424 1.8592
20 Mar 2020 48 Transfer 28,76,472 1.8592
27 Mar 2020 64 Transfer 28,76,536 1.8592
31 Mar 2020 32 Transfer 28,76,568 1.8593

 At the end of the year      28,76,568 1.8593
6 IDFC STERLING VALUE FUND  24,83,754 1.6054 01 Apr 2019 24,83,754 1.6054

05 Apr 2019 10,000 Transfer 24,93,754 1.6118
12 Apr 2019 10,000 Transfer 25,03,754 1.6183
26 Apr 2019 (1,06,979) Transfer 23,96,775 1.5492

17 May 2019 8,389 Transfer 24,05,164 1.5546
24 May 2019 (6,410) Transfer 23,98,754 1.5504

05 Jul 2019 (9,985) Transfer 23,88,769 1.5440
26 Jul 2019 6,409 Transfer 23,95,178 1.5481

27 Sep 2019 (22,000) Transfer 23,73,178 1.5339
22 Nov 2019 163 Transfer 23,73,341 1.5340
06 Dec 2019 9,837 Transfer 23,83,178 1.5404
13 Dec 2019 20,000 Transfer 24,03,178 1.5533
20 Dec 2019 40,000 Transfer 24,43,178 1.5791
27 Dec 2019 20,000 Transfer 24,63,178 1.5921
10 Jan 2020 5,000 Transfer 24,68,178 1.5953
21 Feb 2020 1,13,412 Transfer 25,81,590 1.6686
28 Feb 2020 35,000 Transfer 26,16,590 1.6912

 At the end of the year  26,16,590 1.6912
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Sr. 
No.

Name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year        

(01-04-2019)
Transaction during the year

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

year (01-04-2019 to 
31-03-2020)

No. of 
shares held

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

Date
Increase / 

(decrease) in 
shareholding

Reason
No. of 

shares held

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

7 DSP SMALL CAP FUND                    
            

31,26,871 2.0210 01 Apr 2019 31,26,871 2.0210
10 May 2019 (89,000) Transfer 30,37,871 1.9635
17 May 2019 (1,65,785) Transfer 28,72,086 1.8564
24 May 2019 (1,24,854) Transfer 27,47,232 1.7757

05 Jul 2019 (51,576) Transfer 26,95,656 1.7423
26 Jul 2019 (21,993) Transfer 26,73,663 1.7281

06 Sep 2019 (50,000) Transfer 26,23,663 1.6958
24 Jan 2020 15,173 Transfer 26,38,836 1.7056
28 Feb 2020 (40,729) Transfer 25,98,107 1.6793
06 Mar 2020 (28,338) Transfer 25,69,769 1.6610
13 Mar 2020 (9,769) Transfer 25,60,000 1.6547
20 Mar 2020 (112) Transfer 25,59,888 1.6546

At the end of the year   25,59,888 1.6546
8 THE NOMURA TRUST AND 

BANKING CO., LTD AS THE 
TRUSTEE OF NOMURA INDIA 
STOCK MOTHER FUND 

0 0.0000 01 Apr 2019 0 0.0000
13 Sep 2019 23,00,000 Transfer 23,00,000 1.4866

At the end of the year      23,00,000 1.4866
9 HSBC GLOBAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

- INDIAN EQUITY          
21,20,255 1.3704 01 Apr 2019 21,20,255 1.3704

05 Apr 2019 (70,052) Transfer 20,50,203 1.3251
12 Apr 2019 (50,000) Transfer 20,00,203 1.2928
31 May 2019 29,246 Transfer 20,29,449 1.3117
14 Jun 2019 40,016 Transfer 20,69,465 1.3376
05 Jul 2019 92,695 Transfer 21,62,160 1.3975
26 Jul 2019 17,184 Transfer 21,79,344 1.4086

At the end of the year   21,79,344 1.4086
10 SUNDARAM MUTUAL FUND A/C 

SUNDARAM SMALL CAP FUND   
22,57,329 1.4590 01 Apr 2019 22,57,329 1.4590

12 Apr 2019 (11,214) Transfer 22,46,115 1.4518
17 May 2019 (71,665) Transfer 21,74,450 1.4055

05 Jul 2019 (30,000) Transfer 21,44,450 1.3861
19 Jul 2019 (16,131) Transfer 21,28,319 1.3756

02 Aug 2019 (10,000) Transfer 21,18,319 1.3692
09 Aug 2019 (50,000) Transfer 20,68,319 1.3369
20 Sep 2019 4,217 Transfer 20,72,536 1.3396
27 Sep 2019 12,278 Transfer 20,84,814 1.3475
29 Nov 2019 (16,594) Transfer 20,68,220 1.3368
13 Dec 2019 (1,744) Transfer 20,66,476 1.3357
20 Dec 2019 (25,000) Transfer 20,41,476 1.3195
31 Jan 2020 (5,000) Transfer 20,36,476 1.3163
06 Mar 2020 (1,285) Transfer 20,35,191 1.3154

At the end of the year 20,35,191 1.3154
 11 TATA MUTUAL FUND - TATA 

HYBRID EQUITY FUND 
24,91,553 1.6104 01 Apr 2019 24,91,553 1.6104

07 Jun 2019 12,100 Transfer 25,03,653 1.6182
29 Jun 2019 55,000 Transfer 25,58,653 1.6538
30 Aug 2019 (55,000) Transfer 25,03,653 1.6182
31 Dec 2019 (12,100) Transfer 24,91,553 1.6104
17 Jan 2020 (3,66,000) Transfer 21,25,553 1.3738
24 Jan 2020 (2,20,000) Transfer 19,05,553 1.2316
31 Jan 2020 (86,000) Transfer 18,19,553 1.1761
07 Feb 2020 (50,000) Transfer 17,69,553 1.1437
20 Mar 2020 (1,55,853) Transfer 16,13,700 1.0430

At the end of the year   16,13,700 1.0430
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 12 ADITYA BIRLA SUN LIFE 
INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED               

16,35,817 1.0573 01 Apr 2019 16,35,817 1.0573
31 May 2019 (82,450) Transfer 15,53,367 1.0040
07 Jun 2019 (58,000) Transfer 14,95,367 0.9665
29 Jun 2019 (54,820) Transfer 14,40,547 0.9311
02 Aug 2019 (50,000) Transfer 13,90,547 0.8988
30 Aug 2019 (47,994) Transfer 13,42,553 0.8678
27 Sep 2019 (71,580) Transfer 12,70,973 0.8215
15 Nov 2019 (16,2921) Transfer 11,08,052 0.7162
29 Nov 2019 2,39,000 Transfer 13,47,052 0.8707
20 Dec 2019 32,860 Transfer 13,79,912 0.8919

At the end of the year 13,79,912 0.8919
13 SBI MAGNUM MULTICAP FUND                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                     
22,97,600 1.4850 01 Apr 2019 22,97,600 1.4850

17 May 2019 (30,000) Transfer 22,67,600 1.4657
05 Jul 2019 (5,40,485) Transfer 17,27,115 1.1163

18 Oct 2019 (3,00,000) Transfer 14,27,115 0.9224
25 Oct 2019 (3,06,164) Transfer 11,20,951 0.7245

01 Nov 2019 (1,92,172) Transfer 9,28,779 0.6003
08 Nov 2019 (4,12,310) Transfer 5,16,469 0.3338
15 Nov 2019 (4,32,106) Transfer 84,363 0.0545
22 Nov 2019 (84,363) Transfer 0 0.0000

At the end of the year 0 0.0000

Notes:
1) Shareholding has been consolidated based on Permanent Account Number (PAN) of shareholder
2) % of total shares of the Company is based on paid up capital of the Company at the end of the year.

v)	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

Name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

(01-04-2019)
Date

Increase / 
(decrease) in 
shareholding

Reason

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

year (01-04-2019 to 
31-03-2020)

No. of 
shares held

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares held

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

DIRECTORS
1 Mofatraj Pukharaj Munot 1,14,05,822 7.43% 01-Apr-19 - - 1,14,05,822 7.43%

11-Sep-19 (1400000) On Market Sale 10,005,822 6.47%
At the end of the year   31-Mar-20 - - 10,005,822 6.47%

2 Parag M. Munot 1,34,63,615 8.77 01-Apr-19 - - 1,34,63,615 8.77%
11-Sep-19 (55,00,000) On Market Sale 79,63,615 5.15%

At the end of the year 31-Mar-20 - - 79,63,615 5.15%
3 Sajjanraj Mehta 10,000 0.01 01-Apr-19 - - 10,000 0.01

At the end of the year 31-Mar-20 - - 10,000 0.01
4 Imtiaz Kanga 1,00,000 0.07 01-Apr-19 - - 1,00,000 0.07

At the end of the year 31-Mar-20 - - 1,00,000 0.07
5 Sanjay Dalmia 16,100 0.01 01-Apr-19 - - 16,100 0.01

At the end of the year 31-Mar-20 - - 16,100 0.01
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V.	 INDEBTEDNESS

	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(H in lakhs)

  Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits
Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i)	 Principal Amount  24,778.34  40,000.00  -    64,778.34 
ii)	 Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii)	Interest accrued but not Due  99.44  1,725.89 -  1,825.33 
Total (i+ii+iii)  24,877.78  41,725.89  -    66,603.67 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition 72,775.35 1,021.68  -   73,797.03
Reduction -4,028.42 -  -   -4,028.42
Net Change 68,746.93 1,021.68  -   69,768.61
Indebtedness  at the end  of the financial year
i)	 Principal Amount 93,506.80 40,000.00 - 1,33,506.80
ii)	 Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii)	Interest accrued but not due 117.91 2,747.57 - 2,865.48
Total (i+ii+iii) 93,624.71 42,747.57 - 1,36,372.28

(H in Crore)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration
  Mr. Mofatraj P. 

Munot, Executive 
Chairman

Mr. Manish 
Mohnot

Managing 
Director & CEO

Mr. Sanjay 
Dalmia, 

Executive 
Director

Total Amt.

1 Gross Salary
(a)	Salary as per provisions contained in 

Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
4.40 3.64 1.99 10.03

(b)	Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

- 0.01 0.01 0.02

(c)	Profits in lieu of salary under Section 
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

- - - -

2 Stock Options - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission 7.50 6.38 2.63 16.51

As % profit
5. Others, specify - - - -

TOTAL (A) 11.90 10.03 4.63 26.56
CEILING AS PER THE ACT 
(being 10% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Act)

58.71

VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

	 The above remuneration is inclusive of Employer’s contribution to Provident fund.
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(H in Crore)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration
Mr. Ram Patodia,
Chief Financial 

Officer

Mr. Rajeev Kumar
Company 

Secretary*

Mr. Basant Kumar 
Parasramka 

Company Secretary**

Total 
Amt.

1 Gross Salary
(a)	Salary as per provisions contained in Section 

17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
1.42 0.46 0.81 2.69

(b)	Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961

0.01 - - 0.01

(c)	Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961

- - - -

2 Stock Options - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - - - -

-	 As % profit
-	 Others, specify

5 Others, please specify - - - -
TOTAL 1.43 0.46 0.81 2.70

(H in Crore)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director
Total Amt.Mr. Sajjanraj 

Mehta
Mr. Vimal 
Bhandari

Mr. Narayan 
K. Seshadri

Ms. Anjali 
Seth

Mr. K.V. 
Mani

1 -	 Fee for attending Board / 
Committee meetings 

0.08 0.07 0.06 0.04 0.04 0.29

2 -	 Commission 0.41 0.27 0.27 0.14 0.11 1.20
3 -	 Others, please specify - - - - - -

TOTAL (B1) 0.49 0.34 0.33 0.18 0.15 1.49

(H in Crore)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director
Total Amt.

Mr. Parag M. Munot Mr. Imtiaz Kanga

1 -	 Fee for attending Board / Committee meetings 0.05 0.02 0.07
2 -	 Commission 1.28 0.09 1.37
3 -	 Others, please specify - - -

TOTAL (B2) 1.33 0.11 1.44
TOTAL B = B1 + B2 2.93
TOTAL MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION* 29.49
OVERALL CEILING AS PER ACT
(being 1% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 
2013)

5.87

B.	 Remuneration to other Directors

1.	 Independent Directors

2.	 Other Non-Executive Directors

		  *Total Remuneration to Executive Directors and other Directors (being the total of A and B)

C.	 REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

	 *	 Mr. Rajeev Kumar appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f.  November 6, 2019. Further, the above remuneration is for the period from 
August 01, 2020. His remuneration for the period from appointment as Company Secretary is H 27.50 lakhs.

	 **	 Mr. Basant Kumar Parasramka superannuated  on October 3, 2019 and accordingly, ceased to be Company Secretary w.e.f October 3, 2019.

	 Note: The above remuneration is inclusive of Employer’s contribution to Provident fund.



Annexure G to Board’s Report
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VII.	PENALTIES / PUNISHMENTS / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type
Section of the 

Companies Act
Brief 

Description

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority               
[ RD / NCLT 
/ COURT ]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty

NOT APPLICABLEPunishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty

NOT APPLICABLEPunishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

NOT APPLICABLEPunishment
Compounding

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mofatraj P. Munot                                                                    
Place: Mumbai	 Executive Chairman
Date :  May 20, 2020	 DIN:00046905



Report on Corporate Governance

I.	 Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance    

	 KPTL’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is built on strong foundation of transparency, compliance, ethics, accountability, 
responsibility, values and trust. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures 
fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, 
vendors, investors and the society at large. 

	 KPTL’s essential character revolves around its strong set of core values i.e. Business Ethics, Customer Centricity and Quality. 
We believe that Corporate Governance is a voluntary and self-discipline code which means not only ensuring compliance with 
regulatory requirements but also being responsive to our stakeholders needs.  KPTL strongly believes that the best Corporate 
Governance practices have been the key enablers in enhancing stakeholders’ trust & confidence, attracting & retaining financial 
& human capital and meeting societal aspirations.

	 At KPTL, the Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is at the core of our corporate governance practice and oversees how the Management 
serves and protects the long-term interests of our stakeholders.

	 The Company is in compliance, in letter and spirit, with the requirements stipulated under provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable, with regards to corporate governance.

	 Towards achievement of this philosophy, during the year under review, KPTL’s management systems were certified with ISO 
37001:2016. It is a benchmark for corporate compliance program with focus on anti-bribery and anti-corruption practices and 
is the new international standard designed to help organizations implement an anti-bribery management system.

II.	 Board of Directors

	 A.	 Composition of the Board

		  As on March 31, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company had 10 Directors, comprising of 7 Non-Executive Directors, 2 
Executive Directors (including Executive Chairman) and 1 Managing Director & CEO. Out of 7 Non-Executive Directors, 5 are 
Independent Directors including 1 Woman Director. No Directors are related to each other except Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot and 
Mr. Parag M. Munot, who are related as Father and Son. The Board structure is in compliance with Regulation 17 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

		  The shareholders of the Company at 38th Annual General Meeting held on 30th July, 2019 approved the re-appointment of Mr. 
Sajjanraj Mehta, Mr. Vimal Bhandari, Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri and Mr. K. V. Mani as Independent Directors of the Company for 
a second consecutive term of 5 years w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. 

		  Further, the shareholders at their meeting held on 30th July, 2019 have also approved regularization of Mr. Sanjay Dalmia 
as Director who was appointed as Additional Director in the category of  Executive Director for a period of 3 years w.e.f 8th 
August, 2019.

		  The tenure of Mr. Manish Mohnot, Managing Director & CEO was due to expire on 31st March, 2020 and therefore, the Board 
of Directors at its meeting held on 4th March, 2020 approved his re-appointment for further period of 5 years w.e.f 1st April, 
2020 subject to approval of shareholders at ensuing Annual General Meeting. The tenure of Ms. Anjali Seth, Independent 
Director was due to expire on 18th May, 2020 and in this regards, the Board of Directors approved the re-appointment of Ms. 
Anjali Seth as an Independent Director for further period of 5 years w.e.f 19th May, 2020, subject however to the approval of 
shareholders.

		  None of the Directors of the Company is on the Board of more than 7 listed companies including as an Independent Director. 
Further, none of the Directors of the Company is acting as a Whole Time Director / Managing Director of any listed Company 
as well as Independent Director in more than 3 listed companies. None of the Directors of the Company is a Member of more 
than 10 Committees and no Director is the Chairperson of more than 5 committees across all the public limited companies 
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in which he is a Director. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by all the Directors. 
For the purpose of determination of limit, Chairpersonship and Membership of the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee have been considered.

	 B.	 Meetings of Board of Directors

		  During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Board met 6 times on 9th May, 2019, 2nd July, 2019, 30th July, 2019, 6th 
November, 2019, 10th February, 2020 and 4th March, 2020.  The maximum time gap between any two meetings was 99 
days. All Information as required under Regulation 17 (7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 was placed before the Board of Directors. The Company has complied with the provisions of Secretarial 
Standards on Board Meetings (SS-1) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to convening of 
Board Meetings during the year.

	 C.	 Directorship held and Directors’ attendance 

		  The names of the other listed entities where Directors of the Company hold directorships and the category of directorship 
held in such listed entity as on 31st March, 2020 are as under:

Name of the Directors Name of Other Listed Entity where 
Director of KPTL is a Director

Category of Directorship held in such 
Listed entity

Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot NIL -
Mr. Parag M. Munot NIL -
Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta NIL -
Mr. Vimal Bhandari Bharat Forge Ltd 

JK Tyre & Industries Limited
DCM Shriram Limited

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri PI Industries Limited
Astrazeneca Pharma India Limited
Magma Fincorp Limited
Wabco India Limited *
CG Power and Industrial Solutions Limited

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Mr. K. V. Mani Caprihans India Limited Independent Director
Ms. Anjali Seth Caprihans India Limited

Endurance Technologies Limited 
JMC Projects (India) Limited
Centrum Capital Limited
Nirlon Limited

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Mr. Imtiaz I. Kanga NIL -
Mr. Manish Mohnot JMC Projects (India) Limited Non-Executive - Non Independent Director
Mr. Sanjay Dalmia NIL -

Name of the 
Directors

Category

Attendance at No. of 
Board 

Meetings
Last 
AGM

Other 
Director-

ship#

Other Committee 
Chairpersonship*

Other
Committee 

Membership*

Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot Executive Chairman (Promoter) 6 Yes 12 - -
Mr. Parag M. Munot Non – Executive (Promoter) 5 Yes 13 - 1
Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta Non - Executive (Independent) 6 Yes 2 1 1

* Term ended on 31st March, 2020 

		  The name and category of Directors on the Board of KPTL, their attendance at the Board meetings held during the year and 
also at the last Annual General Meeting, the number of Directorships and Committee Memberships and Chairpersonships 
held by them in other Indian companies as on 31st March, 2020 are given below:
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Name of the 
Directors

Category

Attendance at No. of 
Board 

Meetings
Last 
AGM

Other 
Director-

ship#

Other Committee 
Chairpersonship*

Other
Committee 

Membership*

Mr. Vimal Bhandari Non - Executive (Independent) 6 Yes 5 1 1
Mr. Narayan K. 
Seshadri

Non - Executive (Independent) 5 Yes 18@ 3 6

Mr. K. V. Mani Non – Executive (Independent) 5 Yes 1 - 1
Ms. Anjali Seth Non - Executive (Independent) 

Woman Director
5 Yes 7 2 4

Mr. Imtiaz I. Kanga Non – Executive (Promoter 
Group)

3 Yes 17 - -

Mr. Manish Mohnot Managing Director & CEO 6 Yes 6 - 1
Mr. Sanjay Dalmia Executive Director 4 Yes - - -

		  # Including Private Limited Companies.

		  * Represents Memberships/Chairpersonships of Audit Committee & Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of public limited companies only

		  @ Term ended as Director in one Company on 31st March, 2020

	 D.	 Separate meeting of Independent Directors

		  Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 25 (3) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all the Independent Directors of the Company met 
once during a year, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and Members of the Management.

		  The Independent Directors reviewed performance of Non Independent Directors, Chairman of the Company and the 
performance of the Board as a whole. The Independent Directors also discussed the quality, quantity and timeliness of 
flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties. The feedback of the Meeting was shared with the Chairman of the Company. 

	 E.	 Confirmation of Independence

		  In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management.

	 F.	 Directors’ Profile

		  In case of appointment or re-appointment of Director (s), a brief resume of Director(s), nature of their expertise in specific 
functional areas and company names in which they hold Directorships, Memberships/ Chairmanships of Board Committees, 
and shareholding in the Company are provided in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting annexed to this Annual Report.

	 G.	 Code of Conduct

		  The Board has laid down code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company. The Code 
of Conduct is available on the website of the Company at www.kalpatarupower.com.

		  All Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and a declaration 
to this effect signed by the Managing Director & CEO confirming the compliance of the Code of Conduct as required under 
Regulation 17 (5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been obtained and 
is given below:  :
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DECLARATION

All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have, for the year ended March 31, 2020 affirmed compliance with the 
Code of Conduct laid down by the Board of Directors in terms of Regulation 17 (5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

For Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited

Place: Mumbai	 Manish Mohnot
Date : 20 May, 2020	 Managing Director & CEO

III.	Audit Committee:

	 The Audit Committee comprises of 4 Directors out of which 3 are Independent Directors and 1 is Executive Director. The Chairman 
of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director. 

	 The Company is in compliance of the requirements of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 relating to composition of Audit Committee.

	 The Audit Committee has the power to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, seek information from any employee, 
obtain outside legal or other professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, as it considers 
necessary.

	 The role and responsibilities of the Committee include the perusal and review of information specified in Part C of Schedule II of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, inter-alia including the following:

	 	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

	 	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company; 

	 	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them; 

	 	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the 
Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

		  •	 Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s Report in terms 
of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

		  •	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices & reasons for the same 

		  •	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management 

		  •	 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 

		  •	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements 

		  •	 Disclosure of any related party transactions 

		  •	 modified opinion (s) in the draft audit report 

	 	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval; 

	 	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or 
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 
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	 	 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

	 	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

	 	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

	 	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

	 	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

	 	 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems; 

	 	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

	 	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings & follow up there on; 

	 	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 

	 	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

	 	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case 
of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

	 	 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism; 

	 	 Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

	 	 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 

	 	 Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding  
H 100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments 
existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision.

	 Additionally, the Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

	 	 Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

	 	 Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management; 

	 	 Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

	 	 Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

	 	 The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor 

	 	 Statement of deviations:

		  a.	 quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) 
in terms of Regulation 32(1).

		  b.	 annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in 
terms of Regulation 32(7).
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	 The Committee met 7 times during the year on 9th May, 2019, 2nd July, 2019, 30th July, 2019, 14th October, 2019, 6th November, 
2019, 10th February, 2020 and 4th March, 2020 and the attendance of Members at the Meetings were as follows:

Name of Member Category Status
No. of Meetings 
attended /held

Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta Non-Executive-Independent Chairman 7/7
Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot Executive-Promoter Member 7/7
Mr. Vimal Bhandari Non-Executive-Independent Member 6/7
Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri Non-Executive-Independent Member 6/7

Name of Member Category Status
No. of Meetings 
attended /held

Mr. Vimal Bhandari Non-Executive-Independent Chairman 5/5
Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot Executive-Promoter Member 5/5
Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta Non-Executive-Independent Member 4/5

	 The Managing Director & CEO, Chief Financial Officer, representatives of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor are the regular 
invitees to the Committee Meetings. Other executives including Business Unit Heads are invited as and when required. The Cost 
Auditors is invited to attend the Audit Committee meeting where cost audit report is discussed. The Company Secretary of the 
Company is the Secretary of the Committee. 

	 The Audit Committee has reviewed management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations, 
statement of significant related party transactions as submitted by the management, if any, and other information as mentioned 
in Part C of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

	 The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th July, 2019.

IV.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 Directors out of which 2 are Independent Directors and 1 is 
Executive Director. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The composition of the Committee adheres to the 
requirements of Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

	 The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as specified in Part D of the Schedule II, inter-alia includes following:

	 1.	 To formulate criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes & Independence of director and recommend to board 
a policy relating to remuneration for the Directors, KMP and other employees;

	 2.	 To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and Board;

	 3.	 To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

	 4.	 To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

	 5.	 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors;

	 6.	 recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management;

	 7.	 To perform any other functions as may be assigned to Committee by the Board from time to time. 

	 The Committee met 5 times during the year on 9th May, 2019, 30th September, 2019, 6th November, 2019, 10th February, 2020 
and 4th March, 2020 and the attendance of Members at the Meeting is as follows:
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	 Performance Evaluation 

	 The Board has prepared performance evaluation policy for evaluating performance of Individual Directors including Chairman 
of the Company, Board as a whole and its Committees thereof. The criteria of the Board evaluation includes Board composition, 
talent, experience and knowledge, presentations and discussions at the Board Meeting, frequency of the Board Meeting, feedback 
and suggestion given to the management, participation in the discussion etc.

	 The performance of Non-Independent Directors including Chairman of the Company and the Board as a whole, after taking views 
of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors were evaluated by the Independent Directors at their Meeting held on 20th May, 
2020.

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own, the Non Independent and Independent Directors 
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of various Committees at their Meetings held on 20th May, 2020 in the manner 
prescribed in the Performance Evaluation Policy.

	 The evaluation of the Independent Directors were made on the basis of attendance at the Meeting of the Board, Committee and 
General Meeting, knowledge about the latest developments, contribution in the Board development processes, participation 
in the Meetings and events outside Board Meetings, expression of views in best interest of the Company, assistance given in 
protecting the legitimate interests of the Company, employees and investors, extending individual proficiency and experience for 
effective functioning and operation of the Company, etc. 

	 Directors’ Remuneration

	 The Company’s Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is available on the website 
of your Company www.kalpatarupower.com. There has been no change in the policy since last financial year. The Remuneration 
Policy is in consonance with the existing industry practice.

	 Remuneration paid or payable to Executive Chairman, Managing Director & CEO and Executive Director for the FY 2019-20 is as 
under:

(H in Crore)

Name of Director Salary Perquisites
Contribution 

to PF
Commission 
/ Incentive

Total Stock Options 
granted

Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot 4.40 - - 7.50 11.90 -
Mr. Manish Mohnot 3.47 0.01 0.17 6.38 10.03 -
Mr. Sanjay Dalmia 1.90 0.01 0.09 2.63 4.63 -

(H in Crore)
Name of Director Sitting Fees Commission Total

Mr. Parag M. Munot 0.05 1.28 1.33
Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta 0.08 0.41 0.49
Mr. Vimal Bhandari 0.07 0.27 0.34
Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri 0.06 0.27 0.33

	 The contractual agreements with Mr. Manish Mohnot, Managing Director & CEO and Mr. Sanjay Dalmia, Executive Director can be 
terminated by either party giving 6 months’ prior notice.

	 In terms of agreements/re-appointment terms approved / to be approved by members, commission/incentive payable to  
Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot, Executive Chairman, Mr. Manish Mohnot, Managing Director & CEO and Mr. Sanjay Dalmia, Executive 
Director, is decided annually by the Board of Directors on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

	 Sitting Fees and Commission on net profit paid or payable to Non-Executive Directors for the Financial Year 2019-20 is as under: 
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(H in Crore)
Name of Director Sitting Fees Commission Total

Mr. K. V. Mani 0.04 0.11 0.15
Ms. Anjali Seth 0.04 0.14 0.18
Mr. Imtiaz Kanga 0.02 0.09 0.11

Name Age Designation Date of initial appointment Shares held

Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot 75 Executive Chairman 27th June,1989 1,00,05,822
Mr. Parag M. Munot 50 Director 30th September,1991 79,63,615
Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta 68 Director 25th July,1998 10,000
Mr. Vimal Bhandari 61 Director 28th June, 2002 Nil
Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri 62 Director 29th January, 2007 Nil
Mr. K. V. Mani 76 Director 19th January,2014 Nil
Ms. Anjali Seth 61 Director 28th March, 2015 Nil
Mr. Imtiaz Kanga 67 Director 8th March,2016 1,00,000
Mr. Manish Mohnot 47 Managing Director & CEO 1st November, 2006 Nil
Mr. Sanjay Dalmia 57 Executive Director 8th August, 2018 16,100

	 Commission is paid to the above mentioned Directors on the basis of qualifications, experience, attendance at the Meetings, 
Directorship in other companies, time spent on strategic matters and contribution to the Company, financial performance and 
net worth of the Company, Order book position, track record of operational performance, performance evaluation of Board etc.

	 The Board of Directors of the Company approved payment of commission during the year to the Director(s) who were not in 
whole-time employment of the Company in recognition of their performance during the year 2019-20 not exceeding in aggregate 
1% of net profits for the financial year 2019-20, calculated under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 Information of Directors as on 31st March, 2020 is as under:-

	 There is no pecuniary relationship or transaction of the Company with any Non-Executive Director other than the payment of 
sitting fees and remuneration, including commission, as given here above. All related party transactions are disclosed in notes to 
accounts.

V.	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

	 The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is Chaired by a Non-Executive Independent Director and comprises of 3 Directors.  
This composition of the Committee is in conformity with the requirements of Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of Mr. K. V. Mani, Mr. Parag M. Munot and Mr. Manish Mohnot. 

	 The role of the committee inter-alia includes the following: 

	 1.	 Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission of 
shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings 
etc. 

	 2.	 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 

	 3.	 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by 
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

	 4.	 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and 
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.
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		  The Committee met one time during the year on 30th July, 2019 and the attendance of members at the Meetings were as 
follows:

Name of Member Category Status
No. of Meetings
attended / held

Mr. K. V. Mani Non-Executive Independent Chairman 1/1
Mr. Manish Mohnot Managing Director & CEO Member 1/1
Mr. Parag M. Munot Non-Executive –Promoter Member 1/1

		  Mr. Basant Parasramka, Interim Compliance Officer retired from the Company on 3rd October, 2019. Consequent to his 
retirement, Mr. Rajeev Kumar, was appointed as Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 4th October, 2019 and as Company 
Secretary w.e.f. 6th November, 2019.

		  During the year, the Company has not received any complaint from its shareholders. 

		  The Board has delegated the powers of approving transfers and transmission of shares, issue of duplicate shares, issue of 
share certificates after split/consolidation/renewal and transmission of shares, to the Share Transfer Committee which was 
comprising of Mr. Parag Munot, Mr. Manish Mohnot and Mr. Kamal Kishore Jain. The Composition of Committee was changed 
by replacing Mr. Kamal Kishore Jain with Mr. Ram Patodia on 10th February, 2020. The Committee met 4 times during the 
year. No request for transfer of shares was pending as on 31st March, 2020.

VI.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

	 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of 4 Directors out of which Chairman is a Non-Executive 
Independent Director. 

	 The terms of reference of Committee broadly comprises following: 

	 	 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which includes the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII; 

	 	 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities

	 	 Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.

	 	 Institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR Projects or Programs or activities undertaken 
by the Company. 

	 The Committee met Four times during the year on 8th May, 2019, 30th July, 2019, 6th November, 2019 and 10th February, 2020. 
The composition of the CSR Committee and the attendance of Members at the Meeting were as follows:

Name of Member Category Status
No. of Meetings
attended / held

Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta Non-Executive Independent Chairman 4/4
Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot Executive – Promoter Member 4/4
Mr. Parag M. Munot Non-Executive – Promoter Member 3/4
Mr. Manish Mohnot Managing Director & CEO Member 4/4
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VII.	Risk Management Committee

	 The Company has constituted Risk Management Committee in compliance with Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements).  Majority of members of the Committee, including the Chairman, are members of Board of Directors. 

	 The Role and Responsibilities of Risk Management Committee are as under:

	 	 Review the existing Risk Management Policy, framework, processes, Risk Management Structure and Risk Mitigation Systems 
and re-frame and modify the same as required from time to time. 

	 	 To review strategic risks and operational risks and other aspects which impacts the Company and in specific Risk related to 
Cyber Security. 

	 	 Overseeing implementation / monitoring of Risk Management Plan, Framework, Processes and Policy. 

	 	 Continually obtaining reasonable assurance from management that all known and emerging risks have been identified and 
mitigated or managed. 

	 	 To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and /or enforced by any statutory notification, 
amendment or modification as may be applicable.

	 The Committee met Four times during the year on 8th May, 2019, 30th July, 2019, 14th October, 2019 and 4th March, 2020. The 
composition of the Risk Management Committee and the attendance of Members at the Meeting were as follows:

Name of Member Category Status
No. of Meetings
attended / held

Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri Non-Executive Independent Chairman 3/4
Mr. Manish Mohnot Managing Director & CEO Member 4/4
Mr. Sanjay Dalmia Executive Director Member 4/4
Mr. Ram Patodia CFO Member 4/4
Mr. Kamal Kishore Jain Director (Plant Operations) Member 3/4

VIII.	Subsidiary Companies: 

	 The List of Subsidiary and Associate Companies of the Company, has already been provided in Board’s Report in the Extract of 
Annual Return.

	 Regulation 24 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 defines a “material subsidiary” 
to mean a subsidiary, whose income or net worth exceeds twenty percent of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, 
of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year.

	 JMC Projects (India) Limited, a listed company, is a material subsidiary company.  There is no other subsidiary which qualifies 
the test of material subsidiary.  Accordingly, the requirement of having an independent director of the Company on the Board of 
unlisted material subsidiary company did not attract during the year under review. 

	 The minutes of Board Meetings of unlisted Subsidiary Companies are being placed before the Board of Directors of the Company 
from time to time. All significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the unlisted subsidiaries of the Company are also 
placed for consideration of the Audit Committee.  The other requirements of Regulation 24 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with regard to Corporate Governance requirements for Subsidiary Companies have 
been complied with.
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IX.	 General Body Meeting:

	 a.	 The details of last 3 Annual General Meetings (AGMs) of the Company are as under:

Financial Year Date Time Venue

2018-19 30th July, 2019 4:00 p.m. Kalpa-Vriksha Learning Centre, A-1 & A-2, 
GIDC Electronic Estate Sector-25, Gandhinagar

2017-18 7th August, 2018 4:00 p.m. Kalpa-Vriksha Learning Centre, A-1 & A-2, 
GIDC Electronic Estate Sector-25, Gandhinagar

2016-17 11th August, 2017 4:00 p.m. Kalpa-Vriksha Learning Centre, A-1 & A-2, 
GIDC Electronic Estate Sector-25, Gandhinagar

	 Special Resolutions in Last 3 AGMs

	 In AGM held on 30th July, 2019, seven Special Resolution were passed as under:

	 (i)	 Appointment of Mr. Sanjay Dalmia (DIN: 03469908) as an Executive Director of the Company

	 (ii)	 Re-appointment of Mr. Sajjanraj Mehta (DIN: 00051497) as an Independent Director

	 (iii)	 Re-appointment of Mr. Vimal Bhandari (DIN: 00001318) as an Independent Director

	 (iv)	 Re-appointment of Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri (DIN: 00053563) as an Independent Director

	 (v)	 Re-appointment of Mr. K. V. Mani (DIN: 00533148) as an Independent Director

	 (vi)	 Authority for creation of charge, security etc. for an amount not exceeding in aggregate H12,000 Crore (Rupees Twelve 
Thousand Crore)

	 (vii)	Issue of 12,54,900 Equity Shares on a preferential basis to Tano India Private Equity Fund II (“Tano”) for consideration other 
than cash i.e. in consideration of 1,46,45,499 equity shares held by Tano in Shree Shubham Logistics Limited

	 In AGM held on 7th August, 2018, Two Special Resolution were passed as under:

	 (viii)	Issuance of redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures upto H 300 Crore by the Company within a period of 1 year in one or 
more tranches.

	 (ix)	 Approval for continuing the Directorship of Mr. K. V. Mani (DIN: 00533148) as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the 
Company till his original term upto 31th March, 2019 although he shall attain age of seventy five years

	 In AGM held on 11th August, 2017, Two Special Resolution were passed as under:

	 (i)	 Appointment of Mr. Mofatraj P. Munot as an Executive Chairman for a period of 5 years beginning from 1st April, 2017  to 31st 
March, 2022(both days inclusive) 

	 (ii)	 Issuance of redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures upto H 100 Crore by the Company within a period of 1 year in one or 
more tranches.

	 Postal Ballot

	 No Postal Ballot was conducted during the year. There is no resolution which is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot.
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X.	 Disclosures:

	 a)	 Management Discussion and Analysis

		  Annual Report has a detailed chapter on Management Discussion and Analysis.

	 b)	 Related Party Transaction

		  All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in its 
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / 
arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company 
on materiality of related party transactions or which could have potential conflict with the interests of Company at large. 

		  The Company has received declarations from Senior Management Personnel that there was no material, financial and 
commercial transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large. 

		  The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions, such policy has been disclosed of the 
Company’s website http://www.kalpatarupower.com/corporate-governance/ 

	 c)	 Accounting treatment

		  The Company has followed accounting treatment as prescribed in Indian Accounting Standard applicable to the Company.

	 d)	 Risk Management

		  The Committee has constituted Risk Management Committee to ascertain and minimize risk and to take appropriate decisions 
for regular assessment and minimization of risks. The working of this Committee is being periodically reviewed by the Board.

	 e)	 Compliance

		  There have been no non-compliance by the Company with respect to any matter related to capital markets nor any penalty 
or stricture was imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to 
capital markets during the last three years. 

	 f)	 Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism)

		  The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting illegal or 
unethical behaviour. The Company has a vigil mechanism (whistle-blower policy) under which the employees are free to report 
violations of applicable laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct. The reportable matters may be disclosed to the ABMS 
Committee which operates under the supervision of the Audit Committee. Further, the functioning of the vigil mechanism is 
being monitored by the Audit Committee from time to time. Employees may also report violations to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee in exceptional cases. During the year, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee. 

		  The Whistle Blower Policy has been disclosed on the Company’s website http://kalpatarupower.com/corporate-governance/ 

	 g)	 Familiarization programme for Independent Directors

		  The Company has familiarized its Independent Director’s regarding the Company and its policies, their roles, rights and 
responsibilities etc. Presentations are made by senior personnel of the Company to the Independent Directors covering 
nature of Industry, business model, business performance and operations, challenges & opportunities available etc. Certain 
programmes are merged with the Board/Committee meetings for the convenience of the directors. Separate programs are 
conducted for them as per their requirement. Over and above specific Familiarization Programmes, presentations were made 
at the Board meetings by MD & CEO / CFO covering performance of peer companies, Operational review of major operating 
subsidiaries, forex and commodity exposure, updates on capital expenditure, strategic and operational risks and its mitigation 
plan, business performance, operations, working capital management, major litigations, major achievements etc.
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		  Further, the Directors are encouraged to attend the training programmes being organized by various regulators/bodies/
institutions. The Details of Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors has been disclosed on the Company’s 
website http://kalpatarupower.com/corporate-governance/.

	 h)	 Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries

		  The Company has formulated a policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries, such policy has been disclosed on the 
Company’s website http://kalpatarupower.com/corporate-governance/.

	 i)	 Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

		  The Company’s activities exposes it to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate. Company has in place a 
robust risk management framework for monitoring and mitigation of the risk of fluctuations in the currency exchange rates. 
Such risks are monitored regularly and necessary actions are taken to mitigate them in line with the Risk Management 
Policy of the Company. The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk. The 
Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The details of foreign exchange 
exposures as on March 31, 2020 are disclosed in Note No. 44 in Notes to the standalone financial statements.

	 j)	 Commodity Price Risk and Hedging Activities

		  The details regarding exposure of the Company to commodity and commodity risks faced throughout the year in terms of 
SEBI Circular Ref. No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated November 15, 2018 is as under:

		  1.	 Risk management policy of the Company with respect to commodities including through hedging 

			   As a part of broader Risk Management Policy, the Company has a dedicated framework to manage commodity risk. 
The Company’s business is significantly dependent on availability, cost and quality of raw materials and fuels for the 
construction and development of projects undertaken. Prices of commodity items used in the manufacturing and project 
execution mainly includes steel, zinc, aluminum conductors, etc. Prices of these are varied due to global economic 
conditions, supply demand mismatch, competition, production levels, and taxes etc. The Company currently manages 
such risk through the price escalation clause in some of the Contracts whereby the fluctuation in the input cost is passed 
on to the Client. In case of firm price contracts, the Company enters into a Commodity Forward Contract to hedge its 
price risk or pass on back-to-back firm price contract to its vendor/contractor. The Company addresses the risk of 
fluctuation in commodities which cannot be hedged by building adequate contingencies based on market trends. The 
Company manages such risk as per its Risk Management Policy and Procedures.

		  2.	 Exposure of the Company to commodity and commodity risks faced by the entity throughout the year

			   A.	 Total exposure of the Company to commodities in H:~ 32,852 lakhs (only for material commodities) 

			   B.	 Exposure of the Company to various commodities: 

Commodity  
Name (material 
commodity)

Exposure in   
towards the 

particular 
commodity  

(in lakhs)

Exposure in 
Quantity terms 

towards the 
particular 

commodity 

% of such exposure hedged through 
commodity derivatives

Total

Domestic International
OTC Exchange OTC Exchange

Aluminium  2,126 MT 1,894 - - 95% - 95%
Zinc  6,537 MT 4,643 - - 51% 30% 81%
Steel  24,189 MT 59,866 - - - - -

			   * Above Exposure does not include the Exposure of Variable Price Contracts wherein the fluctuation in the input 
cost is passed to the Client
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			   C.	 Commodity risks faced by the Company during the year and how they have been managed:

			   Commodities are a significant part of the Direct cost incurred by the Company for its business activities including 
fabrication of towers and erection of the transmission lines and substation. Material commodities for the Company 
are Steel, Aluminum and Zinc. Thus, movement in the prices of these commodities exposes the Company towards 
the risks of fluctuations on its profitability. The Company has a robust mechanism to monitor such risks and 
ensure that the risk of major fluctuations are mitigated. Risk Management Committee of the Company based on 
the exposure of the Company and Risk Management Policy recommends the procurement/treasury team for the 
hedging strategy. The Company uses the future commodities contracts for hedging the prices or passes on back to 
back firm price contract to its vendors. In case of material commodities which can not be hedged (viz. Steel), the 
Company addresses the risk of fluctuation in prices by building adequate contingencies based on market trends.

	 k)	 Matrix containing skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors

		  The list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the board of directors as required in the context of KPTL 
business(es) and sector(s) for KPTL to function effectively and those actually available with the board are as under:

Skills/expertise/
competence

Whether 
available 
with the 
Board or 
not?

Mofatraj 
P. Munot

Parag 
M. 
Munot

Sajjanraj 
Mehta

Vimal 
Bhandari

Narayan 
K. 
Seshadri

K. V. 
Mani

Anjali 
Seth

Imtiaz 
Kanga 

Manish 
Mohnot

Sanjay 
Dalmia

Industry knowledge/experience (EPC Industry)
Experience Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Industry knowledge Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Understanding of 
relevant laws, rules, 
regulation and policy

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

International 
Experience

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Contract management Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Technical skills/experience
Accounting and finance Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Marketing Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Information Technology Yes Yes Yes
Talent Management Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Leadership Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Compliance and risk Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Legal Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Business Strategy Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Behavioral Competencies
Integrity and ethical 
standards

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mentoring abilities Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Interpersonal relations Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
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	 l)	 Credit ratings

Instrument/Facilities
Ratings

CRISIL CARE Ratings

Long term facilities AA/Stable AA; Stable
Short term facilities A1+ A1+

		  There have been no revisions in the Credit ratings for all debt instruments of the Company during the year under review.

	 m)	 Certificate from a Company Secretary in practice 

		  The Company has obtained a certificate Mr. Urmil Ved, Practicing Company Secretary that none of the Directors on the 
Board of Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of 
companies by the SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 10(i) OF 
PART C OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 

REGULATIONS, 2015

To
The Members of
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited

I, Urmil Ved, Practicing Company Secretary, has examined the relevant records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the directors of KALPATARU POWER TRANSMISSION LIMITED having CIN: L40100GJ1981PLC004281 and 
having registered office at 101, Part-III G.I.D.C Estate Sector-28, Gandhinagar-382028, Gujarat  (hereinafter referred 
to as ‘the Company’), produced before me for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In my opinion and best of my information and according to the 
verifications, I hereby certify that none of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any such statutory authority during the year ended March 31, 2020.

	 Urmil Ved
	 Practicing Company Secretary
Date:  May 20, 2020	 FCS No. 8094, CP No. 2521
Place: Gandhinagar	 UDIN: F008094B000259917

	 n)	 Fees paid to Statutory Auditors and network firm/entities

		  The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to B S R & Co. LLP, 
Statutory Auditors and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part is as under:

Fees paid to
Amount 

(J in Crore)

B S R & Co. LLP (includes Audit fee, certification fees and reimbursement of expenses) 2.66
Other network entities -
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	 o)	 Disclosure in relation to Sexual Harassment

		  The disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 is as under:

Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil
Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year Nil
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil

XI.	 Means of Communication:

	 a.	 Financial Results

		  The Company has furnished Financial Results on the quarterly basis to the Stock Exchanges in the format and within the time 
period prescribed under the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
The Company generally publishes its Quarterly Results normally in Economic Times – English & Gujarati and Gandhinagar 
Samachar - Gujarati. 

		  The results of the Company were displayed on its website www.kalpatarupower.com. The official news releases are being 
placed on Company’s website and simultaneously sent to Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.

	 b.	 News, Release, Presentations etc.

		  Official news, Press releases, Analyst / Investor presentation, conference call transcript etc. are displayed on the website of 
the Company www.kalpatarupower.com

	 c.	 Compliance

		  The Company has regularly submitted its quarterly compliance report to the Stock Exchanges for compliance of requirements 
of corporate governance under Regulation 27 (2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015

		  The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements under various Regulations of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has obtained a certificate from its Statutory 
Auditors M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants to this effect and the same is annexed to this Report. The Company has 
also complied with certain non-mandatory requirements prescribed in Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 such as the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 
2020 are with unmodified audit opinion, etc.

	 d.	 Website

		  The Company maintains a website www.kalpatarupower.com which depicts detailed information about the business activities 
of the Company. It contains a separate dedicated section namely “Investors” where all information relevant to members 
is made available. The achievements and important events taking place in the Company like receipt of major orders are 
announced through electronic media and posted on the Company’s website also. The Company’s other press coverage and 
Analyst / Investor / Corporate presentation is also made available on the website. All the submissions made by the Company 
to Stock Exchanges are also disclosed on the website of the Company. The Annual Report of the Company is also available 
on the website of the Company www.kalpatarupower.com.
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XII.	 General Shareholder Information:

	 	 Annual General Meeting and Book Closure

		  Date, time and venue of Annual 	 :	 Wednesday, August 12, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. IST

		  General Meeting		

				    The Company is conducting meeting through Video Conferencing (VC)/
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) pursuant to the MCA circular dated 5th 
May, 2020 and as such there is no requirement to have a venue for the 
AGM. For details, please refer to the Notice of this AGM.

		  Dates of Book closure	 :	 Thursday, August 6, 2020 to Wednesday, August 12, 2020 (both days 
inclusive)

	 	 Financial Calendar

		  Financial Year	 :	 April 01 to March 31

	 	 Financial Results:

		  First Quarter Results	 :	 by August 14, 2020 

		  Half Year Results	 :	 by November 14, 2020

		  Third Quarter Results	 :	 by February 14, 2021

		  Annual Results	 :	 by May 30, 2021

	 	 Listing

		  At present, the equity shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange of India 
Ltd. (NSE). The Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company are listed on BSE Limited.

Name of Stock Exchange Stock Code Address

BSE Limited 522287 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Fort, Mumbai-400 001, Maharashtra, India

National Stock Exchange of India Limited KALPATPOWR ‘Exchange Plaza’, C-1, Block ‘G’, Bandra-
Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),  
Mumbai – 400 051, Maharashtra, India

		  The Company has already paid the listing fees for the year 2020-21 to both the Stock Exchanges.

	 	 Stock Market Data

		  Monthly High and Low prices of the Company’s shares with a face value of H 2 each during financial year 2019-20 on BSE 
and NSE are as under:

Month

BSE Ltd. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
High 

Share 
Price J

Low 
Share 

Price J

S&P BSE Sensex 
during the Month

High 
Share 

Price J

Low 
Share 

Price J

Nifty 50 during the 
Month

High Low High Low

Apr-19 498.2 453.25 39487.45 38460.25 499.90 453.30 11856.15 11549.1
May-19 546 446 40124.96 36956.1 547.40 442.20 12041.15 11108.3
Jun-19 533.35 476.5 40312.07 38870.96 533.80 477.40 12103.05 11625.1
Jul-19 553.5 462.3 40032.41 37128.26 554.50 461.00 11981.75 10999.4
Aug-19 502.4 415.1 37807.55 36102.35 502.95 415.00 11181.45 10637.15
Sep-19 515 429.2 39441.12 35987.8 515.50 428.05 11694.85 10670.25
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Month

BSE Ltd. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
High 

Share 
Price J

Low 
Share 

Price J

S&P BSE Sensex 
during the Month

High 
Share 

Price J

Low 
Share 

Price J

Nifty 50 during the 
Month

High Low High Low

Oct-19 494.45 424 40392.22 37415.83 497.35 424.00 11945 11090.15
Nov-19 468 425.5 41163.79 40014.23 467.70 429.00 12158.8 11802.65
Dec-19 463.95 383.1 41809.96 40135.37 465.00 382.65 12293.9 11832.3
Jan-20 475.65 408.05 42273.87 40476.55 477.00 406.00 12430.5 11929.6
Feb-20 464.6 325 41709.3 38219.97 464.00 326.70 12246.7 11175.05
Mar-20 341.5 170 39083.17 25638.9 341.20 169.50 11433 11244.6

	 	 Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA)
		  Link Intime India Private Limited
		  506-508, Amarnath Business Centre -1
		  Beside Gala Business Centre,
		  Near St. Xavier’s College Corner,
		  Off C. G. Road,
		  Navrangpura, Ahmedabad – 380009

		  Email: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
		  Tel. & Fax: 91 79 26465179

	 	 Share Transfer System

		  As per direction of Securities and Exchange Board of India, except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, 
requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in dematerialized form with 
a depository. This measure has come into effect from 1st April, 2019. The transfer deed(s) once lodged prior to deadline and 
returned due to deficiency in the document may be re-lodged for transfer even after the deadline of 1st April, 2019.

		  The Company has obtained the half yearly certificates from a Company Secretary in Practice for due compliance of share 
transfer formalities as per the requirement of Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. These certificates have been submitted to the Stock Exchanges. 

		  A Company Secretary-in-Practice has carried out an Audit, on quarterly basis, to reconcile the total admitted capital with 
National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited and the total issued & listed capital. 
The Audit confirms that the total issued / paid-up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares 
in physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialized form. Such reconciliation of share capital audit report was 
submitted to Stock Exchanges on quarterly basis.

		  KPTL's High Low Avg. Price Comparision with BSE Sensex 
High Low Avg.
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	 	 Distribution of Shareholding: (As on 31st March, 2020)

No. of Shares of Members No. of Share Held
J 2 each Number % of Total Number % of Total

Upto 500 32170 89.5951 2238120 1.4466
501	 –	 1,000 1911 5.3222 1594959 1.0309
1,001	 –	 2,000 773 2.1528 1135727 0.7341
2,001	 –	 3,000 300 0.8355 745775 0.4820
3,001	 –	 4,000 166 0.4623 597654 0.3863
4,001	 –	 5,000 115 0.3203 528251 0.3414
5,001	 –	 10,000 191 0.5319 1337363 0.8644
10,001 and Above 280 0.7798 146537621 94.7143
Total 35906 100 154715470 100

	 	 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2020

Sr. No. Category No. of Shares held % of Shares held

A Promoter & Promoter Group Holding :   
1 Promoter 1,79,69,437 11.62%
2 Promoter Group 6,61,45,226 42.75%
B Non Promoters' Holding :   
1 Institutions   
 Mutual Funds 3,62,16,988 23.42%

Alternate Investment Funds 5,64,618 0.36%
 Foreign Portfolio Investor 1,14,04,305 7.37%
 Financial Institutions & Banks 22,771 0.01%

Insurance Companies 89,14,856 5.76%
2 Non-Institutions

Individuals 85,70,677 5.54%
 Bodies Corporate 16,78,346 1.08%
 NRIs 14,35,344 0.93%
 Others 17,92,902 1.16%
 Total 15,47,15,470 100%

		  *Out of above, Promoters & Promoter group have pledged 4,83,68,214 Equity Shares constituting 57.50% of their holding in the Company and 

31.26% of total equity of the Company.

	 	 Unclaimed Shares

		  There are no unclaimed shares lying with the Company in Demat Suspense account / Unclaimed Suspense account. 

	 	 Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

		  99.71% Shares are in demat form as on 31st March, 2020

		  ISIN No. (For Dematerialized Shares): INE220B01022

		  The shares of the Company are frequently traded on both the stock exchanges and hence the shares of the Company are 
liquid.

	 	 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Convertible Instruments 

		  The Company has no GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Convertible Instruments outstanding as on 31st March, 2020

141

C O R P O R AT E 
O V E R V I E W

M A N A G E M E N T 
R E P O R T S

S TAT U T O R Y 
R E P O R T S

F I N A N C I A L 
S TAT E M E N T S



	 	 Transfer of Unpaid / Unclaimed amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

		  Pursuant to provisions of Companies Act, 2013, dividends which remain unclaimed / unpaid over a period of seven years are 
required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF constituted by the Central Government.

		  Following are the details of Dividends paid by the Company and their respective due dates of transfer to the IEPF if they 
remain unclaimed by the Members.

Dividend for the year Date of Declaration of Dividend
Last date upto which members are 

entitled to claim the dividend

2012-13 25th July, 2013 28th August, 2020
2013-14 27th September, 2014 27th October, 2021
2014-15 29th September, 2015 2nd November, 2022
Interim Dividend 2015-16 14th March, 2016 14th April, 2023
2016-17 11th August, 2017 13th September, 2024
2017-18 7th August, 2018 8th September, 2025
2018-19 30th July, 2019 29th August, 2026
Interim Dividend 2019-20 4th March, 2020 3rd April, 2027

		  During the year under review, the Company has credited H 4.97 lakhs to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 
pursuant to applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

		  During the year under review, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 the Company has transferred 7,157 
equity shares of H 2/- each, to the credit of IEPF Authority, in respect of which dividend had remained unpaid or unclaimed 
for seven consecutive years or more. 

		  The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 30th July, 2019 
(date of last Annual General Meeting) on the Company’s website (www.kalpatarupower.com), as also on the website of IEPF 
Authority (www.iepf.gov.in).

	 	 Debenture Trustees

7.90%, 8.45% and 8.11% Unsecured Redeemable NCDs 
of J 100 Crore each

Zero Coupon Unsecured Taxable Rated Redeemable 
Non-Convertible Debenture of J 100 Crore

Vistra ITCL (India) Limited 
The IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot C- 22, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra(E),
Mumbai 400051
Tel:-  + 91 22 2659 3535
Fax:-  + 91 22 2653 3297
Website: www.vistraitcl.com 

Axis Trustee Services Limited
The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW,
29 Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Dadar West, 
Mumbai – 400028
Tel No : +91-22-62260054
Fax : +91-22-43253000
Website: www.axistrustee.com

	 	 Plant Location

Main Plant 2nd Plant at Gandhinagar Raipur Plant:
Plot No.101, Part III,
G.I.D.C. Estate, Sector – 28
GANDHINAGAR – 382 028	
Tel : 079 – 23214000 
Fax : 079- 23211966

Plot No. A-4/1, A-4/2, A-5,  
G.I.D.C. Electronic Estate,
Sector – 25,
Gandhinagar – 382 025
Tel.: 079-23214400
Fax : 079-23287215

Khasra No.1778, 1779
Old Dhamtari Road
Village : Khorpa
Tehsil : Abhanpur
Dist : Raipur, Chhattisgarh
Tel. : 0771 2772700
Fax :  0771 2446988
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		  27BB, Tehsil Padampur	 Near Village Khatoli
		  Dist. Sri Ganganagar	 Tehsil Uniara, Dist. Tonk
		  Rajasthan - 335041	 Rajasthan - 304 024                                        
		  Tel. : 0154 - 2473725	 Tel.:  01436 – 260665
		  Fax : 0154  -2473724	 Fax.: 01436 – 260666

R&D Tower Drawing & Design Centre 

Plot No.101, Part III, 		
G.I.D.C. Estate, Sector – 28	
GANDHINAGAR – 382 028	
Tel : 079 – 23214000 
Fax : 079- 23211966

Registered Office 
(Address for Correspondence)
Plot No.101, Part III, 		
G.I.D.C. Estate, Sector – 28	
GANDHINAGAR – 382 028	
Tel : 079 – 23214000 
Fax : 079- 23211966

R & D Proto Tower Development & Validation Centre 

At Punadara Village (PIN: 387610)	
Near Talod Dam
Taluka – Prantij 
Dist. Sabarkatha (Gujarat)
Tel : 02770- 255414

Corporate Office		
“Kalpataru Synergy” 
7th Floor, Opp. Grand Hyatt Hotel,
Vakola, Santa Cruz (East),
Mumbai – 400 055
Tel.: 022 – 30645000
Fax: 022 – 30643131

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mofatraj P. Munot                                                                    
Place: Mumbai	 Chairman
Date :  May 20, 2020	 DIN:00046905

Biomass Energy Division (Power Plant)

Report on Corporate Governance
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CEO/CFO Certificate

Board of Directors
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited

We, Manish Mohnot, Managing Director & CEO and Ram Patodia, Chief Financial Officer, to the best of our knowledge and belief, hereby 
certify that:

(a)	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2020 and that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief:

	 (i)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might 
be misleading;

	 (ii)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b)	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal 
or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(c)	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and 
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps 
we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d)	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

	 (i)	 That there is no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

	 (ii)	 That there is no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements; and 

	 (iii)	 That there is no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Mumbai	 Manish Mohnot	 Ram Patodia
Date  : May 20, 2020	 Managing Director & CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
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To the Members of Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited
1.	 This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 21 June 2019 and addendum to the 

engagement letter dated 1 April 2020 with Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited.

2.	 This report contains details of compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited (‘the 
Company’), for the year ended on 31 March 2020, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and 
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with Stock exchanges.

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations
3.	 The compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company, 

including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedure to ensure the compliance with conditions of the 
Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility
4.	 Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 

of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of 
the Company.

5.	 Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations for the year ended 31 
March 2020.

6.	 We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes, Guidance 
Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) and 
the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose 
of this certificate. The Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical 
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

7.	 We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms 
that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagement

Opinion
8.	 In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to explanation given to us and the representation provided by the 

Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in Regulation 
17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, as applicable.

9.	 We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use
10.	 The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to 

comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. 
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom 
this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Vikas R. Kasat
Partner

Mumbai	 Membership No: 105317
20 May 2020	 ICAI UDIN: 20105317AAAABM4682

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on 
Corporate Governance

145

C O R P O R AT E 
O V E R V I E W

M A N A G E M E N T 
R E P O R T S

S TAT U T O R Y 
R E P O R T S

F I N A N C I A L 
S TAT E M E N T S



Business Responsibility Report

Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited (“KPTL” or “the Company”) views sustainability as being socially responsible and 
believes in inclusive growth of all sections of the society. Foundations of economic growth can be strengthened only if the entire 
society is a part of the growth story. Sustainable growth is embedded in and inseparable part of our culture. 

This Business Responsibility Report has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and the National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, 
Environmental & Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVGs) released by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India. This 
Report provides a broad overview of the activities carried out by the Company against the nine principles outlined in the NVG.

Section A: General Information about the Company

7.	 Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-wise):

	 Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited (KPTL) is engaged in the business of power transmission and infrastructure EPC executing 
projects that deliver complete solutions covering design, testing, manufacturing, fabrication, erection and construction of 
transmission lines, oil and gas infrastructure and railways projects on a turnkey basis. The Company is also engaged in High 
voltage substation business both in air insulated (AIS) and gas insulated (GIS) segment in domestic as well as international 
markets. The Company has also set up two Biomass power generation plant in Rajasthan.

	 As per National Industrial Classification – The Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation

8.	 List three key products/services that the Company manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet):

	 1.	 Design, testing, fabrication and manufacturing of Transmission Line Towers and erection, procurement and construction of 
transmission lines and sub-station on a turnkey basis

	 2.	 Railways EPC services for executing civil infrastructure, bridges, new track laying, track rehabilitation, gauge conversion, 
signaling & telecommunication, over-head electrification, traction sub-station projects for Railways and manufacturing of 
Railway Structures. 

	 3.	 EPC contracting services for cross-country pipelines, terminals and gas gathering stations across diverse territories

9.	 Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company:

	 (a)	 Number of International Locations (Provide details of major 5) – 

		  KPTL is undertaking business activity in about 35 international locations. The major locations include Sierra Leone, Botswana, 
Bangladesh, Mauritania and Thailand. 

1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L40100GJ1981PLC004281
2 Name of the Company : Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited
3 Registered Address : Plot No. 101, Part – III, G.I.D.C. Estate, Sector – 28, Gandhinagar – 382028, 

Gujarat, India
4 Website : www.kalpatarupower.com
5 Email ID : cs@kalpatarupower.com
6 Financial year reported : 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2020

Industrial Group Description

251 Manufacture of structural metal products, tanks, reservoirs and steam gener-ators
421 Construction of roads and railways
422 Construction of utility projects
351 Electricity Power Generation, Transmission and Distribution

146

KALPATARU POWER TRANSMISSION LIMITED A N N U A L 
R E P O R T

2019-20

http://www.kalpatarupower.com
mailto:cs%40kalpatarupower.com?subject=


Section B: Financial Details of the Company

Section C: Other Details

1 Paid up capital (INR) : H 30.94 Crore
2 Total turnover (INR) : H 7,904.03 Crore
3 Total profit after taxes (INR) : H 463.05 Crore
4 Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of profit after tax : 0.81%

	 (b)	 Number of National Locations

		  KPTL is undertaking business activity in about 140 national locations. The Company’s manufacturing plants are situated at 
Gandhinagar and Raipur. The Company also has two Biomass power generation plants at Padampur and Uniara in Rajasthan.

10.	Markets served by the Company: Local/State/National/International: All 

5.	 List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been incurred:

	 The Company undertook various activities during the year under review in line with its CSR Policy and as prescribed in Schedule VII to 
the Companies Act, 2013. Apart from long term ongoing projects, the Company has undertaken various other programme and projects 
under its CSR Policy in the field of Healthcare including Preventive Healthcare, Ensuring environmental sustainability, Promoting 
Education, Flood Relief activities, Promotion to Technology incubators, etc. The Company also ran CSR Project for Combating and 
Containing Novel Corona Virus (CoVID-19) through various relief activities. The Company also incorporated a Section 8 Company 
limited by Guarantee named as Kalpataru Foundation to carry out CSR activities of Kalpataru Group at a consolidated level.

	 The major activities carried out during year under review were running of multi specialty dispensary Kalp-Seva Arogya Kendra at 
Gandhinagar and Mumbai, Project Rashtriya Netra Yagna for curing avoidable blindness, Repair and Renovation of different Rural 
Child care Anganwadi Centres (approx. 21) to combat child hunger and malnutrition, Conservation of water and Development of 
Green Belt through Canal cleaning/deepening, Plantation etc., Sanitation Project through Construction / Rehabilitation of Urinals 
and Toilets and Education promotion initiative like Construction of Boundary Wall at Primary School, Flood Relief Operations in 
the wake of incessant rains and widespread flooding in Kolhapur, Maharashtra, Setting up Mini Science Laboratory consisting 
of interactive Mathematics & Science working models at Government Schools, Contribution for supporting various activities of 
Atal Incubation Centre which promotes startups working in areas of water conservation, Swachh Bharat Abhiyaan, affordable 
healthcare, Electric Mobility and Renewable energy, Combating and Containing Novel Corona Virus (CoVID-19) through various 
relief activities etc. 

	 For detailed information regarding CSR activities of the Company, you may refer Annexure A to Directors’ Report.

1.	 Does the Company have any subsidiary company / companies?

	 Yes, the Company has 23 subsidiary companies (including step-down subsidiaries) in India and abroad as on 31st March, 2020.

2.	 Do the subsidiary company / companies participate in the Business Responsibility (BR) initiatives of the parent 
Company? If yes, then indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s).

	 The subsidiaries have their own BR initiatives which are influenced by the Company. The Company encourages all its subsidiary 
companies to participate in group wide BR initiatives to the extent that they are material in relation to the business activities 
of the subsidiaries. In addition, JMC Projects (India) Limited, a listed subsidiary of the Company will have its own Business 
Responsibility Report as a part of Annual Report. 
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3.	 Do any other entity / entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, participate in 
the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity / entities? [Less than 30%, 30-
60%, More than 60%]

	 Yes. KPTL engages with relevant Stakeholders for sustainability initiatives. The suppliers, contractors and Vendors are sensitized 
on Sustainability through various KPTL Policies and Programs. KPTL actively engages with several stakeholders’ like local 
communities, government and other entities in the value chain and promote BR initiatives in its value chain. At present, the 
number of entities which directly participate in the BR initiatives would be less than 30%.

1.	 Details of Director / Directors responsible for BR:

a)	 Details of the Director / Directors responsible for implementation of the BR policy/ policies:

2.	 Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy / policies 

(a)	 Details of Compliance (Reply in Y/N)

b)	 Details of the BR head:

Section D: BR Information

DIN Number : 01229696
Name ; Mr. Manish Mohnot
Designation : Managing Director & CEO

Name : Mr. Ram Patodia
Designation ; Chief Financial Officer
Telephone Number : +91 22 3064 3978
Email id : ram.patodia@kalpatarupower.com
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P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 Do you have policy/policies for Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 
2 Has the policy been formulated in con-

sultation with the relevant stakehold-
ers? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3 Does the policy conform to any na-
tional /international standards? If yes, 
specify? 

All the policies are compliant of respective principles of NVG guidelines, the Companies Act, 2013 and 
confirm to International standards of ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001 and ISO 37001 as applicable 
to respective policies.

4 Has the policy be-ing approved by the 
Board? If yes, has it been signed by 
MD/owner/CEO/ appropriate Board 
Director? 

Y - Y Y Y - Y Y -
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(b)	 If answer to Sr. No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)

Sr. 
No.

Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 The Company has not 
understood the principle 

Not Applicable

2 The Company is not at stage 
where it finds itself in a position 
to formulate and implement the 
policies on speci-fied principle 

3 The company does not have 
finan-cial or manpower 
resources available for the task 

4 It is planned to be done within 
next six month 

5  It is planned to be done within 
next one year

6 Any other reason (please 
specify) 
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P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

5 Does the company have a specified 
committee of the Board/ Director/ Of-
ficial to oversee the implementation of 
the policy? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be 
viewed online? 

All the policies except HR Policies can be viewed at www.kalpatarupower.com. HR Policies are restricted to 
employees of the Company and uploaded on the Company’s Intranet

7 Has the policy been formally communi-
cated to all relevant internal and exter-
nal stakeholders? 

The policies have been communicated to key internal Stakeholders. The communication is an ongoing 
process to cover all internal and external stakeholders.

8 Does the company have in-house 
structure to imple-ment the poli-cy/
policies.

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

9 Does the Company have a grievance 
redressal mecha-nism related to the 
policy/policies to address stakehold-
ers’ grievances re-lated to the policy/ 
policies? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

10 Has the company carried out inde-
pendent audit/ evaluation of the 
working of this poli-cy by an internal or 
external agency? 

Y Y Y Y - Y - Y Y
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3.	 Governance related to BR:

	 (i)	 Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR performance 
of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year:

		  The Company’s Business Responsibility performance is assessed annually. 

	 (ii)	 Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How frequently 
it is published?

		  This report comprises the Company’s 4th Business Responsibility Report as per the NVGs and as required under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which is published as a part of Annual Report. The Company 
publishes BR Report annually. The Company currently does not publish a separate Sustainability Report.

		  The Hyperlink for viewing this report is www.kalpatarupower.com.

Principle 1: Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

1.	 Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the Company? Yes/No. Does it extend to the Group /Joint 
Ventures /Suppliers /Contractors /NGOs / Others?

	 At KPTL, a value system has been built that serves as a moral compass which guides the Company and its stakeholders in their 
business practices. It is the KPTL’s Policy to conduct all its business activities with honesty, integrity and highest ethical standards. 
KPTL has adopted Code of Conduct (“KCoC”) and framed Anti Bribery and Anti Corruption policy to remain consistently vigilant 
and ensure ethical conduct of its operations. Moving a step ahead, KPTL was certified with ISO 37001:2016. ISO 37001:2016 
specifies requirements and provides guidance for establishing, implementing, maintaining, reviewing and improving an anti-
bribery management system. It is a benchmark for corporate compliance program with focus on anti-bribery and anti-corruption 
practices and is the new international standard designed to help organizations implement an anti-bribery management system.

	 The Anti Bribery and Anti Corruption Policy is extended to the KPTL workforce, subsidiaries, joint ventures, Suppliers, Contractors 
and NGO’s working with KPTL and all other individuals or entities with which KPTL deals or enters into Transactions in India or 
abroad. 

2.	 How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily 
resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

	 The Company strongly emphasizes on adherence of Business Ethics by all its stakeholders and during the year under review, 
the Company did not receive any complaints from its Stakeholders in this regards. Further, a vigilance mechanism is in place 
for Directors and employees to report their concerns about actual or suspected fraud, unethical behavior or violation of the 
Company’s ethics and Code of Conduct. This is ensured through the Whistle-Blower policy. During the year under review, no 
complaint was received under Whistle-Blower policy.

Section E: Principle-wise Performance
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Principle 2: Business should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their 
life cycle

1.	 List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or 
opportunities. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material 
etc) per unit of product (optional):

	 I.	 Reduction during sourcing / production / distribution achieved since the previous year through the value chain?

	 II.	 Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) achieved since the previous year?

	 At KPTL, its management ensures that environment, health and safety aspects are taken into consideration at the inception stage 
itself, while manufacturing products or providing services to customers. 

	 The state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities deploy leading manufacturing practices to ensure continuous reduction in 
consumption of various resources and material. The Company keeps on implementing different scientific mixture of chemicals 
along with Flux re-generation plant which is helping it to continuously bring down consumption of chemicals, water and zinc 
in Galvanizing process. The Company has replaced gas furnace by 75KW induction furnace for hot bending of steel sections. 
It provides faster and more precise heating into the metal part to be heated (called the work piece), therefore reducing the 
consumption of energy and is considered environmentally friendlier than other methods. Induction heating is a complex process 
including electromagnetic, thermal and metallurgic phenomena. The Company is continuously working for improving energy 
efficiency either through improved operations or through adoption of better technologies. The Company has taken number of 
initiatives for reduction in raw material consumption like it has introduced new software for planning which helps in quick and 
efficient plate nesting thereby reducing the steel waste, it has further engineered steel wire requirement in loading components 
for Galvanizing which has led to reduction of steel wire requirement etc. 

	 The Company executes Transmission Line Projects on EPC basis which requires the Company to carry out range of Project execution 
activities like Construction of Access Roads, Soil investigation, Piling & Pile caps, Foundation, Erection of Tower, Stringing of 
Conductor & OPGW, Painting of towers, dismantling of overhead lines, Excavation works, Transportation of materials etc. Hence, 
it becomes imperative on part of the Company to ensure protection of Environmental, biophysical, cultural archaeological and 
socio-economic values within the project area. To achieve this, on a case to case basis, the Company adheres to a Generic as well 
as detailed site specific Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) to avoid, minimize and mitigate any construction 
effects on the environment and surrounding communities. Furthermore, Environment & Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) Study 
is carried out by KPTL clients prior to floating tenders wherein multilateral funding agencies and export credit agencies are 
involved. As an EPC contractor, during the project execution, KPTL ensures strict compliances to ESIA guidelines as per the 
norms. Construction waste is disposed-off in accordance with the approved environment plan for the project.

	 The Company is also engaged in the business of EPC contracting services for laying Oil and Gas pipelines. Cross country Pipeline 
Engineering incorporates both social & environmental concerns while designing the yield/tensile strength, depth/cover and wall 
thickness of pipes. Pipeline route selection also incorporates both social as well as environmental concerns to ensure that local 
population gets employment opportunities while safe distance is maintained and necessary equipment’s & techniques are used to 
minimize dust and noise pollution during construction. Further, Oil & Gas pipelines, as a concept is most environmentally friendly 
mode of transportation of oil, products & gas. Gas pipeline projects provide ample opportunities for industries to operate on 
clean energy and flourish.

	 Rail electrification is an important part for De-carbonization. Electric trains generally perform better than equivalent diesel vehicles 
and contribute in pollution free atmosphere and reduced noise and air pollution. In FY 2019-20, KPTL has done electrification 
work for about 1500 Track k.m. helping Indian Railways get rid from Fossil Fuel use. All Railways EPC Business services are 
screened for environmental and social risks. The Company ensures that sustainability aspects, environmental concerns, risks and 
opportunities are duly integrated into our engineering and design of Railway Projects.
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	 The Company also has two dedicated Biomass power generation plants of 7.8 and 8.0 MW respectively which generate carbon 
neutral renewable form of energy which in its entirety contribute positively to a greener environment by converting waste materials 
into clean energy and Carbon Emission reductions. This plants use agriculture waste and crop residues as inputs and generate 
power. Both the plants are registered with UNFCCC and have achieved Gold Standard Certification. During the year under review, 
the Company has constructed Zero Liquid Discharge, holding & settling chambers and sludge drying beds for use of waste water 
at both Biomass plants. The processed water from these chambers is passed through Media Grate Filters for final polishing. This 
results in re-use of waste water and reduces consumption of fresh water. Our activities are aimed towards minimum Auxiliary 
Consumption, Minimum Water Consumption and minimum raw material consumption per unit of power generation.

2.	 Does the Company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? If yes, what percentage of 
your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so. 

	 Yes, the Company conforms to responsible sourcing with respect to emissions, safety, human rights and ethics, apart from the 
economic considerations as part of the sourcing procedure. The major suppliers of the Company have obtained national and 
international certifications with respect to environment management systems etc. Conformance to labour principles and related 
laws are mandatory qualification requirements for all supply and services. The Company encourages use of environment friendly 
goods & services. The respective policies of KPTL extends to suppliers/vendors/sub-contractors and lays down the requirements 
on various aspects of sustainability such as Health & Safety, environment protection, ethics & compliance, bribery & corruption, 
Human Rights etc. 

3.	 Has the Company undertaken any steps to procure goods and services from local and small producers, including communities 
surrounding their place of work? If yes, what steps have been taken to improve the capacity and capability of local and small 
vendors?

	 KPTL’s ambition is to create more societal value through creating more and more opportunities – directly and indirectly for local 
and small producers. At manufacturing plants, KPTL promotes small fabricators to work inside the plant under supervision of 
its engineers. Further, small vendors are developed near factory area and necessary training and Supplier Audit are conducted 
to maintain product standards. The Company also equip them to control steel wastage & adhere to Manufacturing quality plan. 
These steps have led to creation of employment opportunities and skill development of the local population.

	 At Project sites, special emphasis is given to employ people from surrounding communities in project construction activities 
for improving their skills, livelihood & involvement in nation building. Regular trainings are also imparted to the locally hired 
personnel to make them self-sufficient for future projects and operations & maintenance. Furthermore, various equipment’s, 
transportation vehicles etc. are hired locally to ensure income generation opportunities for surrounding communities 

	 The Biomass power generation plants procure the bio waste from surrounding Farmers, thereby leading to economic upliftment 
of local community. Further, a lot number of local workers get employment benefit in relation to logistics of the Biomass. More 
than 3,700 farmers and 18,500 logistics workers were benefitted from additional income, created by Biomass power generation 
plants by purchasing their bio wastes every year.

	 However, being EPC Company, project procurement involves Technology Oriented supplies and has to be done from client 
approved vendors, out of which most of them are not located near place of work of the Company. However, the Company 
encourages new and small size vendors and also represents from time to time to get such vendors approved from client.

4.	 Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes, what is the percentage of recycling of products 
and waste? (Separately as < 5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

	 The Company promotes recycling and the use of alternative materials. Our products are ‘engineered to order’ based on specific 
customer requirements, limiting the scope for material recycling. Zinc Ash and Zinc Dross generated through manufacturing process 
is sold to authorized recyclers / reusers who recycle it for value materials available in it (< 5%). The Steel wastage is sold to the 
recyclers for re-using the material (5-10%). The Company complies with all applicable regulatory requirements pertaining to waste 
disposal as prescribed by the regulatory agencies. Water generated from Effluent Treatment plants is used for Gardening purpose. 
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	 Bed Ash and Fly Ash generated from burning Agriculture waste at Biomass power plant is used for manure additives in the fields 
& for land filling and in Cement industries respectively. Further waste water generated at Biomass plants is treated in ETP and 
then re-used in ash quenching and dust suppression.

Principle 3: Business should promote the wellbeing of all employees 

1.	 Please indicate total number of employees:

	 The Company has a total of 3,531 employees as on 31st March, 2020. 

2.	 Please indicate total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis:

	 The Company has a total of more than 12,000 employees engaged on temporary/contractual/casual basis as on 31st March, 
2020.

3.	 Please indicate the number of permanent women employees:

	 The Company has 90 permanent women employees as on 31st March, 2020.

4.	 Please indicate the number of permanent employees with disabilities:

	 The Company has 13 permanent employees with disabilities as on 31st March, 2020.

5.	 Do you have an employee association that is recognized by the Management?

	 No there is no employee association which is recognized by the management of the Company.

6.	 What percentage of permanent employees are members of this recognized employee association?

	 Not Applicable

7.	 Please indicate the number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the 
last financial year and those pending as on the end of the financial year.

8.	 What percentage of under mentioned employees were given safety and skill up-gradation training in the last year? 

	 (a)	 Permanent employees
	 (b)	 Permanent women employees
	 (c)	 Causal / subcontracted employees
	 (d)	 Employees with disabilities

	 KPTL’s in house Learning Centre “Kalpa-Vriksha Learning Centre” with state-of-the-art facilities has been our lighthouse in 
skilling and preparing our teams for future requirements. With the launch of various leadership development and functional/
technical skill building initiatives, KPTL is continuously preparing for the future in addition to nominating senior leaders and key 
role holders to leadership development programs at IIM, ISB, Harvard etc.

Sr. 
No.

Category 
No of complaints 
filed during the 
financial year 

No of complaints 
pending as on end 

of the financial year 

1. Child labour/forced labour/involuntary labour NIL NIL
2. Sexual harassment NIL NIL
3. Discriminatory employment NIL NIL
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	 With the easily accessible Learning Management System (“LMS”), an e-learning platform, available to all employees and 
accessible at all times, various new Technical & Behavioural modules have been added to the well-stocked repository of tools 
already available on LMS, to name few – Tower Erection, Open Foundation, Cube Testing, Pile Testing, Stringing Activity, POSH, 
Negotiation Skills, Kalpataru Code of Conduct, PMS guidelines, Advance Excel, Welding in OnG, Trenching in OnG, and around 
40+ other technical and soft skill modules.

 	 Furthermore, major programs / initiatives in FY 2019-20 conducted for employee skill upgradation are as under:

	 •	 Project Management Certification Course with objective of migration from Construction Management to Project management

	 •	 Organized more than 6 batches under the 3 Tier Leadership Development Intervention covering approx. 129 participants 
under Leading with a growth mindset, LEAP and LEAD programs.

	 •	 152 Mentoring meetings conducted under KPTL mentoring journey up to March, 2020 (300+ total meetings held since 
launch of the program in FY 19). 

	 •	 Conducted more than 188 focused trainings across India and overseas locations internally covering 2,800+ participants

	 •	 Sponsored specific training programs, Coaching, Job Rotation, Programs on Team Building, Collaboration & Effective 
Communication Skills

	 •	 Spiritual / Motivational Training Programs for employees at Gandhinagar, Mumbai, Noida and Raipur

	 •	 Trainings on Positive Attitude, Personality Development, Wellness etc.

	 During FY 2019-20, KPTL conducted 608 Programs in various fields for skill up-gradation of its workforce spanning over ~6,450 
man-days and in total 7706 participants participated in such programs from time to time. Approx. 98% of the permanent 
employees while 98% of permanent women employees received skill up-gradation trainings during FY 2019-20.

	 The employees and labourers of the Company were also imparted various types of Safety awareness trainings like Behavior based 
safety, Work at Height & Fall protection, Hot work safety (Welding work/Gas cutting work/Grinding Work), Electrical safety, 
Excavation safety, Fire Prevention and Fire Fighting Training, Defensive driving, Material handling, First Aid, Risk Management and 
Control at Workplace, Safety while working with earth moving equipment, Environment Aspect and Impact Studies, Emergency 
Preparedness/Disaster Management, Railway track Safety, OHE Work Safety, Transmission line Erection safety, Transmission 
line Stringing Safety etc. The Company also conducted Safety mock drills and Fall & PPE Demonstrations for imparting practical 
experience to its workforce. To create awareness about safety related matters, the Company undertook special campaigns by 
celebrating Fire Safety Day, Environment Day, National Safety Day / week, Road Safety week, World Earth day etc.

	 During FY 2019-20, 100% of permanent employees including permanent women employees and employees with disabilities and 
100% of Casual / Subcontracted employees were imparted safety trainings on continuous basis. 

	 The efforts of the Company towards skill upgradation of its employees and overall safety culture was recognized and Company 
was conferred upon with various Awards in this regards, details of which are provided in Director’s Report. 

Principle 4: Business should respect the interest of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who 
are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized

1.	 Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders? Yes/No

	 Yes, the Company has mapped its internal and external stakeholders along with vulnerable, marginalized and disadvantaged 
stakeholders. This enables KPTL to understand that its stakeholder’s comprise a large and mixed community with varied 
expectations and KPTL always strives to match their expectations to foster strong relationships with them. We conduct business 
professionally to create value for all stakeholders ensuring that we are a responsible partner that serves the wider interests of 
society
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	 The key categories and their modes of engagements are as below:

2.	 Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders?

	 Yes. The Company acknowledges that it is very important to engage proactively with marginalized stakeholders to demonstrate 
a sincere commitment as it can take a long time to build trust with these stakeholders. The Company runs specific programs 
under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) umbrella focused on benefitting the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized 
communities. 

3.	 Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized 
stakeholders? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so 

	 Yes, the CSR initiatives of the Company are aimed at improving lives of weaker sections of society and contribute to sustainable 
living of communities. Few such activities are listed below:

Stakeholders Medium of Engagement

Investors and shareholders Investor meetings, Investor Conferences, Conference Calls, Annual General meetings, Press 
Releases, Investor Presentations, Annual Report etc.

Government and Regulatory 
Authorities

Industry associations, forums and Statutory filings etc.

Employees Employee Engagement Surveys, Meetings, newsletters, Circulars, notices, Corporate policies, 
trainings, Welfare / social initiatives including Annual get-together for employees and their 
families, Employee family engagement Programs, town hall meetings etc.

Clients / Customers Client meetings, monthly / quarterly Project review meetings, Performance Reports etc.
Local community Visits, Camps, Corporate Social initiatives, meetings with villagers, farmers etc.
Bankers / Lenders Regular review meetings, Pre-defined Reports etc.
Suppliers Site visits, Supplier’s visit, personal / telephonic interactions etc.
Contractors Review meetings, Training to contractor workers etc.

Disadvantaged, vulnerable 
and marginalized 
stakeholder group

Initiatives 

Poor and economically 
underprivileged section of 
society (including Rural & 
Tribal Poor and Urban Slum 
Dwellers)

•	 Medical services (consultation and treatment) at subsidized rates at Kalpa Seva Arogya 
Kendra, Gandhinagar, Gujarat and Mumbai, Maharashtra

•	 Free Eye Surgeries
•	 Sanitation through Construction / Rehabilitation of Urinals and Toilets
•	 Combating and Containing Novel Corona Virus (CoVID-19) through various relief activities 

like distributing nearly 50,000 meals for poor and needy etc. 
•	 Research activities and Diagnosis of Cancer Patients

Poor and Needy Students •	 Infrastructural Development in and around and at government schools
•	 Repair and Renovation of different Rural Child care Anganwadi Centres (approx. 21) to 

combat child hunger and malnutrition
•	 Educational Support
•	 Interactive Mathematics & Science working models based Mini Science laboratories to 

learn science and mathematics in more effective and interesting way
Needy Girl children •	 Education Promotion by contributing VAN for commutation by needy girls children to 

School
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Disadvantaged, vulnerable 
and marginalized 
stakeholder group

Initiatives 

Homeless, helpless, hopeless, 
destitute persons

•	 Support for the residential homes by the name ‘Apna Ghar Ashram’, where all facilities like 
treatment, food, clothing, personal care, and medical/surgical treatments are provided free 
of cost to homeless, helpless, hopeless, destitute persons generally found in very harsh and 
painful conditions on roadsides, railway stations, bus stands, religious and other public 
places.

Specially abled individuals •	 School Bus for bringing needy deaf children to School
Patients suffering from 
Parkinson’s disease

•	 Providing support and rehabilitation to people suffering from the debilitating condition of 
Parkinson’s disease through support centres

Flood Victims •	 Clothes, Utensils, Mosquito net, food items etc. for flood relief activities

	 An Annual Report on such activities carried out by the Company for well-being of community at large is annexed as Annexure A 
to the Director’s Report.

Principle 5: Business should respect and promote human rights

1.	 Does the Company’s policy on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers / 
Contractors / NGOs / others?

	 KPTL is committed for ‘Protection of Human Rights’ across its value chain including of its employees, workers, and other key 
stakeholders involved in its operations and has established system and practices for maintaining transparency, fairness and equity. 
KPTL’s Corporate Human Rights Policy specifies guidelines, which the parties should observe while doing business with KPTL like 
comply and adhere to all the applicable human rights laws and national laws, avoid human rights abuses, respect the rights of 
people in communities impacted by the business activities, Treat everyone fairly and without discrimination etc. The Corporate 
Human Rights Policy extends to subsidiaries and Joint Ventures of KPTL and Suppliers, Vendors, Contractors etc. of KPTL.

2.	 How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily resolved 
by the Management?

	 The Company has not received any stakeholder complaints in the past financial year.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make effort to restore the environment

1.	 Does the policy pertaining to this Principle cover only the Company or extends to the Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers / 
Contractors / NGOs / others?

	 KPTL is committed to conserving of natural resources and minimizing potential harmful environmental effects resulting from 
its manufacturing and construction activities. The Environmental, Occupational Health & Safety Policy (EOHS Policy) of the 
Company covers the Company and its Contractors & all other relevant stakeholders. The EOHS Policy encourages the Company 
to consolidate and improve environmental performance through formulation and implementation of environment protection 
procedures and practices in its Operations. Environment protection and the conservation of natural resources are part of KPTL’s 
business philosophy.

2.	 Does the company have strategies / initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, global 
warming, etc? Y / N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

	 Yes, as a responsible Company, KPTL carries out initiatives to address global long-term challenges such as climate change 
and diminishing resources in a socially, ecologically and economically responsible manner. During the year under review, the 
Company developed Green Belt through Canal cleaning/deepening, Plantation etc. for conservation of water and protection 
of environment. The Company’s automation drive also embodies environmental issues in its considerations. The Company has 
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integrated the galvanizing process with ERP system which will now enable the Company to minutely capture data metrics and 
use the same for process improvement to save energy consumption. The Company started use of Precast Tower Foundations 
in its Transmission Line Projects which has immensely reduced the resource requirements & improved environment protection. 
The Company has embedded environmental concerns such as global warming in its manufacturing process and therefore, as a 
continuous ongoing activity it introduces energy efficient machineries and processes in plant and project sites optimizing the use 
of natural resources on an ongoing basis. 

	 The management system of all our manufacturing plants are ISO 14001:2015 certified which provides reasonable assurance that 
the outputs from the system will have minimal negative environmental impact and improved environmental performance due to 
resource efficiency, reduction in wastage and assurance that environmental impact is measured and mitigated appropriately. 

	 Further, in order to contribute to sustainable development and renewable energy, the Company has two Biomass power generation 
plants and both the plants have been registered with UNFCC under the Clean Development mechanism and both the projects has 
contributed to a great extent over years in reducing carbon intensity of emissions and have earned Gold Standard Certifications.

3.	 Does the Company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N

	 Yes, the Company, in its different businesses, does identifies and assess potential environmental risks and adopts a formal 
approach to mitigate and minimize any potential damage to the environment viz. In Transmission Line business funded by 
multilateral funding agencies and export credit agencies, Environment & Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) Study is carried out by 
KPTL clients prior to floating tenders. The scope of ESIA is to identify, evaluate & report the environmental and socio-economic 
effects of the project. The process includes identification of mitigative measures, that will be used to reduce or eliminate potential 
adverse effects, where appropriate. KPTL ensures that Mitigative measures are implemented during the course of project 
construction under the supervision of competent authority from the government. The authority provides required certification 
for operation of the project, upon satisfactory implementation & compliances of mitigative measures. In certain contracts, KPTL 
itself conducts ESIA study. 

4.	 Does the Company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism (CDM)? If so provide details thereof, in about 
50 words or so. Also, If Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?

	 Yes, the company has two projects registered as Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) projects under United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC), the details of which are as under:

	 (a)	 Biomass Power Generation Project at Ganganagar, Rajasthan registered under fixed crediting period (10 Years) from  
1st August 2003 to 31st July 2013. The project Registration Number is 0058. The link of the project at UNFCCC is  
https://cdm.unfccc.int/Projects/DB/TUEV-SUED1112801052.32/view. The total number of Carbon Emission Reductions 
approved by UNFCCC during aforesaid 10 years’ period were 339755/t CERs. Further, since the fixed crediting period 
has expired, the Company is exploring other avenues for offsetting Carbon credits generated at Ganganagar plant in the 
International market.

	 (b)	 Biomass Plant Project at Tonk registered under renewable crediting period (7 years x 3). First crediting period was 7th October, 
2008 to 6th October, 2015. The project registration number is 1774. The second crediting period is 7th October 2015 to 6th 
October, 2022. The link of the project at UNFCCC is https://cdm.unfccc.int/Projects/DB/TUEV-SUED1207570579.37/view 
The total number of Carbon Emission Reductions approved by UNFCCC during said first 7 years period were 276281/t CERs. 
In the Second Crediting Period the number of Carbon Emission Reduction approved by UNFCCC during 7th October 2015 
to 31st March, 2017 were 57229/t CERs. For the period of 1st April 2017 to 30th Sept 2018, Gold Standard Organization 
labeled the 68627/t CERs. For the next period of 1st October, 2018 to 31st December, 2019, the number of Carbon Emission 
Reduction approved by UNFCCC were 63157/t CERs.

	 Both the above projects have achieved Gold Standard Certification. Gold Standard is the only premium quality standard for 
carbon emission reduction projects with added sustainable development benefits and guaranteed environmental integrity. 

	 Periodical Compliance Reports, as applicable are submitted to CPCB and SPCB from time to time.
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5.	 Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on - clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy etc.? Y/N. If 
yes, provide hyperlink to web page etc.

	 The Company has a 303.3 KWp roof top solar plant at Gandhinagar factory (Main Plant) which generated renewable solar 
energy of approx. 3.60 lakhs units during FY 2019-20 saving about 292 MT CO2 during FY 2019-20. The Company also has 
four windmills installed to generate renewable energy for captive consumption. The four windmills generated renewable energy 
of more than 15.50 lakhs units during FY 2019-20. The Company is continuously working for improving energy efficiency either 
through improved operations or through adoption of better technologies. The Company is focused on maximizing energy-
efficiency and reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emission intensity. At various office locations and manufacturing locations, the 
Company on continuous basis is replacing conventional light fittings with energy efficient LED Lights. 

	 Please refer Annexure E to Director’s Report which contains details of steps taken by the Company for Conservation of energy.

6.	 Are the Emissions / Waste generated by the Company within the permissible limits given by CPCB / SPCB for the financial 
year being reported?

	 Yes, the emissions / waste generated are within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB. 

7.	 Number of show cause / legal notices received from CPCB / SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as of 
end of financial year.

	 There are no show cause / legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending as of end of financial year. 

Principle 7: Business, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

1.	 Is your Company a member of any trade and chambers of association? If yes, name only those major ones that your business 
deals with.

	 Yes, the Company is a member of the following key associations:

	 •	 Confederation of Indian Industry

	 •	 Federation of Indian Chamber of Commerce and Industry

	 •	 The Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry of India

	 •	 Indian Electrical & Electronics Manufacturers’ Association (IEEMA)

	 •	 Gujarat Chamber of Commerce and Industry

	 •	 Exim Club (Association of Exporters & Importers)

	 •	 Project Exports Promotion Council of India

	 •	 EEPC India 

	 •	 International Pipeline & Offshore Contractors Association

	 •	 Central Board of Irrigation and Power

	 •	 Cable and Conductors Manufacturers Association of India
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2.	 Have you advocated / lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/No; 
If yes specify the broad areas (Governance and Administration, Economic Reform, Inclusive Development Polices, Energy 
security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others):

	 KPTL doesn’t engage in any form of lobbying activities. However, it actively works for improvement of public good and therefore 
engages with business forums and trade associations. KPTL’s Senior executives are active members of industry bodies that 
participate in the development of public policy that addresses issues affecting industry, business and clients. Advocacy policy is 
in place to ensure that advocacy positions are consistent with the principles and core elements contained in “Our Values” of the 
Company and various policies of the Company, which enhances business responsibility and transparency.

	 KPTL is broadly involved in Governance and Administration, Economic Reform and Energy security areas for advocating public 
good. 

Principle 8: Business should support inclusive growth and equitable development

1.	 Does the company have specified programme / initiatives/ projects in pursuit of the policy related to principle 8? If yes 
details thereof.

	 KPTL has always been at forefront in fulfilling its Social Responsibilities. It has various long term multiyear as well as short term 
projects and programs under its CSR Policy. “Kalp - Seva Arogya Kendra” functioning through Kalpataru Welfare Trust provides 
medical services to economically underprivileged sections of the society. The Trust supports multi-specialty dispensary and 
pathological laboratory with ultra-modern infrastructure and facilities viz. X- Ray, Sonography, Dental etc. and organizes regular 
visits by MD Physician, ENT, Dentistry, Gynecology, Orthopedics and Child specialists with check-up camps from the medical 
fraternity of Gandhinagar at very nominal cost where free medicines are also distributed. The “Kalp - Seva Arogya Kendra - 
Gandhinagar” has been operational for approx. 10 years since 2009 benefitting on an average approx. 100 patients per day. 
Kalpataru Welfare Trust also operates Kalpa Seva Arogya Kendra in Mumbai and it collaborates with well-meaning NGOs and 
individuals to provide specialized healthcare (consultation and treatment) at subsidized rates. During the year under review, 
various Osteopathy Camps and Health Awareness Camps were organized. During such camps, the Specialized Doctor’s provide 
treatment to patients suffering from arthritis, back pain, joints, muscles, frozen shoulder, spine and postural problems. On an 
average, more than 700-800 patients are benefitted every month through this Camps and till date more than 13,000 patients 
have availed services of this Camps. The Company has provided free eye surgeries to more than 3,300 patients till date through 
its CSR Partner Vision Foundation of India. 

	 Apart from such long term ongoing projects, the Company has also undertaken various other programme and projects under 
its CSR Policy in the field of Ensuring environmental sustainability, Promoting Education, Flood Relief activities, Promotion to 
Technology incubators, Combating COVID-19 etc. 

2.	 Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team / own foundation /external NGO/Govt. structure /any 
other organisation?

	 The Company follows multiple models for implementing its CSR initiatives. Kalpataru Welfare Trust is a registered trust 
established by the Company and runs Kalpa-Seva Arogya Kendra in Gandhinagar and Mumbai which provides medical services. 
These initiative has a huge coverage both in terms of scale as well as impacts. The Company has also undertaken Projects 
through External Registered Trusts and Societies. Recently, the Company has also incorporated a Section 8 Company named as 
“Kalpataru Foundation” for large scale implementation of CSR Projects of Kalpataru Group. 

3.	 Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

	 The Company undertakes impact assessment of certain CSR Projects and Programs on continuous basis and assess the benefits 
gained to the community through its CSR initiatives. In addition, certain External Registered Trusts and Societies through which 
Company carries out its CSR initiatives have done Impact assessment of the CSR Projects/Programmes. 
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4.	 What is the Company’s direct monetary contribution to community development projects - Amount in INR and the details of 
projects undertaken?

	 The Company’s direct monetary contribution to community development projects in FY 2019-20 was H 376.44 lakhs. An Annual 
Report on details of projects undertaken as CSR activities is annexed as Annexure A to the Director’s Report. 

5.	 Have you taken steps to ensure that community development initiative is successfully adopted by the community? Please 
explain in 50 words or so.

	 A 360 degree project implementation approach is adopted by the Company to implement CSR Projects across its locations 
which includes need assessment, Participatory planning / collaboration formation, collaborative implementation, monitoring, 
project evaluation and learning and redesigning the Project. This approach paves way for successful adoption of CSR initiatives 
by the beneficiary community. This also ensures large scale participation by target audience for whose benefit the Projects are 
designed. External Trusts / Societies through which Company undertakes some of its initiatives have a track record of various 
years in performing such activities and based on ongoing feedback received by them from beneficiaries of its existing Programs, 
KPTL carries its initiatives through such Trust / Society which leads to a successful adoption by the beneficiary Community and 
sustained outcomes. 

Principle 9: Business should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

1.	 What Percentage of customer complaints / consumer cases are pending as on the end of FY 2019-20?

	 There are no customer complaints / consumer cases pending as of end of FY 2019-20. Also the Company is not providing / 
selling its services / products to end consumers. The product and services supplied / provided by KPTL are generally industrial 
inputs which are used for commercial purposes and not by end consumers.

2.	 Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws? Yes/
No/N.A. /Remarks (additional information)

	 The Towers manufactured by KPTL carry adequate labelling and codes thereby providing adequate information to Clients. The 
Company also displays Client specified information viz. Client name, project name for which the Tower is being supplied etc. 

3.	 Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising 
and/or anti-competitive behavior during the last five years and pending as of end of Financial year? If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so

	 There are no cases filed against the Company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive 
behavior during the last five years.

4.	 Did your company carry out any consumer survey / consumer satisfaction trends?

	 Customer Centricity and Quality are the core values of KPTL, which are integrated into DNA of KPTL. KPTL is committed to provide 
products and services which consistently comply with agreed specifications and contractual requirements and in a manner 
that results in high degree of customer satisfaction. Various Clients and customers of the Company has repeatedly recognized 
satisfactory professional performance of KPTL, quality of work, Project Execution skills and ethical business dealings. KPTL’s 
unremitting effort is to deliver project completion ahead of time with best quality in each of our business. KPTL also seeks 
feedback from its Clients on completion of project in the form of a questionnaire on various aspects of materials and services 
supplied by KPTL. In EPC business, Customer satisfaction is noted at “Project Completion Certificate” and various clients across 
all businesses have issued satisfactory Project Completion Certificates during FY 2019-20.

Business Responsibility Report
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	 Furthermore, below appreciations / certificates were received by KPTL from its client during FY 2019-20:

	 A)	 On the occasion of National Safety Week’ 2019 Celebration, APTRANSCO, the Company’s client conferred the Company with 
Safety Appreciation Certificate in recognition and appreciation for continual improvement & excellent performance in safety 
at 400kV Rachagunneri, 132kV Yerpedu & 220kV Naidupet Substations.

	 B)	 Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (“PGCIL”) conferred a Certificate of Appreciation for EHS Performance of the 
Company in recognition and appreciation for continual improvement and excellence performance in Occupational Health, 
Safety & Environment for the period 2019-2020 at 765kV D/C PS Hexa Varanasi – Vidhyanchal Transmission Line Project.

	 C)	 PGCIL also conferred a “Certificate of Appreciation” to the Company for achievement of successfully executing 765kV S/C 
Sipat Bilaspur Transmission Line CKT 1 & CKT 2 without any lost time accident and maintaining improved EHS & Quality 
Standards.

	 D)	 Transmission Corporation of Andhra Pradesh Limited issued Appreciation Letter for successfully completion of Upgradation 
of 220/132 kV Rachangunneri SS to 400/220/132 kV Rachangunneri SS and connected Transmission network adhering to 
100% safety and Quality norms.

	 E)	 M/s Technip FMC presented to the Company HSE Award for successfully achieving one million safe man hours and for 
outstanding performance in safety initiatives while executing IGHDS project of IOCL at Assam, India.

	 F)	 Engineers India Limited, a Navratna Company appreciated the Company on achievement of two million man hours without 
any Lost Time Accident as EPC Contractor for Balance of Plant & Utilities on LSTK basis for LPG Import facility at BPCL, 
Haldia.

	 KPTL have also won various other accolades from its clientele at both domestic and international front for execution of well-
planned strategy and deftly laid out business processes. This clearly depicts the satisfaction trends amongst the customers of 
KPTL. 

	 On behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Mofatraj P. Munot
Place: Mumbai	 Executive Chairman
Date : 20 May, 2020	 DIN: 00046905
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To the Members of 
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of 
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, 
and the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes 
in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, 
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information, in which are included the financial 
statements of one joint operation for the year ended on that 
date audited by other auditor of the Company’s joint operation 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘standalone financial statements’). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2020, and profit and other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on  
that date.  

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained and evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of 
their reports referred to in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
the Standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Sr. 
No.

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Recognition of contract revenue and margin:

The Company enters into Engineering Procurement and 
Construction (EPC) contracts, which are complex in nature 
and span over a number of reporting periods.

Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 
requires an entity to select a single measurement method 
for the relevant performance obligation which depicts the 
entity’s performance in transferring goods or services. In 
case of onerous contract, present obligations are recognized 
and measured as provisions. 

The Company is recognizing contract revenue and margin for 
these contracts based on input method, in accordance with 
the requirement of the standard. It relies on management’s 
estimates of the final outcome of each contract, and involves 
management judgement, particularly in forecasting the cost 
to complete a contract, valuing contract variations, claims 
and liquidated damages. 

Our procedures included the following:

•	 We selected a sample of contracts to test, using a risk-based 
criteria which included individual contracts with:

	 -	 significant revenue recognised during the year;

	 -	 significant unbilled work in progress (WIP) balances held 
at the year end; or

	 -	 low profit margins.   

•	 Obtained an understanding of management’s process for 
analyzing long term contracts, the risk associated with the 
contract and any key judgements.

•	 Evaluating the design and implementation of key internal 
controls over the contract revenue and cost estimation 
process through the combination of procedures involving 
inquiry, observations, re-performance and inspection of 
evidence.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Sr. 
No.

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified contract accounting as a key audit matter 
because the estimation of total revenue and total cost to 
complete the contract is inherently subjective, complex 
and require significant management judgement. The same 
may get subsequently changed due to change in prevailing 
circumstances, assumptions, contract variations etc., and 
could result in significant variance in the revenue and profit 
or loss from contract for the reporting period.

Refer note 23 to the standalone Financial Statements.

 •	 Verified underlying documents such as contract, and its 
amendments, key contract terms and milestones, etc. for 
verifying the estimation of contract revenue and costs and /
or any change in such estimation.

•	 Evaluating retrospective results for contracts completed 
during the current year. Comparing the final outcome of the 
contracts with previous estimates made for these contracts 
to assess the reliability of management forecasting process.

•	 Considered the adequacy of the disclosures in note 23 to the 
standalone financial statements. 

2. Recoverability of carrying value of loans investment

The assessment of recoverable value of the Company’s 
investment in and loans receivable from certain subsidiaries 
involves significant judgement. These include assumptions 
such as discount rates, current work in hand, future contract 
wins/ future business plan, recoverability of its receivables 
and growth rate.

We focused on this area as a key audit matter due to 
judgement involved in forecasting future cash flows and the 
selection of assumptions.

Refer note 6 and 8 to the standalone Financial Statements.

Our procedures included the following:

•	 Evaluated the design and implementation and testing 
operating effectiveness of controls over the management 
review process of impairment assessment.

•	 Evaluated net worth and past performance of the Company 
to whom loans given or investment made.

•	 Challenged the significant assumptions and judgements used 
in impairment analysis, such as forecast revenue, margins, 
terminal growth and discount rates with the assistance of 
our valuations specialist;

•	 Comparing the previous forecast to actual results to assess 
the Company’s ability to forecast accuracy.

•	 Performing sensitivity analysis on Key assumptions including 
discount rates and estimated future growth.

•	 Evaluated accuracy of disclosures in the financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial 
Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual 
report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed 
and based on audit report of other auditor, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility 
for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, 
profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 

Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd..)
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of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate  internal  
financial  controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the 
management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board 
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by 
the Management and Board of Directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management 
and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd..)
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Other Matter 

We did not audit the standalone financial statements of one 
joint operation included in the standalone financial statements 
of the Company whose standalone financial statements reflect 
total assets of Rs 75.43 crores as at March 31, 2020 and 
total revenue of Rs 63.64 crores, total net profit after tax of  
Rs. 0.80 crores and cash (outflow) of Rs. 0.11 crores for the year 
ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial 
statements. The said standalone financial statements and other 
financial information have been audited by the other auditor 
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 
of joint operation, is based solely on the report of such other 
auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 
2016 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government  
in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the 
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 (A)	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

		  a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

		  b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

		  c)	 The standalone balance sheet, the standalone 
statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the standalone statement 
of changes in equity and the standalone statement 
of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

		  d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

		  e)	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 
from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

		  f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

	 (B)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

		  a)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations as at March 31, 2020 on its financial 
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer 
Note 30 to the standalone financial statements; 

		  b)	 The Company has made provision, as required under 
the applicable law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts. Refer Note 33 and 
Note 44 to the standalone financial statements; 

		  c)	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

		  d)	 The disclosure in the standalone financial statements 
regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified 
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 
to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these 
financial statements since they do not pertain to the 
financial year ended March 31, 2020.

	 (C)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the 
Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16): 

		  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 
the Company to its directors during the current year 
is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of 
the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not 
in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 
of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not 
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which 
are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

		  Vikas R Kasat
Partner

Mumbai 	 Membership No: 105317
May 20, 2020			   UDIN: 20105317AAAABI8352
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent 
Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2020, we report the following: 

(i)	 a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 b)	 The Company has a regular programme of physical 
verification of its fixed assets and by which all the fixed 
assets are verified in phased manner over a period of 
three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance 
with the policy, the Company has physically verified 
its fixed assets during the year and we are informed 
that no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties 
as disclosed in Note 5(i) to the standalone financial 
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

		  Immovable properties of land and buildings whose 
title deeds have been pledged as security for loans 
are held in the name of the Company based on the 
confirmations directly received by us from lenders. 
In respect of immovable properties been taken on 
lease and disclosed as property, plant and equipment 
in the standalone financial statements, the lease 
arrangements are in the name of the Company.

(ii)	 The inventory has been physically verified by the 
management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency 
of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed 
on verification between the physical stocks and the book 
records were not material and have been properly dealt with 
in the books of account.

(iii)	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the 

provisions of Clause 3 (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any 
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 
185 of the Act. Accordingly, compliance under Section 185 
of the Act is not applicable to the Company. In our opinion, 
and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has made investment referred in Section 
186(1) of the Act and have complied with the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Act, to the extent applicable.

(v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not accepted deposits during the year as 
per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and 
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.

(vi)	 We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained 
by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the 
Central Government for the maintenance of cost records 
under Section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion 
that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have 
been made and maintained. However, we have not made 
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)	a)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the 
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and 
services tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
have been regularly deposited during the year with the 
appropriate authorities. 

		  According to the information and explanations given to 
us, no material undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, duty of customs, goods and services tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 
March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable.
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	 b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of service tax, duty of custom, income tax, 
value added tax, goods and services tax and other material statutory dues have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities on account of any dispute, except as stated below:

Name of Statute Nature of Dues
Amount 
(Rs. in 

crores)*
Period to which it relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

 Amount paid 
under protest / 

refund withheld by 
department 

(Rs. in crores)

Sales Tax and Value 
Added Tax Laws

Sales Tax and 
Value Added Tax

22.66 2007-08 & 2010-11 Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals)

1.72

  3.46 2009-10 to 2013-14 High Court 1.74
  8.88 Various years from  

2011-12 to 2014-15
Joint Commissioner 
(Appeals)

2.67

                       
1.62

Various years from  
2005-06 to 2012-13

Tribunal 6.78

The Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty                      
0.23 

Various years from  
2010-11 to 2014-15

Tribunal 0.13

The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 68.80 Various years from  
2003-04 to 2014-15

Tribunal 4.98

The Madhya Pradesh 
Sthaniya Kshetra Me 
Mal Ke Pravesh Par Kar 
Adhiniyam, 1976

Entry Tax                       
0.18 

2011-12 Commercial Tax 
Appellate Board

1.10

The Odisha Entry Tax 
Act, 1999

Entry Tax                        
0.17

2009-10 to 2013-14 Tribunal                                           
0.01  

The Central Excise Act, 
1994

Excise Duty 4.93 2015-16 & 2016-17 Tribunal -

The Central Excise Act, 
1994

Excise Duty 0.39 2011-12 to 2015-16 Commissioner 
(Appeals)

-

Algerian Tax Laws I.B.S., I.R.G., 
T.A.P. and T.V.A.

                 
25.52 

2008 to 2009 Ministry of Finance, 
General Directorate of 
Taxes, Algeria

8.20

Senegal Tax Laws Tax on income                    
3.63

2016 to 2017 General Directorate of 
Taxes and Domains, 
Dakar, Senegal

22.00

*net of amount paid under protest / refund withheld by department

(viii)	According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 
and borrowings to the banks, financial institutions and 
dues to debenture holders. The Company did not have any 
outstanding loans and borrowings to Government. 

(ix)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way 
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. In our opinion and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, the term 
loans taken by the Company during the year have been 
applied for the purpose for which they are raised.

(x)	 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given to us 
except fraud on the Company committed by an erstwhile 
employee of the Company resulting into loss suffered of Rs. 
2.45 crore, we have neither come across any instance of 
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we 
been informed of any such case by the management.

(xi)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd..)
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remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act.

(xii)	According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 
2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)	According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required 
by applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv)	According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of Section 42 of the Act in respect of preferential allotment 
of shares through non-cash equity swap transactions 
during the year. Further, according to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, we report that no amounts 

were raised in respect of preferential allotment being non-
cash equity swap transaction. 

(xv)	According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with them.  
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.

(xvi)	According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not required to be registered under Section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

		  Vikas R Kasat
Partner

Mumbai 	 Membership No: 105317
May 20, 2020			   UDIN: 20105317AAAABI8352

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd..)



170

KALPATARU POWER TRANSMISSION LIMITED A N N U A L 
R E P O R T

2019-20

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report 
on the standalone financial statements of Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Report on the internal financial controls with 
reference to the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A) (f) under ‘Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our report of 
even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements of Kalpataru Power Transmission 
Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction 
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements and such internal financial controls were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 
“Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are 
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed 
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were established and maintained and whether such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with 
Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the  
financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls 
with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

		  Vikas R Kasat
Partner

Mumbai 	 Membership No: 105317
May 20, 2020			   UDIN: 20105317AAAABI8352

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report (Contd..)
on the standalone financial statements of Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Standalone Statement of Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2020

(H in Crores)

Particulars Note
 As at 

31st March, 2020
As at 

31st March, 2019

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipments 5 (i)  584.87  558.86 
(b) Capital Work in Progress  39.52  7.74 
(c) Intangible Assets 5 (ii)  9.04  11.80 
(d) Right of Use Assets 37  39.81  -   
(e) Financial Assets

(i)	 Investments 6  864.22  648.56 
(ii)	Trade Receivables 7 (i)  100.33  90.38 
(iii)	Loans 8 (i)  456.46  283.79 
(iv)	Others 9 (i)  19.90  18.77 

(f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 10  -    15.66 
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 11 (i)  48.92  43.24 

 2,163.07  1,678.80 
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 12  738.93  622.10 
(b) Financial Assets

(i)	 Trade Receivables 7 (ii)  3,517.39  3,281.26 
(ii)	Cash and Cash Equivalents 13  303.39  136.51 
(iii)	Bank Balances other than  (ii) above 14  33.69  8.97 
(iv)	Loans 8 (ii)  174.13  155.09 
(v)	Others 9 (ii)  60.56  22.45 

(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 15  37.06  15.20 
(d) Other Current Assets 11 (ii)  2,203.80  1,964.54 

 7,068.95  6,206.12 
Assets classified as held for sale 6.2  422.61  366.96 

TOTAL ASSETS  9,654.63  8,251.88 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 16  30.94  30.69 
(b) Other Equity 17  3,504.65  3,121.47 

 3,535.59  3,152.16 
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings 18 (i)  299.29  454.22 
(ii)	Trade Payable 19 (i)
	 (a)	total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and  

small enterprises
 -    -   

	 (b)total outstanding dues of creditors other than  
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 206.89  171.54 

(iii) Other financial Liabilities 20 (i)  34.90  13.24 
(b) Provisions 22 (i)  27.19  26.30 
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 10  5.11  -   
(c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 21 (i)  3.69  46.04 

 577.07  711.34 
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings 18 (ii)  878.09  153.70 
(ii)	Trade Payables 19 (ii)
	 (a)	total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and  

small enterprises
 68.60  31.76 

	 (b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 2,067.63  2,028.09 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 20 (ii)  418.59  171.06 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 21 (ii)  1,787.69  1,683.48 
(c) Provisions 22 (ii)  321.37  303.83 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 15  -    16.46 

 5,541.97  4,388.38 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  9,654.63  8,251.88 
Significant Accounting Policies and 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  1 to 52 

		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
In terms of our report attached
For B S R & Co. LLP	 Ram Patodia	 Manish Mohnot
Chartered Accountants	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director & CEO
Firm Registration No : 101248W/W-100022		  DIN : 01229696

Vikas R Kasat	 Rajeev Kumar	 Sanjay Dalmia
Partner	 Company Secretary	 Executive Director
Membership No : 105317		  DIN: 03469908
Mumbai : May 20, 2020		  Mumbai : May 20, 2020
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2020

(H in Crores)
Particulars  Note  2019-20  2018-19 

Revenue from Operations 23  7,904.03  7,115.11 
Other Income 24  58.39  51.21 
TOTAL INCOME  7,962.42  7,166.32 

EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 25  3,329.70  2,948.55 
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods and Work in progress 26  (62.15)  4.61 
Erection, Sub-Contracting and other Project Expenses 35  2,634.78  2,296.57 
Employee Benefits Expense 27  525.67  454.10 
Finance Costs 28  166.23  119.01 
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 5  110.48  85.99 
Other Expenses 29  615.98  633.11 
TOTAL EXPENSES  7,320.69  6,541.94 
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax  641.73  624.39 
Exceptional Items - gain 49  23.94  -   
Profit Before Tax  665.67  624.39 
Tax Expense
	 Current Tax  171.20  221.30 
	 Deferred Tax  31.42  1.79 
Profit for the year  463.05  401.30 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss 
	 Actuarial Gain /(Loss) on Defined Plan Liability   0.44  2.37 
	 Income tax on Actuarial Gain /( Loss )  0.07  (0.83)

 0.51  1.54 
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss 
	 Exchange differences in translating foreign operation  8.78  8.61 
	 Gain/(Loss) on hedging instruments   (43.41)  19.05 
	 Income tax on above items   10.19  (9.66)

 (24.44)  18.00 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  439.12  420.84 

Earnings per Equity Share (of H 2 each)
	 Basic and Diluted (H) 34  30.02  26.15 
Significant Accounting Policies and 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  1 to 52 

		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
In terms of our report attached
For B S R & Co. LLP	 Ram Patodia	 Manish Mohnot
Chartered Accountants	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director & CEO
Firm Registration No : 101248W/W-100022		  DIN : 01229696

Vikas R Kasat	 Rajeev Kumar	 Sanjay Dalmia
Partner	 Company Secretary	 Executive Director
Membership No : 105317		  DIN: 03469908
Mumbai : May 20, 2020		  Mumbai : May 20, 2020






























































































































































































































































